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At Ashtead we enable individuals and businesses

to do more.

We are a global leader in the provision of hire
equipment. From hand held powered tools
to aerial platforms we provide solutions and
systems that support our customers.

But above all it is our people that really make

the difference.
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HIGHLIGHTS

Continued growth in revenue and profit in all dvisions
with full year underlying operating profit of £150 5m,
up 45% at constant exchange rates

On a pro forma basis Sunbelt’s underlying full year
operating profit grew by 43% to $272 3m reflecting the
progress made to date on the NationsRent integration

On the same pro forma basis, A-Plant delivered
underlying operating profit growth of 40% to £20 /m
reflecting 1ts strong 11% organic improvement In pro
forma revenues

Underlying basic earnings per share declined 3% at
constant exchange rates to 10 3p reflecting the expected
first year dilution from the NationsRent acquisition

The loss before tax for the year of £36 5m {2006 profit
of £81 7m) 15 after charging exceptional costs, fair value
remeasurements and intangible amortisatton amounting
to £117 9m {2006 £142m credit) No further
exceptional costs relating to the NationsRent acquisition
are expected

Final dividend of 1 1p per share proposed, making 165p
for the year (2006 15p)

/

The figures for 2005 2006 and 2007 are reported 1n accordance with IFRS Frgures for 2003 and 2004 are reported under UK GAAP and have not been restated in accordance wath IFRS.

* At constant exchange rates

Undertying profit rs stated before exceptional items, amorusauon of acquired ntangbles and non-cash far value remeasurements of embecded denvatrves in fong term debt.
The definction of excephonal tems s set out in note 1 Lo the attached financial statements.

Reference to pro forma baws throughout this annual report and accounts includes the NauonsRent and Lux Traff ¢ acquisiions throughout bath penods For this purpose the pre-xquiation results of
NationsRent have been derved from its reported perfarmance under US GAAP adjusted to excude the large profits on dispasal of rental equipment st reported following the application of US “fresh stan”
accounting prinaples and to include an estimated deprdanion charge under Ashtead s depreciation poboies.
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OUR BUSINESS

Ashtead Group provides solutions for customers who need a quick, efficient and
cost-effective service. We provide equipment that lifts, powers, generates, moves,
digs, supports, scrubs, pumps, directs, ventilates — whatever the job needs. We rent
equipment on flexible terms so that our customers can focus on what they do best
rather than maintaining and servicing equipment they may use only periodically.
We make sure the equipment is there when it needs to be and is ready to work
immediately and efficiently. Our profit centres are located where they are most
required and we guarantee our service. Whether customers need a small hand

held tool or power generation for a 30 floor building, our staff are there, able

and willing, to help our customers ensure the job gets done.

DESCRIPTION

EMPLOYEES

COUNTRIES OF OPERATION

REVENUES'

PROFITS'

RETURN ON INVESTMENT ™

* Revenue and profits Indude NauonsRent
an Lux from the beginning of the
financial year and not from therr
respective dates of acquisibon.

** Return on trvestment I calcudated as
operatng profit divided by net tangible
assets employed including goodwill and
other intangible assets but excduding cebt
and ceferred tax,

SUNBELT

A-PLANT

ASHTEAD TECHNOLOGY

The second largest
equipment rental business

in the US market, Sunbelt
continues to increase I1ts
market share rapidly Sunbelt
has 445 locations operating
in 35 states

The third largest equipment
rental company with 201
locations across Britain,
operating 1n a mature,
stable market

Renting specialised electronic
equipment to the offshore
o1l and gas sectors and the
environmental monitonng
and testing industry from

13 locations in the UK, the
US, Canada and Singapore

7.524 2,424 ns

us UK US, UK, Canada, Singapore
$1,539m £199m £22m

$272m | £21m £6m

13% l 9% 35%
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OUR YEAR IN REVIEW

US FOOTPRINT EXTENDED THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF NATIONSRENT

In August we completed the $1bn acquisition of NationsRent in
the US marking a step change in the size and scope of the Group
and making us the second largest equipment rental company in
the US and globally The enlarged Sunbelt business now has 445
locations and over $2bn n rental fleet

/

ACQUISITION OF LUX TRAFFIC CONTROLS
In October we acquired the UK's largest prowider of rental traffic
systems by acquinng Lux Traffic Controls Lirted for £15 5m
Over 40 Lux locations were immediately amalgamated into the
A-Plant netwerk and when integrated with A-Plant’s existing
dedicated traffic locations, formed the largest dedicated traffic

equiprment provider m the UK

NATIONSRENT
INTEGRATION
MILESTONES
ACHIEVED

ON OR AHEAD
OF SCHEDULE

By October, regional and
distnict managermnent teams
had been combined and
former NationsRent store
staff had migrated to
Sunbelt’s monthly paid profit
share programme The
combination of the two
point of sale and back office
computer Systems was
achieved ahead of schedule
at the beginning of
November and the former
NationsRent head office was
closed on schedule in early
Decernber Integration cost
savings were running at an
annual rate of approximately
$48m In the fourth quarter

GEOFF DRABBLE
JOINS AS NEW
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Geoff Drabble joined Ashtead
Group as chief executive
designate in Octeber and
succeeded George Bumnett
as chuef executive i January
Geoff has been a non-
executive director of Ashtead
since April 2005 and Joined
Ashtead full-time from The
Lawrd Group PLC where he
had been responsible for its
building products dwision

_/

/

CHRIS COLE
APPOINTED
AS CHAIRMAN

in March Chnistopher Cole,
who had been serving as
Intenm non-executive
chairman of the Group
stnce 27 October 2006,
was appointed permanently
as chairman of the Group

/

ASHTEAD TECHNOLOGY CONTINUES
TO EXPAND

Good market condittons have contributed to strong growth
at Ashtead Technology which opened its thirteenth store
in Phuladelphia in April.

_/

A-PLANT POSITIONED FOR
YET FURTHER IMPROVEMENT

In April A-Plant announced 1nvestrnent in an improved profit
centre nfrastructure better suited to its customers’ needs
The focus will be on larger locations offenng a broad range of
plant and tools supplemented by our speaiality profit centres
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

It has been year of change and strategic growth for Ashtead. We achieved
good progress in our underlying pre-tax profits which were £81.4m, up
20.6% from last year and supported by a step change in the size of the
Group with the acquisition of NationsRent in the US. All our businesses
performed well and we continued to build on the progress demonstrated
over the last two years. The Board has worked hard in recent years to

strengthen the financial position of the Company.

The Board 1s recommending a 10% increase in the final dividend to 1 1p
per share making 165p for the year, up 10% on last year's total of 15p
per share If approved at the forthcorming Annual General Meeting, the final
dvidend will be paid on 28 September to shareholders on the register on

7 September 2007

| am very pleased to be leading the Board at this exciting time for the
Group, but that sentiment 15 also tinged with sadness as it comes as a
result of the untimely death in October of Cab Stenham, our previous
chairman | knew Cob well having worked alongside i as senior
independent non-executive director since late 2003 Cob provided
nvaluable advice over a difficult penod in the Company's histary and
will be much mussed for his incisiveness and understanding of the issues
the Company faced

Last year also saw the retirement of Ceorge Burnett who co-founded
Ashtead in 1984 when he and a feltow investor purchased what was then
a five branch business trading in the south-east of England with revenues
of £1m George became Group chief executive in February 2000 and led
the Group successfully through several difficult years back to the stability
and profit that we have enjoyed recently On behalf of the Board and the
Company's shareholders, | would like to thank George for his contnbution
over more than two decades and wish him well In his retirement

The Board and | are delighted to welcome Geoff Drabble as the new chief
executive of the Company Geoff 1s well known to Ashtead as he has been
a non-executive director since 2005 He joined us full time in an executive
role at the beginning of October 2006 from The Laird Group PLC where
he was head of Laird's building products division and an executive director
Ceoff was the preferred candidate of the Nomination Committee after

an extensive external and intemnal search HMe has expenence of managing
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businesses in the US as well as in the UK, and we are already seeing the
benefits of his operational expertise

The year saw some other changes in the composition of the Board Firstly
Philip Lovegrove retired from the Board having, like George been a director
since 1984 The Board would [ike to thank him for his valuable contribution
and advice over many years and wishes h:m well in his retirement

Following my appointment as chairman, Hugh Etheridge, who has been

a director since 2004, and who 1s Chief Financial Cfficer of the Waste
and Resources Action Programme, has been appainted as our semor
independent non-executive director In addition, | would like to welcome
Michael Burrow who was appointed :n March and Bruce Edwards who
was appainted In june as new non-executive directors who were selected
carefully for therr specific areas of expertise and experence Michael was
formerty Managing Director of the Investment Banking Group of Lehman
Brothers Europe Limited and brings a signeficant understanding of the
financial markets m which we operate whilst Bruce 1s responsible currently
for Deutsche Post's contract logistics functions having previously been a
director of Exel PLC until it was acquired by Deutsche Post

Foliowing these appointmenits, the Board 1s now in compliance with all the
recornrmendations of the Combined Code regarding Board composition and
impeortantly, welt-balanced to support the Group's strategic performance
objectives

The major event for Ashtead in the last year was the acquisition in August
2006 of MationsRent and we are delighted to have found a business whose
store network has a complernentary fit with our existing US operations
The NationsRent locations have already been integrated fully and branded
into the Sunbeit network and our ongoing focus s to dnve up utilisation
rates at the acquired profit centres and thus aiso in the combined business
The acquisition has rade Ashtead the second largest equipment rental
company In the United States and globally enabling us to benefit fram the
strong US market and the progressive move underway in that market from
ownership to rental.

A further important developrnent of the Group in the year was the
acquisiton of Lux Traffic Controls i the UK Its integration with A-Plant's
existing traffic operations has provided the opportunity for higher
value-added earnings and helped make us the market leader in traffic
management in the UK Ashtead Technology also continued to make
excellent progress throughout the year and again presents excellent results

Concurrently with the NationsRent acquisttion, the Group renewed and
extended 1ts debt facilttres providing both the capacity required to conclude
the acquisition and significant flexibility for the future Qur facilities, a total
of $2 55bn (£1 3bn), are committed for the long term with a weighted
average remaining ife of 6 25 years at 30 Apnl 2007 and are essentially
non-amartising They are also structured 1n a form appropriate to our
business being reliant principally on our asset cover for security

Revenues

£896m

up 40%

o

J
N

Underlying pra-tax profits Drvidends \
£81m 1.65p
up 21% up 10%

- NG v

As our business expands acting respansibly and fulfilling our obligations as
a good corporate citizen become ever more impartant. We are committed
to meeting our saoal, ethical and envirenmental comrmitments, to ensuring
the safety of both our employees and our customers, imiting the impact
we make on the environment, and giving back to the communities in which
we do business We expect to expand our reporting of these important
areas in the corming year

The commitment and calibre of our people make the difference in a
competitive market and [ thank them for their hard work and for their
enthustasm to make Ashtead the preferred supplier in afl our markets In
addition | welcome our new employees from NationsRent and Lux Traffic
and thank themn for therr contribution to the successful integration of their
respective businesses

As we continue to build on the excellent integration and combination

of the enlarged Sunbelt business in the US, complemented by continuing
improved performance from A-Plant and Ashtead Technology in expected
good markets, | am confident we can see further growth in all the Group's
activities i the future leading to enhanced shareholder value

CHRIS COLE
CHAIRMAN
25 June 2007
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Ashtead aims to be a leader in the global equipment rental business
delivering strong returns for its investors through the exploitation of
growth opportunities and by being world class at what we do. We aim to
achieve these objectives by generating strong organic growth combined
with growth through acquisition as well as delivering high levels of
customer satisfaction.

A YEAR OF TRANSITION AND GROWTH

| am delighted to be presenting my first annual report as the new chief
executive of Ashtead following the retirement of George Burnett Gearge
made an enormous contribution to Ashtead over 22 years and on behalf

of all Ashtead employees, | would like to thank him for his unstinting
dedication to the Group Having joined Ashtead as a non-executive director
in Apnl 2005 and becorne chief executive designate in October 2006, | was
fortunate to have the opportunity of werking alongside George to ensure
management continuity and a seamless transition

The year also saw a change In chasrman following the sad and untimely
death of Cob Stenham Cob will be greatty missed by us all both for his
professional drive and knowledge and the personal flair that he brought
1o the business in Chris Cole, however, we have gained a charman with
a deep understanding of construction markets as a result of his position
as chief executive of WSP Group ple, together with extensive experience
of Ashtead and 1ts management team, having been a director since
January 2002

Growth from both organic revenue improvement and acquisition form
key elements of our strategy and 2006/7 saw notable activity Qur Group
revenue for the year was £896m, up 40% on the £638m reported last year
Bunng the year we enjoyed organic growth in all markets through a
combinauon of good overall market conditions and market share gains In
addition, the Group moved forward significantly with the acquisition of US
rental company NationsRent in August 2006 for $ 1bn, ceating the second
targest rental company both in the US and globally, servng principally the
non-residential construction market October 2006's £15 5m acquisition of
Lux Traffic Controls in the UK ard its immediate integration with A-Plant’s
exsting traffic management operations makes us the largest provider of
rental traffic systems in the UK
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e J

THE NATIONSRENT ACQUISITION

The acquisition of NationsRent provided a unique opporturity to make

a step change in the size of the Group in North Amenca The acquisition
provided scale with very little overlap at profit centre level and allowed
us to accelerate our clustenng principle in key markets such as Florda,
Texas and Califormia In addition it provided us with access to new markets
particularly in the US North East and Upper Mid West.

Both businesses used the same computensed point of sale operating
system and the age and composition of their fleet was similar to our
own We were confident that our business model, based around highly
incentivised profit centres operating with a large amount of autonomy
would improve the financial return from the NationsRent assets Also,
significant recurnng cost savings were available from integrating central
and regional functions

To date we have achieved all our milestones in terms of the integration and
we enter the new finanaal year with a single business focused on further
organic growth The acquisition was funded by a nghts i1ssue which raised
approximately £150m, drawings under a new $1 75bn senior secured credit
faciity and $550m of new sentor loan notes

DEUVERING PROFITABLE GROWTH

Underlying operating profit at £150 5m was up 35 5% on the £111 1m
reported last year On a pro forma basis operating profit was up 34 0% to
£1612m Reflecting the 38% increase in the number of shares outstanding
following August's nghts 1ssue, we achieved underlying eamings per share
of 10 3p (2006 11 3p}

Sunbelt’s underlying pro forma \ A-Plant’s undertying pro forma \ Ashtead Techrology's \

operating profit operating profit operating profit

$272m £21m £6m

up 43% up 40% up 57% at constant
exchange rates

. NS _/

All three divisions, Sunbelt, A-Plant and Ashtead Technalogy, saw good
organic growth in both revenue and underlying operating profit Whilst
there are differences in the geographies and markets they serve, the rental
business model 15 the same

There were significant exceptional costs, fair value remeasurements

and mntangible amortisation totalling £117 9m (2006 credit of £14 2m)
The majority of these costs were assoctated with the funding of the
NationsRent transaction and realising the synergy benefits available frorn
the acquisition As alt of the structural integration actvity 1s now complete
we do not expect any further exceptional costs associated with this
transaction in 2007/8

Net borrowings at the year-end were £9159m (2006 £4936m) We have
stated our policy of managing our financial structure to sustamn a net debt
to EBITDA ratio In the range of 2 to 3 tirmes in mast arcumstances As a
result of the acquisition, we reached temporanly the upper end of this
range By year-end we were at 2 7 times and anticipate reaching the
mudpoint of the mnge, based on norrmal operational activity, 1n 2007/8

MAINTAINING THE MOMENTUM OF THE GROUP

We expect to continue to develop the Group through a combination of
organic growth and acquisition, while ensurnng we have both the financial
and managenal rescurce to execute and integrate an acquisition successfully

Realsing the orgaric growth potential from the acquired NationsRent
assets will remain a key area of focus n 2008 Utilising the reconfigured
fleet, we intend to access a broader customer base than just the pure
non-residential contractor which will allow us to both develop new higher
retum markets and provide an important breadth of revenue generation
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

CONTINUED

A-Plant 1s positioned for yet further wnprovement. its existing momentum
will be supported by further investment in fleet and an improved profit
centre infrastructure |n April, we began to implement a new investment
programme for A-Plant. This will involve the restructunng of its profit centre
infrastructure over the corming year to create fewer, larger sites with higher
levels of actity These larger pools of equipment and staff will improve
operational efficiency and enable A-Plant to meet the needs of its
customers better An exceptional charge of £6 2m was recorded in the
fourth quarter in respect of, principally vacant premises costs at the profit
centres which will be closed as a result of the new investment plan

Ashtead Technology will continue to develop both its onshore and offshore
markets which remain strong In offshore, as well as the traditionally strong
markets in the North Sea and the Gulf of Mexico, West Africa and Asia are
becaming increasingly important. The need for ol and gas exploration to
access deeper waters together with the development of new fields will
continue to provide oppartunities for future growth The onshore markets in
bath envircnmental monitonng and non-destructive testing are developing
well additronally, the aging of preduction assets and increasing health and
safety requirements in the offshore oil iIndustry will also drive higher levels
of maintenance from which we shautd benefit. Finally, there is a significant
appartunity to leverage the onshore business through Sunbelt’s locations
and industnal customers

Acquisitions have been, and will continue to form, a key part of our
strategy Acquisitions are made to expand both our geographic footprint
and the range of products which we offer We bring value to our
acquisitions by introducing our successful business model and providing
the benefit of scale When appropnate we will continue to look for
value-enhancing bolt-on acquisitions to support our clusters n existing
geographies We will ook also to develop our specialist businesses following
the successful acquisition of Lux Traffic Contrels, the leading player in the
niche UK traffic market. Our specialist businesses generate higher added
value as our custorner base looks to outsource their planning and techmcal
requirements as well as renting equipment

We are a service business and we differentiate ourselves by the strength of
our service offering Central to our service offering are our people and our
systems We now have a 10,000 strong Ashtead team The nature of our
business requires skilled, entrepreneurial indmiduals working within a highly
devolved structure We achieve this through a dedication to training and
an industry teading reward and recognition scheme The industry generally
suffers from high staff tumover particularly within certain job categones
and within the first year of employment. We have made good progress in
impreving our staff retention in recent years with a lower level of leavers as
shown n the chart opposite This will remain a key performance indicator
going forward
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We place significant importance on the use of systems to improve our
efficiency For example, each of our dwvisions operates integrated on line
point of sale systems which provide significant advantages to our
employees and customers due to the visibility these single company-wide
systems provide Our exiranets allow key aspects of the custorner
relationship to be managed electronically In addition, in the UK, our on line
telematics and tracking system enables qualifying customers to see exactly
where major items of equipment are at any time tncluding if they have
been stolen Already there have been many instances where these tracking
devices have facilitated swift recovery in the event of theft, saving our
customers the cost of providing us with a replacement for the lost item

Information technology will play an even greater role in rental in the Future,
driven by the need to minimise transportation costs and the need for
enhanced asset visibdlity Major projects such as the 2012 Olympics will
accelerate this change Ashtead 1s at the forefront of these changes and
we will continue to use our technology as a differentiator

EMPLOYEES

Ashtead is a leader in its industry because of its people and | would like to
thank all our employees for their hard work and dedication Our employees
are often called upon to help our customers and theirr management teams
through difficult situations, whether that be providing crucial equipment at
short notice or getting a faclity up and runming again after a major Incident
such as water damage The pnde and passion demonstrated by our employees
makes our customers know they can depend on us to get things moving

OUTLCOK

Across the Group, the business has developed well in the past year and the
NationsRent acquisition provides continuing oppartunity from integration
benefits and positions us well for further growth The markets for all three
divisions remain strang and the drive to rental due to both the financsal
and operational benefits of outsourcing, will continue, particularly in North
Amenca Given the success of the NationsRent integration to date, we are
well positioned to achieve further progress in the coming year Ashtead
will remain focused on debivery of our objective of creating and growing
shareholder value

GEOFF DRABBLE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
25 June 2007
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GETTING THINGS GOING
AGAIN AFTER A DISASTER

After a hurncane, a fire, a flood or any kind of disaster, we can respond immediately and provide the
equipment and expertise required to clean up, provide power and get the disaster recovery moving
ahead at full steam When a four storey apartment buiding in Boston caught fire, Sunbelt received a
Fnday night call for help On Saturday morning, Sunbelt delivered cntical equipment the contractors
needed to begin the recovery process from the damage caused by the fire, smoke and water used to
extinguish the fire and dampen the job site Equipment included aenal man bfts, dehurmidifiers and
generatars to supply the power required for lighting, ventilation and intencr remediation and
restoration equipment. One call was all it took to ritiate the entire effort
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FACILITATING MAJOR EVENTS

Ashtead 15 often asked to provide the behind-the-scenes equipment without which many major
events would never happen We rent a wide vanety of equipment used at rock concerts, music
festivals, sporting events and many other venues In Charlotte, North Carolina, Sunbelt plays a
critical role in race week, which culminates in NASCAR's longest race, the Coca-Cola 600 With over
150,000 fans, the Coca-Cola 600 1s one of the most popular races in the Nextel Cup Senes Each
year, Lowe's Motor Speedway relies on Sunbelt because they count on its range of equipment and
the unparalleled level of service they receive
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SUPPORTING THE
REDEVELOPMENT OF
LONDON'S OLDEST HOSPITALS

Following the award by the UK govemment of the targest ever Public Finance Initiative contract,
rather than maintain and service all the necessary equipment themselves, the contractor tumed

to A-Plant to fulfl this role The 10 year project to redevelop St Bartholomew's and Royal London
hospitals involves investment of more than £1bn A-Plant will be on site permanently during the
project, allowing equipment needs to be fulfilled quickly through one point of contact, whether the
equipment 15 for the main contractor or their sub-contractors As well as providing heavy construction
equipment, A-Plant 1s also supplying the personal protection equipment for workers on the site, their
goggles, hard hats and gloves to ensure this major project benefits from the full range of our services
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ENABLING OUR
CUSTOMERS TO
CONTROL TRAFFIC

Our A-Plant Lux Traffic division 15 the UK leader in providing
traffic control solutions on a rental basis Whether our
customer needs a single set of traffic lights or a complex high
speed traffic management system, we provide a complete
service from beginning to end We can be called upon to
carry out a nsk assessment on site, prepare scale drawings,
and submit the necessary documents to the local authonty
for approval prior to installing the necessary equipment,
momtonng 1t throughout the hfe of the project and
dismantling 1t at the end Safety 1s a cnical component of
traffic management and our customers look to us to help
themn ensure everything works smoothly Our in-house training
has proved so effective that we now provide it to outside
organisations incduding the Highways Agency, major utilities,
avil engineenng contractors and even police authorities




n ASHTEAD GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2007 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group focuses on equipment rental. During 2006/7 approximately
94% of our revenue was derived from equipment rental and rental
related services with the balance coming from sales of new equipment,
parts and associated goods, such as equipment accessories. We believe
that equipment rental offers the opportunity to eam substantially
higher returns than those which are earned by equipment dealers
whose margins are effectively capped by the equipment manufacturer.

OVERVIEW

Ashtead operates i the US pnnapally under the name Sunbel: and in the
UK principally under the name A-Plant In addition, Ashtead Technology
serves the global ol industry and operates both offshore and onshore
Sunbelt 1s the second largest equipment rental company in the US and
A-Plant 1s the third largest equipment rental cormpany 1n the UK, in each
case measured by rental revenue

We provide a wide range of rental equipment from small handheld
maching tools to extensive pump and power systems used in major
disaster situations In addition Ashtead Technology rents mainly electronic
survey and testing equipment 1n the UK, the US, Singapore and Canada

We are a service business and it 1s our network, people and systems that set
us apart in our markets At Group level, we are focused on the management
of an asset intensive business with the aim of delivenng supenor financial
returns In years to corne, we expect to continue to develop our existing
operations and to consider both adding new higher return product types te
our offering and extending the geographical markets in which we operate

We provide solutions 1n afl manner of situations including

*» Non-residential construction markets — providing all types of
construction equipment.

= Facilities management — again providing all types of equipment but used
for maintenance and repair rather than new construction

» Disaster relief — providing pumps and power generation equipment in all
types of application ranging from assistance at times of fiooding due to
weather {e g Humncane Xatnna) to a burst water supply

» Major event management — providing power generation, lighting and
other equipment for events such as the Super Bowl and other sporting
evenits, major music concerts and festivals

« Traffic management - pronding portable traffic systems to facilitate
major engineerng projects or clean-up after an acadent
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We are now the second largest equipment rental group in the world
Our performance on a pro forma basis before exceptional 1terns and
arnortisation was as follows

2007 2006

As reported MationsRent/Lux pro forma pro forma

Em £m £m £m

Revenue 8961 1303 1026 4 5976
EBITDA 3103 311 3414 2982
Operating profit 1505 107 1612 1203

In the year to 30 April 2007 we had pro forma revenues of £1,026 4m,
pro forma EBITDA of £341 4m and earned a pro forma operating profit
of £1612m Approximately 79% of our pro forma revenue was generated
in the US by Sunbelt and approximately 19% was generated in the UK by
A-Plant Ashtead Technology accounted for 2% of our pro forma revenue
Our pro forma EBITDA and operating profit margins were 33 3% and

15 7% respectively

OUR MARKETS

The US

Sunbelt our US construction and industnal equipment rental drision trades
exclusively in the United States and operates 445 profit centres grouped
nto 51 Distnicts and 11 Regions Sunbelt operates prinapally in the fast
growing US non-residential construction market which, according to figures
published by the US Department of Commerce, grew 13% in the year to
Apnl 2007 following growth of 10% in the year ta Apnl 2006

The recent development of the rental market for construction equipment in
the US has been a key driver of demand for our services Rental penetration
Is assessed as the proportion of manufactured product sold in the US by
equipment manufacturers and dealers to the rental sector (who use 1t to

supply the end user on a generally short-term, ad hoc rental basis) The
chart above shows the development in rental penetration between 1990
and 2010

We believe that this increased trend to rental in the US has the potential
to continue for many years and consequentty to support increased demand
for our services This view 1s based not only on the rental penetration in the
more rmature UK market which 1s estimated at around 80% but also by the
fact that one praduct type in the US, aerial work platforms, also extubits
arcund 80% penetration Aenal work platforms are a more recently
developed product than other types of construction equipment
Consequently, as demand grew, its manufacturers had no established dealer
distribution network but instead saw the rental industry as the best means
to distnbute their product.

Given current market conditions, including the impact of increased rental
penetration, we expect the rental market to grow by between 5% and 7%
in the cormng fiscal year

Following the NationsRent acquisition, we are the second largest rental
business in the US based on pro forma rental revenues as shown in the
table below

Approx

Name Number of locauons  Rental revenues market share
Sbn

United Rentals 597 23 7%

Sunbelt Rentals 445 14 4%

Hertz Equipment Rental Co 242 14 4%

RSC 429 14 4%

Like ourselves United Rentals, RSC and Hertz are publicly listed businesses
Beyond the top four, the market in which Sunbelt operates 1s charactensed
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by a large number of small competitors According to Global insight and
Rental fquipment Register there 1s an estimated total of 15,000 industry
locations In the US and the largest 10 businesses have a 27% share of an
estimated $32 8bn market.

Our fleet mix 1s broadly simular to our large peers However, we differentiate
our business both by emphasising smaller equipment types which we
believe offer the potential for higher returns and in the manner n which
we Incentivise our staff

Sunbelt’s fleet age at 30 Apri 2007 was 32 months on a net book value
basis compnsing 38 months for aenal work platforms which have a longer
Life and 25 months for the remainder of the fleet. The cost of Sunbelt’s
fleet by asset category 1s surmmarised in the chart above

Future rmarket trends

We expect that Sunbelt's development in coming years wall be drven by

* an ncrease in the size of the market driven by growth in non-residential
construction and increased outsourcing to the rentat sector of thewr
equipment needs by contractors, and

» the opportunity which exists for us and the other "big four” providers to
continue to gain market share from the smaller competitors over whom
we enjoy significant operational advantages

We anticipate that mcreased concerns over health and safety wssues in the
future wilt continue to lead contractors to rely on the use of outsourced
equipment This 1s because use of a speaialist provides the contractor with
the ability to rent exactly the nght piece of equipment for the task in hand
as well as the assurance that the equipment will be of recent manufacture
and maintained by an expenenced, specialist workforce

The UK

Our UK business trades under the A-Plant name and rents a similar range
of equipment to Sunbeit to a similar profile of general industnal and
construction orentated custorners A-Plant operates 201 profit centses and
serves a more mature market where rental penetration 1s estimated at
approximately 80% Accordingly, market commentators expect the market
to be largely stable in future years with growth driven by growth in GDP,
together with the need for substantial infrastructure renewal in the UK
(sewers, water roads} as well as increased spending in areas such as nuclear
power station decommussioning and replacement and the 2012 Olympics
The forecast market devetopmaent is shown in the chart above

A-Plant 15 the third largest equipment rental business 1n the UK wath 1ts key
peers being shown in the table below

Approx,

Name Number o locations Revenve market share
£m

Speedy Hire 361 336 9%

Hewden Stuart 360 258 7%

A-Plant 201 190 5%

HSS 350 163 4%

A-Plant’s fleet 15 also young and well-maintained like that of Sunbelt with
an average age at 30 Apnl 2007 on a net book value basis of 29 months
(2006 36 months) The cost of A-Plant’s fleet 1s analysed by asset category
in the chart opposite
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Future market trends

We expect that A-Plant’s development in coming years will be driven by

e market share gains from the large number of smaller competitors as
health and safety concerns continue to drive the customer base to use
the larger, more professional and better quality rental providers,

* stable construction markets which are bikely to grow slightly faster than
the rate of UK GDP because of the need for infrastructure renewal, and

« investment in higher return product areas such as our recent purchase
of Lux Traffic Controls

Ashtead Technology

Ashtead Technology operates in two main markets,

= rental of sub-sea survey and positroning equipment to the offshore
oil and gas industries, together with rental to the telecommunications
cable-laying market, and

+ onshore rental of a range of environrmental test and measurernent,
non-destructive testing and remote visual inspection equipment

Ashtead Technology s offshore actmities are conducted globally from three
profit centres in Aberdeen {UK), Houston (US) and Singapore, whereas its
onshore activities trade through nine profit centres in the US and one in
the UK Its fleet by asset category 1s shown in the chart above

Ashtead Technology's key competitor in both of its markets 15 a pnvately
owned business

Offshore  Seatronics, a Craig Group business also headquartered in Aberdeen
Onshore  Pine Environmental based in East Windsor, New Jersey, US

Future market trends

We expect Ashtead Technology's development in corning years will be

dnven by

+ the increasing importance of new markets such as West Afnca and Asia
and the need for o1l and gas exploration to access deeper waters
together with the devetopment of new fields,

= on-going development of both environmental momitoring and non-
destructive testing in the onshore market, and

+ higher levels of maintenance required in the offshore ol and gas industry
as it exploits aging assets in an environment of increasing health and
safety concerns

QOUR STRATEGY

Ashtead aims 1o be a leader in the global equipment rental business
delivering strong returns for Its investors through the exploitation of growth
opportunities and by being world class at what we do We aim to achieve
these objectives by generating strong organic growth cormbned with
grawth through acquisition as well as delivenng tugh levels of custormer
satisfaction

We believe that the Group's key strengths lie in its abibity to manage and
mcentivise its staff to deliver strong returns on mvestment from a capital
asset base comprising large numbers of Indmidually modest value assets
and in the computer systems it has developed to facilitate this These skilis
were first applied successfully n the UK through A-Plant and then in the
US where Sunbelt has now grown to be four times larger than A-Plant

in a substantially larger market They have also been applied in Ashtead
Technology whose product range 1s very different but where the Group's
core skifls are also relevant. In years to come, we believe that it may be
appropriate for the Group te continue to broaden the product types and
geographical markets in which it applies its key strengths

Acquisitions

We made two important acquisitions n 2006, NationsRent in the US
and Lux Traffic Controls in the UK. Our acquisitions strategy Is based on
expanding our market share either by geography or by product category
particularly if such a product category 15 of a more specialist nature and
hence delivers a higher rental value

NationsRent

In August 2006 Sunbelt acquired NationsRent Companies, Inc, the sicth
largest provider of equipment rental services in the US, for an initial
consideration {induding acquired debt) of approximately $1bn The
combined busmess is now the second largest rental company n the
US, serving principally the pnvate non-residential constructton market.

The acquisition was funded by a nghts 1ssue which raised approxaimately
£150m, drawings under a new $7 75bn senior secured credit faclity and
$550m of new senior loan notes The NationsRent locations have already
been integrated fully mto the Sunbelt network. The two companies’ profit
centre networks mtegrated together well with very little overlap and the
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NationsRent network has increased the number of major markets in

which we have a clustered presence from 18 to 31 In addition to the good
fit of rental focatians the acquisition offered the opportunity for realising
significant cost savings from combimng central and regional/district
functions The integration programme concluded at the end of January and
has delivered cost savings at an annual rate of $48m n the fourth quarter

Lux Traffic Controls

The £15 5m acquisition of Lux Traffic Contrels Limited, when combined
with A-Plant’s existing traffic systems rental business makes A-Plant the
largest provider of rental traffic systems in the UK and extends significantly
our penetration of this attractive market. Lux's network of 44 locations has
been integrated fully with A-Plant and we have already achteved significant
back office cost savings The acquisition formed part of our strategic plan to
develop our speciabst businesses and delivered a market leading position in
the UK traffic systems rental market

QOUR BUSINESS MODEL

The Group focuses on equipment rental. During 2006/7 approxmately
94% of our revenue was derved from equipment rentat and rental related
services with the balance coming from sales of new equipment, parts

and associated goods, such as equipment accessores We believe that
equipment rental offers the opportunity to earn substantially higher returns
than those which are eamed by equipment dealers whose margins are
effectively capped by the equipment manufacturer

{t} Return on imvestrnent is defined as underying operating peofit draded bry the weighted
average capital employed (shareholders funds plus net debt and deferred tax les the
pension fund surplus and other financial assets — denvatives)

The Group believes that this focused and dedicated approach improves

the effectiveness of its rental sales force by encouraging them to build

and reinforce relationships with customers and to concentrate on strong,
whole-life returns from our rental fleet rather than on short-term returns
from sales of equipment In contrast, many of our competitors in the
equipment rental ndustry, especially in the US, follow a mixed business
approach, providing rentals, selling new equipment and trading used equiprment.

(Rol)i) well ahead of our cost of capital. In particular, we drive Rol by

the incentivisation of our people to deliver superior returns Through our
monthly paid profit share programmes, all our staff have the opportunity
to enhance their earnings based on the retumns delivered by the profit :
centre in which they work. |

|
‘
‘
|
Our most important financial objective 1s to deliver return on investment }
|

Although Rol has been impacted by the acquisition n August 2006 of the
lower margin NationsRent business the chart opposite shows that, through
the last cycle since our fiscal year ending April 2004, the Group has earned
an average Rot {including goodwill) of 12% ~ ahead of cur cost of capital
We believe that this performance compares favourably with our peers

The Group strives to maximise its return on investrent through a

combination of measures In addition to our monthly profit share

pragramme, we encourage effective management of invested capital by

« mantaining a concentration of higher-retum (often spec:alised)
equipment within the overall rental equipment fleet,

« promoting the transfer of equipment to locations where maximum
utihsation rates and returns can be obtained,

» monitorng the amount of invested capital at each of our profit centres,
and

» empowering regional and local managers to adapt pricing policies in
response to local demand in order to maximise the overall return
achieved from our investment in our rental fleet

We also manage the size and composition of our rental fleet by continuing
to assess and dispase of older or underperforming equipment and adapting
the level of our capital expenditure to economic activity levels

Qur operating model 15 key 1o the way we deliver these returns and

encompasses the foltowing elements

= Our local management teams are strong and highly incentivised,
producing supenor financial returns and high quality standards Many of
our most senior people started theur careers by working in the front line
at a profit centre

« Our large sales forces are incentivised to target higher return rental
opportunities as well as a high volume of contracts overall. We believe
that our sales force commussion plans are amongst the best in the industry
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¢ In the US we achieve scale through a “clustered market” approach
of grouping our rental locations into clusters of three to 15 locations
in each of our developed markets throughout the US Sunbelt has
developed such "clustered markets™ in 31 major cities Inctuding
Washington DC, Dallas, Houstan, Charlotte, Atlanta, Crlando and Seattle
This strategic approach allows us to provide a comprehensive product
offering and convenient service to our custorners wherever their job sites
may be within these markets

* In the smaller geography of the UK our strategy is focused on having
sufficient profit centres to allow us to offer a full range of equipment on
a nationwade basis As descnbed elsewhere we are investing in the profit
centre infrastructure over the coming year to create fewer, larger sites
with higher levels of activity These larger pools of equipment ang staff
will rmprove operational efficiency and enable A-Plant to meet the needs
of its custorner better

* We aim to operate a wide range of equipment within our rental fleets
to maximise the extent to which we can fulfil our customers’ needs

» We offer a full service solution for our customers Qur product range
includes specralist equipment types such as pump & power, scaffolding
and traffic management systems which mvolve providing service
expertise as well as equipment.

« We nvest heavily in our computerised point of sale and service systems.
We use these systems not only to help us manage our business to deliver
strong financial returns but also to meet the needs of our customers We
deployed one of the first extranets in the industry to provide qualifying
custorners with complete information on the equipment they have on

rent and on the status of their account More recently we have deployed
mobile data capture devices to record the time of delivery and the
customer's signature electronically allowing us to systematicalty monitor
and report on on-time delivenes We also use electronic tracking systems
to mormitor and secure the focation and usage of large equipment

Customers

Qur business is highly diverse In the year to Apn! 2007 we dealt with over
800,000 custorners In Sunbelt we wrote 2 mulllon rental contracts with
an average value of $670 per contract and 1ssued over 3 2 million invoices
Our UK business, A-Plant, though smaller 1s almost as diverse it wrote
540,000 rental contracts and ssued 11 rrutlion snwvoices n the year (o
Apnl 2007 In the UK we have focused in recent years on building deeper
relationships with our larger customers, with our largest 150 accounting
for 42% of our 2006/7 revenues

Our customers range in size and scale from mulbinational businesses,
through strong local contractors to individual do-it-yourselfers We have
loyal customers, many of whom we have dealt with for many years Qur
experience 1s that we gain a large amount of repeat business and our
operating methods and focus on customer service aim to support and
enhance this. We guarantee our service worldwide and believe that we are
unigue amongst our peers i the US in offering our customers the Sunbelt
guarantee under which we voluntanly accept penalties if we faill to meet
our commitments to customers
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We believe that our focus on customer service and its guarantee assists
us in distinguishing ourselves from our competitors and helps us to debver
supenior financiat returns

The Group’s diversified customer base includes construction, industnal
and homeowner customers, as well as government entities and specialist
contractors and Is analysed by Standard Industry Classification in the
tables above

As a large portion of our customer base comes from the commercial

construction and industnal sectors, the Group 1s dependent on the level of

comrmercial construction or industnal actmity The factors which influence

this actwity include

* the strength of the US and UK economies over the tong term including
the leve! of government spending,

« the [evel of interest rates, and

» demand within business that dnves the need for commeraial construction
or industriat equipment.

However, the Group's geographical scale and diversified customner base

assist in rmtigating the adverse impact of these factors on the Group's

performance through

» reducing the impact of localised economic fluctuations on our overall
financial performance,

* reducing our dependence on any particular customer or group of
customers; and

* enabling us to meet the needs of larger customers who have a wde
range of equipment needs

Suppliers

As the second largest equipment rental company in the world, the Group
purchases large amounts of equipment, parts and other items from its
suppliers, most of whorn operate globally The Group's capital expenditure
on rental equipment for 2006/7 was £256 4m The Group believes that its
scale and this levet of capital expenditure enables it to negotiate favourable
priaing, warranty and other terms with its suppliers which provide it with a
competitive advantage over smaller operators

Across our rental fleet we seek generally to cary equipment from one or
two manufacturers in each product range and to bmit the number of model
types of each product We believe that having a standardised fleet results in
lower costs because we obtain greater discounts by purchasing spare parts
i bulk and reduce maintenance costs through more focused, and therefore
reduced, training requirements for our workshop staff We are also able

to share spare parts better between profit centres which helps to minimise
the risk of over stocking We purchase equipment from suppliers with
strong reputations for product quality and rebability and maintain dose
relationships with these suppliers to ensure good after purchase service and
support. However, we beheve the Group has sufficient alternative sources
of supply for the equipment it purchases in each of 1ts product categones

People

In a service business, we believe that it is always the peaple which make
the difference Across the Group, we employ thousands of dedicated
persannel who every day of the week provide our customers with the
service they require At 30 Apnl 2007 the disposition of our staff was

Sunbedt
7,524

A-Plant
2424

Techrology
115 14

Totat

10077

Caorporate

Number of staff
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We motivate and reward our people through our local profit share
programmes These are based at the store level and apply to all personnel
at the store irrespective of length of service They are generally paid
monthly which gives immediate returns for good performance Payment

of profit share at any profit centre is based on that profit centre’s
performance and ts dependent on the level of its retumn on assets Sentor
management I5 remunerated separately using sivular critena while the sales
force 15 incentrvised based on sales volumes and a broad measure of retum on
investrment determined by reference to equipment type and discount level.

We invest heavily in traiming and in the past year focused our efforts
particularly on the staff who joined the Group on 31 August 2006 with
the NationsRent acquisition Sunbelt trained over 1,300 NationsRent staff
in a combination of offsite classroom training and on the job training I
our methods, operating culture and systems

Environment, health and safety

Ashtead 15 comrnitted to ensunng the highest standards of health and
safety \n our day to day operations We are also focused increasingly on
expanding efforts to limit the environmental impact of our work. Health
and safety concerns for our customers are a key driver for our business
as 1t 1s a factor cantributing to the decision o rent rather than purchase
equipment which then has to be maintained and serviced regularly
Further information on our environment, health and safety policies and
procedures can be found in the section on corporate responsibility within
the Directors’ Report.

Risks and uncertainties

Seasonality and cyclicality

Our revenue and operating results depend significantly on actvity in

the commercial construction mdustry in the US and the UK Commeraal
construction activity tends to decrease in the winter and dunng extended
penods of inclement weather and increase m the summer and dunng
extended penods of mild weather Furthermore, due to the incidence

af public holidays i the US and the UK, there are more billing days in the
first half of our financial year than the second half This results in changes
in demand for our rental equipment, In addition, the commeraal
construction ndustres in the US and the UK are cyclical industnes with
activity levels that tend to increase in bne with GDP growth and dechine
dunng an economic downturn The seasonality and cyclicality of the
equipment rental ndustry results in vanable dermand and therefore, our
revenue and operating results wll fluctuate from period to penod The
Group’s flexible business model allows 1t to modify the use of free cash
flow according to the economic cycle, as described elsewhere m this review

Currency translation

Qur reporting currency 15 the pound sterling However, a majonty of

our assets hiabilities, revenue and costs are denominated in US dollars

We have armanged our financing such that approxsmately 98% of our

debt 1s denominated in US dollars so that we have a natural partial offset
between our doliar-denominated net assets and earmings and our dollar-
denomunated debt and interest expense Fluctuations in the value of the
US dollar with respect to the pound therefore have had, and may contimue
to have, a significant impact on our financial condition and results of
operations as reported in pounds This Impact I1s greatest on our revenue
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and operating profits but less significant on our profits before and after
tax which are stated after deduction of our largely doltar-denominated
Interest expense

In the year ended 30 Apnl 2007, the depreciation of the dollar against the
pound reduced our total revenue by approximately 5 6% and our pre-tax
profits by approximately 3 7% n each case compared to the exchange
rates ruling during the year ended 30 Apnl 2006

Accordingly throughout this Business and Financial Rewview, we also present
the changes in our reported results in one period as compared to the
equivalent prior period at constant exchange rates, which assumes that
the US dollar amounts for both periods were consolidated and translated
at the average exchange rate applied in the financial statements for the
year ended 30 April 2007

Environmental and safety matters

Qur operations are subject 1o nurnerous laws governing environmental
protection ard occupational health and safety matters These laws regulate
such i1ssues as wastewater, stormwater, solid and hazardous wastes and
matenials, and ar quality Under these laws, we may be hable for amang
other things the cost of investigating and remediating cantamnation at
our sites as well as sites to which we send hazardous wastes for disposal
or treatment regardless of fault, and also fines and penalties for non-

compliance Qur operations generally do not raise sigrificant environmental

risks, but we use hazardous materials to clean and mamtain equipment,
dispose of solid and hazardous waste and wastewater from equipment
washing, and store and dispense petroleum products from underground
and above-ground storage tanks located at some of our locations We take
our environmental and health and safety responsibilities senously and have
stringent policies and procedures in place at alt our profit centres to help
minimise undue impact on the environment and keep our employees safe

Based on the conditions currently known to us, we do not believe that any
pending or likely remediation and compliance costs will have a matenal
adverse effect on our business

Acquisitions

Our strategy 1s based on organic growth and growth through acquisition
The opportunity to grow through acquisition depends on the avallability
of suitable businesses at an acceptable price It is the Group's practice 1o
obtain external advice on acquisitions and undertake full due diligence
to ensure the acquired business 15 understood fully In addition, we seek to
minimuse the nisks associated with the integration and achieving financial
and operational synergies through the development of detailed integration
plans The pnce paid and performance of the acquired business post
acqusition will impact our results 1n future penods

Legal proceedings

The Group 1s party to certan legal proceedings arising in the ordinary
course of business The results of such proceedings cannot be predicted
with certainty, but we do not believe any of these matters are matenal
to our financial condition or results of operations

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Presentation of financial information

Revenue

Our revenue Is a function of our rental rates and the size, utilisatron and
mix of our equipment rental fleet. The pnces we charge are affected

in large measure by utilisation and the relative attractiveness of our rental
equipment, while utilisation (s determined by market size and our market
share, as well as general econemic conditions Utilisation 15 tyme based
utihsatton which 15 calculated as the onginal cost of equipment on rent

as a percentage of the tota! onginal cost of equipment in the fleet at the
measurement date In the US, we measure time utilisation on those items
in our fleet with an anginal cost of $7,500 or more which constituted 87%
of our US serialised rental equipment at 30 Apnl 2007 In the UK, time
utihsation 1s measured for all our serialised rental equipment. The size,
mix and relative attractiveness of our rentat equipment fleet is affected
significantty by the level of cur capital expenditure

The main components of our revenue are

= revenue from egquipment rentals, including related revenues such as the
fees we charge for equipment delivery, erection and dismantling services
for our scaffolding rentals, fuel provided with the equipment we rent to
customers, and loss damage waiver fees, and

+ revenue from sales of new merchandise, including sales of parts and
revenues from a limited number of sales of new equipment.

The proceeds we generate from the disposal of used rental equipment do
not form part of revenue Instead we show the gain relative to book value
In our INcome staterment as other income In the year ended 30 Apnl 2007,
the underlying gain on sale of property, plant and equipment was £118m
(2006 £9 1m})

Operating costs

The main companents of aur operating costs before exceptional costs are

« staff costs — staff costs at our profit centres as well as at our centrai

support offices represent the largest single component of our total costs

Staff costs consist of salanes, profit share and bonuses, social secunity

costs, and other pension costs and compnsed 37 6% of our total

operating costs in the year ended 30 April 2007

other operating costs — compnsed 413% of total costs in the year ended

30 Apnl 2007 These costs include

— spare parts, consumabtes and outside repair costs — costs incurred for
the purchase of spare parts used by our workshop staff to maintain and
repair our rental equipment as well as outside repair costs,

— facilities costs — rental payments on leased facilities as well as utihity
costs and local property taxes relating to these facilines,

- vehicle costs - casts incurred for the matntenance and operation of our
vehicle fleet, which consist of our delivery trucks, the light commercial
vehicles used by our mobile workshop staif and cars used by our sales
force, profit centre managers and other management staff; and

— other costs — all other costs incurred In operating our business,
including the costs of new equipment and merchanduse sold
advertising costs and bad debt expense

depreciation — the depreciation of our property, plant and equipment

ncluding rental equipment, comprised 27 1% of total costs in the year

ended 30 Apnl 2007

L]




Pl ASHTEAD GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2007 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A large proportion of our costs are fixed n the short to medium term, and
materal adjustments in the size of our cost base typically result only from
openings or closures of one or more of our profit centres Accordingly, our
business model s such that small increases or reductions i our revenue
can result in Uttle or no change in our costs and often therefore have a
disproportionate impact on our profits We refer to this feature of our
business as "operational leverage”

Crnitical accounting policies

We prepare and present our financial statements in accordance with
applicable Internationat Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) [n applying
many accounting principles, we need to make assumptions, estimates

and judgements These assumptions, estimates and judgements are often
subjective and may be affected by changing circumstances or changes in
our analysis Changes in these assumptions, estmates and judgements have
the potential to matenally affect our results We have wdentified below
those of our accounting policies that we believe would most likety produce
matenally different results were we to change underlying assumptions,
estimates and judgements These policies have been applied consistently

Useful ives of property, plant and equipment

We record expenditures for property, plant and equiprment at cost. We
depreciate equipment using the straight-line method over its estimated
useful economic life (which ranges from 3 to 20 years with a weighted
average |ife of 8 years) We use an estimated residual value of 10% of cost
n respect of most types of our rental equipment, zero for scaffolding and
simular equipment, 15% for aenal work platforms and 20% for steel site
accommodation units We establish our estimates of useful life and residual
value with the objective of allocating most appropriately the cost of
property plant and equipment to our income statement over the penod
we anticrpate it will be used in our business

We may need to change these estimates if experience shows that the
current estimates are not achieving this objective If these estimates
change in the future, we may then need to recognise increased or
decreased depreciation expense Qur total depreciation expense in
the year ended 30 April 2007 was £160 7m

Impairment of assets

Goodwll 1s not amortised but 15 tested annually for impairment at 30 Apnl
each year Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are
reviewed for impainment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrymng amount may not be recoverable An imparrment
loss 15 recogrused in the income statement for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds ts recoverable amount. For the purposes
of assessing impairrnent, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately 1dentifiable and independent cash flows for the asset
being tested for imparment In the case of goodwill impairment 15 assessed
at the level of the Group's three reporting units The recoverable amount s
the higher of an asset s fair value less costs to sell and value in use

Management necessanly applies its judgement in estrmating the timing
and value of undertying cash flows within the value in use calculation as
well as determining the approprate discount rate Subsequent changes to
the magnitude and timing of cash flows could impact the carrying value
of the respective assets

Self-insurance

Wae establish provistons at the end of each financial year to cover our
estimate of the discounted liability for uninsured retained nisks on unpad
claims ansing out of events eccurmng up to the end of the finanaial year
The estimate includes events incurred but not reported at the balance
sheet date The prowision Is established using adwice recerved from external
actuaries who help us extrapolate histoncal trends and estimate the rmost
likely level of future expense which we will incur on outstanding claims
These estimates may, however change based on varying circumstances,
including changes in our experience of the costs we incur in settling claims
over ime Accordingly, we may be required to increase or decrease the
provision held for self-insured retained nsk. At 30 Aprd 2007, the totat
provision for self-insurance recorded in our consobidated balance sheet
was £208m (2006 £158m})

Pensions

We account for the cost of pension plans for employees by charging the
expected cost of providing pensians over the penod dunng which we
benefit from the employees’ services [n respect of defined benehits plans,
actuanial valuations are made regulary and the contributions payable

are adjusted in light of these valuations However, these adjustments may
be significant and may result in an increase or decrease 1n the cost of
provtding the defined benefit pensions In the year ended 30 April 2007

the total pension cosi was £4 7m of which £ 1rn was in respect of defined
benefit plans

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the total amount recewvable for the proviston of goods
and services to customers net of returns and value added tax Rental
revenue, sncluding toss damage waiver fees, 15 recognised on a straight

line basis over the penod of the rental contract. Because the terms and
condinions of a rental contract can extend across finanoia! reporting penod
ends, the Group records unbilled rental revenue and deferred revenue

at the beginning and end of the reporting penods so rental revenue 15
appropnately stated in the financial statements

Revenue from rental equipment delivery and collection is recognised when
delivery or collection has occured

Revenue from the sale of new equipment, parts and supplies, retail
merchandise and fuel 1s recogrised at the time of delivery to, or collection
by, the customer and when all obligations under the sales contract have
been fulfilled




H ASHTEAD GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2007 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

Full year 2007 results compared with pnor year

2007 2006
Before Befare
exceptional Exceptionat exceptional Exceptional
items 1tems, items Items
amortisation amortisation amorusaticn amortisation
and fair value and fair value anc farr value and fair vatue
r s remeasur nt: Total remessurements  remeasurernents Total
£m £m £m £m £Em Em
Revenue 896 1 - 8961 6380 - 6380
Staff costs (284 6) {(101) (2947) {(2001) 03 {2004}
Other operating costs (3130) (26 5) (339 5) (2223) (13) (223 6)
Other ncome 118 (09 109 91 150 241
EBITDA* 3103 {375) 2728 2247 134 2381
Depreciation {1598) {09) (160 7) {1136) - (11386)
Amortisation - {110} {110) - - -
Operating profit 1505 {49 4) 1011 1191 134 1245
Net financing costs (69 1) (68 5) (1376) (436} 08 (428)
Profit before taxation 814 (117 9) (36 5) 675 142 817
Taxation
- current (04) - 04 1) (54) (55)
- deferred {28 3) 731 448 (210} 04 (208)
Profit for the penod 527 (44 8} 79 454 92 556

"EBITDA is presented here as an adaiional performance measure as it 1s commonty used by investars and lenders

FULL YEAR 2007 RESULTS COMPARED WITH PRIOR YEAR

Revenue increased 48 2% at constant 2007 exchange rates to £896 1m and
by 40 5% at actual rates EBITDA before exceptional items grew by 46 2%
at constant exchange rates to £310 3m and by 38 1% at actual rates Total
EBITDA increased 14 6% at actual rates to £272 8m

Before exceptional items and amortisation, operating profit increased to
£150 5m, an increase of 44 7% at constant exchange rates and 35 5% at
actual rates After substantial exceptional items and armortisation relating
prncipally to the NationsRent acquisition, operating profit declined £23 4m
from £124 5m to £107 Tm in 2006/7 Return on investment reduced to

12 9% from 14 7% in 2005/6 reflecting the acquisition of the lower margin
NationsRent business Return on investment excluding capitalised goodwall
was 16 3% (2006 180%)

Divisional performance
Diwistonal results are summansed opposite and are stated before
exceptional items

Sunbelt

On a reported basis revenue increased 59 8% in the year to $1,307 9m
reflecting principally the NationsRent acquisition The table apposite shows
a pro forma performance companson assurming that NationsRent had been
acquired as of 1 May 2005

Sunbelt's pro forma combined revenues grew 8% n 2006/7 reflecting

* good growth in rental and rentai related revenues outside the humcane
affected areas of 9 6%,

= significant impact from hurmricane related revenues in the year to 30 April
2006 which was not repeated in the year to 30 Apnl 2007 when no
major hurmcane reached landfall in the US As a result rental and rental
related revenues in the main humcane affected states of Flonda, Alabama,
Mississippr and Louisiana rose only 5 7% over the previous year, and

« the application of the Sunbelt business model at NationsRent following
the acquisition which resulted in a reduction of $36m or 4 8% in new
equipment sales revenues
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Dvisional performance

Revenue EBITDA Operaung prafit
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Sunbelt in $m 13079 8187 4750 3079 2531 1755
Sunbett in £m 6846 4612 2486 1734 1325 989
A-Plant 1899 1607 589 489 201 139
Ashtead Technology 216 161 1no 80 62 40
Group central costs - - (8.2) {56) (83) {57}
896 1 6380 3103 2247 1505 1111
Sunbelt
Revenue €BITDA Operating profit
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
$m Sm sm sm Sm Sm
Sunbelt — as reported 13079 8187 4750 3079 2531 1755
NationsRent 2307 6058 571 1274 192 149
Pra forma combined 1,5386 1,424 5 532 1 4353 2723 1904
Pro forma margin 346% 306% 17 7% 134%

Pro forma doltar utiisation for the year to 30 Aprit 2007 was 62% and
compares to 56% n the previous year

On a pro forma basis operating costs {excluding depreciation) rose 1.8%

in the period to $1,006 Sm This reflected increased personnel costs and
higher maintenance costs to service current actmity levels as well as growth
in fuel and insurance costs offset by an early contnibution from cost savings
resulting from the integration of the regional and back office funcuons and
from the profit centre mergers.

Reflecting these develapments, pro forma EBITDA for the year grew 22 2%
to $532 1m and the pro forma EBITDA margin improved to 34 6% from
306% in 2006 Pro forma divistonal operating profit grew 43 1% to

$272 3m representing a margin of 17 7% (2006 13 4%}

Returming naw to the reported results which include NationsRent onty
fromits 31 August 2006 acquisition date, operating profit grew 44 2%
to $253 1m whilst the cperating profit margin declined from 21 4% n
2005/6 to 19 4% This dedine reflected the indusian of the less profitable
NationsRent business from 1 September 2006

In the coming year we expect that the opportunity to raise revenues at the
acquired NationsRent profit centres by reducng the large doltar ut:isation
gap idenufied above between the two compantes’ performance together
with the realisation of the regional and head office integration cost savings
{estimated at $48m in a full year) will enable Sunbelt to raise its operating
profit margin from that reported in the year to 30 Apnl 2007 Approxmately
$25m of the integration cost savings were realised (n the results for the
year to 30 April 2007

Return on investment including capitabised goodwill reduced to 14 0%
from 17 2% i 2006 Excluding capitalised goodwill, return on investment
reduced to 18 7% from 23 1% 1n 2006 These reductions reflect the
consolidation m this year's reported results of the underperforming
NationsRent business

Sunbelt’s results in sterling reflected the factors discussed above and the
weak US dollar
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A-Plant
Revenue _ EBITDA Operating prefit
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
N £m £m £m £m o £m £m
A-Plant — as reported 1899 1607 58.9 489 201 139
Lux Traffic 95 184 11 17 06 09
Pro forma combined 1994 1791 800 506 207 148
Pro forma margin 301% 283% 10 4% 82%

A-Plant

A-Plant s revenue for the year was £183 9m compared to £160 7m last
year This reflected same store growth of approximately 11% and the
acquisition of Lux Traffic Controls Limited on 16 October 2006 The pro
forma combined performance of A-Plant and Lux 1s shown above

On a pro forma combimed basis, revenue grew 11% to £199 4m This
reflected the restructunng of A-Plant’s sales force undertaken n 2005/6
which contributed to a sigmficantly improved performance Rental rates,
average fleet size and utilisation for the year alt improved with average
utihsation of 69% for the year (2006 65%), rate growth of 1% and a
fteet size which grew 5%

A-Plant’s sales operations are now structured in a single national
orgarusation to serve the diffenng requirements of national, regional and
local customers in a more focused way Senior sales management fesources
have been increased as has the size of the sales force to ensure that A-Plant
can address the needs of a UX construction market which continues to
show solid growth The emphasis placed by customers on health and safety
continues to increase and 1s dnving further outseurcing activity coupled
with a need for the rental equipment prowider to be able to monitor and
measure its performance across a range of key performance indicators
These trends are benefiting A-Plant which, with 1ts national presence and
established IT systems, 1s one of only a few providers able to meet nattonal
customers’ needs Revenues from its largest 150 customers continued to
grow and represented 42% of the year's total.

Operating costs before depreciation grew in line wath the revenue growth
whilst the depreciation charge reflected the 5% growth n average fleet
size Consequently pro forma EBITDA for the year increased 18 5% to
£60 0m representing an EBITDA margin of 30 1% compared to 28 3% in
2006 Pro forma divisional operating profit increased 40 4% to £20 7m
representing a margin of 10 4% (2006 8 2%)

On a reported basis the operating profit was £20 1m and the operating
margin was 106% (2006 8 6%)

Returns an investment increased to 8 8% from 7 0% in 2006 Excluding
goodwill, return on investment increased to 93% from 7 1% in 2006

Ashtead Technology
Revenue for the year grew 38 9% at constant exchange rates to £216m
and by 34 2% at actual exchange rates Dwisional operating profit increased

by 57 3% at constant exchange rates to £6 2m and by 53 0% at actual
exchange rates This reflects increased investment by the cil majors which
15 delivering higher offshore exploration and construction activity as well as
continued growth in Ashtead Technolagy's onshore environmental business
trvestrment for future growth included new profit centres in Baton Rouge
and Philadelphia Return on investrment was 35 1% (2006 29 4%)

Exceptional 1tems and fair value remeasurements of embedded
dernvatives

In addition to the trading results discussed abave, the consolidated income
statement includes significant exceptional costs relating to the acquisitions
of NationsRent and Lux as well as to the programme to improve A-Plant’s
operational efficiency The key elements of these costs are

NationsRent Lux rest:uc:uni-rj\; Other Total
Em im £Em Em Em
Debt redemption
costs paid at closing 421 - - - 421
Non-cash
financing costs 259 - - - 259
Integration &
closure costs 315 05 62 07 389
995 05 62 07 1069
Paid in cash in the year 601 04 G4 07 616
Payable in future years
—in less than one year 98 01 06 - 105
—mmore than one year 20 - ER:] - 58
MNon-cash items 276 - 14 - 290
995 05 €2 07 1069

NationsRent debt redemption costs relate to the prernia payable on
redeernung (a) the outstanding NationsRent secured bonds and (b) the
outstanding Ashtead 12% senior secured notes. These amounts were pard
in cash on 31 August 2006 but are required to be expensed in the ncome
statement and not taken to cost of acquisition because Ashtead made the
decision to redeem in order to facilitate the finanang of the acquisiion

Non-cash costs relating to NationsRent compnse {a) the non-cash write off
of the value placed on the early prepayment option in the Ashtead notes,
and {b) the write off of deferred financing costs on the Ashtead debt
redeemed in the acquisition refinancing
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NationsRent integration and closure costs comprise (a) redundancies and
severance costs of £7 2m to deliver the head office and regional integration
cost savings, (b) retention bonuses of £2 Om paid largely to redundant staff
to retain them until their services were no longer required, {c) provssion for
future rent on facilities vacated in Fort Lauderdale and in the merged profit
centres (£6 2m), (d) rebranding costs of £9 4m for the NationsRent profit
centres and fleet, and {e) £6 7m of other costs

Lux integration costs totalled £0 Sm. UK restructunng costs relate pnncipally to
a provision of £4 5m to write off leasehold improvernents and for future rent
and rates on faclbities vacated in the UK as we mvest in larger, better quakity
premuses which will serve a larger area with a bigger fleet than the facilities
they replace and accordingly provide greater efficiency through increased scale

Of the total exceptional costs incurred of £106 9m, £29 0m are non-cash
items whilst £671 6m of the cash items had been paid by year-end with
£16 3m te be paid in future penods £10 5m of this amount, mostly
relating to the rebranding prograrnme and to NationsRent redundancy
payments deferred for six months under the US tax code will be paid

n 2007/8 The remainder mostly relating to vacant property provisions,
will be payable over the following two to three years

Amortisation of acquired brand names and other acquired intangtbles
£110m of intangible amorusation, relating mostly to the NationsRent
acquisition was mcurred in the year This inctuded the amortisation of the
acquired NationsRent brand name (apprarsed cost — £9 4m) over the penod
from acquisition until 30 Apnl 2007 when the rebranding of the acquired fleet
and properties was essentially completed and the name was no longer in use

Net financing costs

Net financing costs for the year increased to £137 6m from £42 8m in
2006 due pnmanly to the additional debt taken on in the NationsRent
acqusition and to the exceptional financing costs incurred in delivenng
the new debt structure

Before exceptional costs and fair value remeasurements, net financing costs
increased from £43 6m to £69 im reflecting higher average debt levels
following the NationsRent acquisition and shghtly higher average interest
tates Cornpared to the previous year, the average interest rate benefited
from the repayment of the remaining 12% notes and from a lower margin
under our first prionty asset based senior secured loan facility, but these
benefits have been offset by increases in US dollar interest rates payable
under our floating rate semor facility The average interest rate payable at
30 April 2007 on all of our debt faclities {including the impact of
amortisation of deferred debt rasing costs) was 8%

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Reflecting the large exceptionat items there was a loss before taxation
of £36 Sm cormpared with a profit of £81 7m in 2006 Underying profit
before tax was £81 4m compared to last year s £67 S5m After taxation,
the profit for the year was £7 9m compared to £556m in 2006

Taxation
Overall for the year the effective accounting tax rate en the underlying profit
was 35% whilst the cash tax rate on the same basis remained minimal.

Following the refinancing of the Group at the time of the NationsRent
acquisition and the improved trading results at A-Plant, the Group has
recognised, as an exceptional profit, a previously unrecogmsed UK deferred
tax asset of £359m The remaining tax credt for the year of £8.5m compnses
a charge on profits before tax, exceptional items and intangible amortisation
of £28 7Tm and a deferred tax credit of £37.2m on the exceptional items and
intangible amortisattan The £28 7m undertying tax charge consists of a
current tax charge of £0 1m relating to Singapore (2006 £0 1m), a current
tax charge of £0 3m relating to the US {2006 £0 4m), a deferred tax charge
of £6 0m relating to the UK (2006 credit of £2 9m), a deferred tax charge of
£22 2m relating to the US (2006 charge of £23 5m), and a deferred tax
charge of £0 1m relating to Singapore (2006 £nif)

The Group anticipates that the value of its UK deferred tax asset will
reduce by £2 8m due to the proposed introduction of a lower rate of
corporation tax in 2007/8

As a result of the available tax losses in NationsRent (which ¢an be used
against the profits from the combined business) and the further tax loss
this year, attabutable largely to the exceptional integratton and refinancing
costs, as well as the substantial tax losses still available in the UK, the
Group does not expect to have to make significant tax payments in the
year to 30 Apnl 2008 and believes that it will still benefit from a cash tax
liability which 15 likely to be significantly lower than the accounting tax
provision for a number of years thereafter

Earmings per share

Undertying basic eamings per share were 10 3p whilst basic earmings per
share were 15p These compare to 13 3p and 13 5p a year ago with the
reduction in the undertying EPS attributable to the fact that 156 mllion
new ofdinary shares were issued in the period (mostly n the rights issue
at the time of the NationsRent acquisition) whereas, as yet, there has been
insufficient time to deliver all the planned acquisition and integration
benefits. On a cash tax basis, earnings per share before exceptional items
were 158p (2006 16 4p) Cash tax earnings per share compnses eamings
before exceptional items, fair value remeasurements and deferred tax,
drvided by the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue Cash tax
eamings per share s considered to be a relevant measure of earnings per
share as most of the deferred tax liability 15 not expected to crystallise n
the foreseeable future

Dividends

The directors are proposing to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
that a final dvidend of 1 1p per share be paid making a total for the year of
165p per share (2006 1 5p) The proposed final dvidend for this year wall,
if approved by shareholders, be paid on 28 September 2007 to shareholders
on the register on 7 September 2007

BALANCE SHEET

Property, plant and equipment

Principal arongst our property, plant and equipment is the rental
equipment fleet which compnses an extensive range of general
construction equipment, supplernented by more specialised product groups
such as pumps, welding equipment, power generation equipment, aerial
work platforms, scaffolding, shoring equipment and temporary
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accormmodation units The table below analyses capital expenditure in the
year between expenditure on the rental fleet and total expenditure

2007 2006
Rental Rental
equipment Total equipment Tatal
______________ _ £m _ fm L £m L fm
Opening balance 5599 6467 4529 5371
Exchange difference (48 4) (54 4) 163 186
Additions 256 4 2902 2018 2202
Acquisitions at
fair market value 3446 3852 322 353
Reclassifications (04) - 03 -
Disposals at
net book value (531) {59 0) (47 4) (509)
Depreciation {1384} {160 7) {96 2) {1136)
Closing balance 9206 1.0480 5599 6467
2007 2006
Growth Maintenance Total Total
Sunbelt i Sm 1022 2460 3482 2579
Sunbelt in £m 512 1230 1742 1419
A-Plant 171 567 738 521
Ashtead Technology 64 20 84 78
Total rental equipment 747 817 256 4 2018
Other fixed assets 338 184
Total additions 2902 2202

Capital expenditure was increased significantly in the year reflecting the
growth of the business following the NationsRent acquisition £74 7m of
the fleet expenditure was for growth with the rematnder being spent to
replace existing equipment This proportion 15 estimated on the basis of the
assurnption that maintenance capital expenditure in any penod 1s equal to
the onginal cost of equipment sold in that period Replacernent expenditure
inctuded £ 10m on reconfigunng the acquired NationsRent fleet to reduce
the proportion of lower returning assets and ncrease the proportion of
higher returning assets Expenditure on A-Plant’s rental fleet was also
ncreased from £52 1m to £73 8m as performance improved

Disposal proceeds amounted to £89 1m {2006 £63 7m} in the year, including
£19 2m from reconfiguration disposal proceeds. Exduding the reconfiguration
programme, disposals of £69 9m generated a profit on disposat of £118m
(2006 £9 1m) at a margin of 20% (2006 189%) above book value The
markets we use for disposing of used rentat equipment continue to be
healthy No gain or loss was recognised on the reconfiguration disposals as
these were treated as assets held for sale from the date of acquisit:on and
recorded at the acquisition date at net sale proceeds.

The average age of the Group's serialised rental equipment, which
constitutes the substantial majonity of our fleet, at 30 Apnl 2007 was 31
months on a net book value basis (2006 37 months) At the same date
Sunbelt's fleet had an average age of 32 months (2006 38 months)
compnsing 38 months for aenal work platforms which have a longer life

and 25 months for the rest of its fleet whilst A-Plant’s fleet had an average
age of 29 months (2006 36 months)

in the year ending 30 April 2008 gross capital expenditure 1s expected to be
approximatety £275m including NationsRent fleet reconfiguration spend
rolted over from 2006/7 Disposal proceeds of approximately £50m are
expected to give net capital expenditure of approximately £225m

Assets held for sale

This categary comprises the remaining NationsRent equipment identified
as held for sale as part of the programme to reshape its fleet to contain a
simular proport:on of higher returning assets to Sunbelt The lower returning
equipment is in the process of being disposed of and has been treated as
an asset held for sale, on which no depreciation has been charged, since the
acquisition date

Trade and other recewvables

Receivable days increased to 54 days (2006 49 days) Ths reflected the
fact that the NationsRent recervables collected more slowty than those

of Sunbelt The bad debt charge as a percentage of total revenue was 0 7%
wn both 2007 and 2006

Trade and other payables

Group payable days increased to 72 days at 30 Apnl 2007 from 57 days at
30 Apnit 2006 with the increase attributable to increased payment penods
agreed with certain suppliers of rental equipment following the
NationsRent acquisition Capital expenditure related payables at 30 Apnl
2007 totalled £47 0m (2006 £300m} Payment penods for purchases other
than rental equipment vary between 7 and 60 days and for rental
equipment between 30 and 120 days

Other provisions

Other provisions of £32 3m (2006 £18 3m) relate prncipally to the provision
far self-insured retained nsk under the Group's self-insurance policies as well
as to the vacant property provisions discussed under exceptional items above
The Group s business expases it to claims for personal injury, death or
property damage resulting from the use of the equipment it rents and from
Injunes caused in motor vehicle accrdents in which 1ts vehicles are involved
The Group carmies insurance covenng a wide range of potential daims at
levels it believes are sufficient to cover exssting and future claims. Our biability
insurance programmes provide that we can recover only the liability related
to any particular daim in excess of an agreed excess amount of typically
between $500,000 and $2m depending on the particular lability programme
In certan, but not all, cases this lability excess amount 1s subject to an
annual cap, which imits the Group’s maximurn hiability in respect of these
excess amounts to such annual cap Our insured lability coverage 1s limited
to a maximum of £100m per occurrence

Pensions

The Group operates a number of pension plans for the benefit of its employees,
for which the overall charge included in the financial statements was £4 7m
(2006 £28m) Amongst these, the Group now has just one defined benefit
pension plan which covers approximately 280 employees in the UK and
which was closed to new members in 2001 All our other pension plans are
defined contribution plans
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The Group's defined benefit pension plan was, measured in accordance
with IAS 19, Employee Benefits, £5 2m in surplus at 30 Apnl 2007 Dunng
the year asset values increased by £09rn over and above the expected
return on plan assets of £3 8m included in the incomie statement In
addition, the required market linked discount rate increased from 50% in
2006 to 5 5% in 2007, reducing the value of liabilities by £3 9m while we
also we strengthened the mortality assumptions to the “medium cohort”
which increased the value of Labilities by £2 3m Accordingly, there was a
net gain of £2 5m in the year which was credited direct to the staterment
of recognised income and expense

Under the medwm cohort assumptions, the bfe expectancy for a plan
member 1s as follows

Male Female
Pensioner aged 65 in 2007 867 890
Pensioner aged 65 in 2020 875 897

CASH FLOW AND NET DEBT

The Group's flexble business model altows us to focus on generating free
cash flow When the economy 15 expanding, we utilise thss free cash flow
to increase investment m our rental fleet to support revenue, EBITDA and
earnings growth and reduce the age of our rental fleet. In a less favourable
economic envirgnment, we reduce the rate at which we invest in new
equipment and increase the age of our rental fleet which consequently
increases free cash flow

Free cash flow in the year ended 30 Apnl 2007 (which 1s defined to exctude
exceptional costs and which comprises our net cash inflow from operaticns
excluding exceptional items, less net maintenance capital expenditure,
interest and tax) 1s summarised below

2007 2006
£m fm

EBITDA before exceptional tems 3103 2247

Cash inflow from operations

before exceptional items 3193 2152

Maintenance rental capital expenditure (2131} (1499)
Non-rental capital expenditure (32 3) {168)
Proceeds from sale of used rental equipment 785 504

Tex paid {50} (28)
Free cash flow before interest 147 4 96 1

Financing costs paid (64 2) (387)
Free cash flow after interest 832 574

Growth capital expenditure (62.9) {626)
Acquisitions and disposals (327.2) {44 2)
Issue of ordinary share capital 1489 709

Dividends paid (7 0} (20)
Purchase of own shares by ESOT (49} (28)
Pension plan funding - {17 1}
Exceptional costs pad (68 8) (22}
Increase in total debt (238 7) (28)

Cash inflow from operations reflected pnnaipally the growth in reported
EBITDA before exceptional items Consequently, cash mflow from
operations increased 48 4% to £319 3m and the cash efficency ratic was
102 9% (2006 95 8%) as we continued to convert almost all our EBITDA
nta cash Cash efficiency was enhanced by the reductions we effected in
the level of mventory at NattonsRent.

Net maintenance rental capital expenditure ncreased to £134 6m (2006
£99 5m) as we again spent ahead of depreciation to reduce the age of
our rental fleets Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment,
princepally used equipment, rose 558% to £78 5m (2006 £50 4m) and
represented 37% (2006 34%) of maintenance capital expenditure
Expenditure on non-rental capital expenditure (principally leasehold
improvernents, vehicles and computer equipment) was £32 3m with the
increase over last year's £16 8m reflecting principally higher delivery truck
replacements as we continue to migrate our delivery fleet from off balance
sheet leased vehicles to owned vehicles Cash tax payments in the year
were £50m Finanaing costs {excluding exceptional financing costs) paid
were broadly in line with the accounting charge, the pnnapal difference
beng non-cash financing costs

Acquisition and disposal expenditure of £327 2m relates to the acquisitions
of NationsRent and Lux with the majonty of the proceeds from the issue
of share capital of £148 9m relating to the nghts issue i1 conmection with
the NationsRent acquisition The NationsRent acquisition was completed
on 37 August 2006 and in addition to the equity 1ssue included the 1ssue
of $550m of new second lien 9% senior secured notes due 2016 The
proceeds of the rights issue and the debt ssue were applied, together with
drawings under the Group's $1 75bn senior credit facdity, to fund the
acquisition, mcluding refinancing the acquired debt, repaying our previous
$800m senor credit facility and redeerrung £78m of 12% second prionty
senior secured loan notes due 2014

Payments for exceptional items of £68 8m differ from the exceptional
income statement expense of £91 5m due to {a) the inclusion in
exceptional payments of £7 2m of interest paid at closing on the
NationsRent debt redeemed which was expensed prior to acquisition,

{b} non-cash items of £13 6m included in the tncome statement expense,
and {c) accrued integration costs of £16 3m which have not yet been paid

Based on current projections, the Group expects to be able to fund its
cash requirements relating to its operations from existing sources of cash
including its commutted borrowing facilities for at least the next 12 months
It expects that the pnncipal needs for cash relating to existing operations
over the next 12 months will be to

» fund operating expenses and working capital,

» fund the purchase of rental equipment and other capital expenditures, and
= service outstanding debt.

While emphasising pnmarily internal growth the Group also expects to
continue to expand through making acquisitions that 1t would expect to
fund by using cash, share capital and/or the assumption of debt
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Net debt

2007 2006
£m £m

First prionty semor secured bank debt and overdraft 506 1 2632
Finance lease obligations 220 232
12% second prionty semior secured notes, due 2014 - 755
B625% second prionty semior secured notes, due 2015 1206 1327
9% second prionty sentor secured notes, due 2016 2683 -
9170 4946

Cash at bank and in hand (11) (10)
Total net debt 9159 4936

Net debt at 30 Apnil 2007 was £915 9m (2006 £493 6m) Measured at
constant (30 Apnl 2007) exchange rates, the increase i net debt from
30 Apnl 2006 was £442 Tm Although net debt has increased, largely due
to the NationsRent acquisition, the sigmificant growth in EBITDA has
resuited i1 the ratio of net debt to pro forma E8ITDA before exceptional
iterns reducing from 3 2 umes at the time of the NationsRent acquisition
to 2 7 times at 30 Aprl 2007

Bank loan facility

On 31 August 2006, the Group agreed a new 51 75bn first prionty asset
based senior secured loan facility ("the ABL facility”} The ABL facility
consists of a $1 5bn revolving credit facility and a $250m term loan and 1s
secured by a first pnonty interest in substantially all of the Group's assets
Pricing 1s based on the ratio of funded debt to EBITDA according to a gnd
which varies depending on leverage, from LIBOR plus 200bp to LIBOR plus
175bp for term borrowings and frorm LIBOR plus 225bp to LIBOR plus
150bp for revolver barrowings At 30 Apnl 2007 the Group's borrowing rate
was LIBOR plus 175bp on both the term loan and the revolver loan

The ABL facility carnes minimal amertisation of 1% per annum ($2 5m)
on the term loan and 15 commutted until August 2011

The ABL facility includes a springing covenant package under which
quarterly financial performance covenants are tested only 1f the availabihity
under the facility 1s less than $125m These covenants compnse a
maximum ratio of total debt to EBITBA and a mimimum fixed charge ratto
{the ratio of EBITDA less capital expenditure net of disposal proceeds to
the sum of cash interest, taxes, distnbutions to equity holders and
scheduled prinapal debt repayments) Available liquidity under the ABL
facility at 30 Apnl 2007 was £295m ($589m) As the ABL facility 15 asset
based the maximum amount available to be borrowed (which includes
drawings in the form of standby letters of credit) depends on asset values
(recervables, mventory, rental equiprment and real estate) which are subject
to penodic independent appraisal.

Because liquidity at 30 Aprit 2007 much exceeded the $125m spanging
covenant level, together with the fact that neither of the Group's other
debt facilities (the semior secured notes due 2015 and 2016) contain
regularty measured financial covenants, the Group does not have any
quarterty monitored finanaal performance covenants to adhere to currently
and does not expect to have to adhere to them in the coming year

8625% second prionty senior secured notes due 2015 having a nominal
value of $250m

On 3 August 2005 the Group, through its wholty owned subsidiary Ashtead
Holdings ple, issued $250m of 8 625% second priority sentor secured notes
due T August 2015 The notes are secured by second prionty secunty
interests aver substantially the same assets as the first pnority sentor
secured credit facility and are guaranteed by Ashtead Group plc

9% second priority senior secured notes due 2016 having a nominal value
of $550m

On 15 August 2006 the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary
Ashtead Capital, Inc , 1ssued $550m of 9% second prionty semor secured
notes due 15 August 2016 The notes are secured by second priority
security interests over substantsally the same assets as the sentor secured
credit facility and are also guaranteed by Ashtead Group plc The two note
1ssues rank pan passu on a second lien basis

Under the terms of both the 8 625% and 9% notes the Croup 15, subject
to important exceptions, restricted in #ts abibity to incur additional debt,
pay dividends, make investments, sell assets, enter mto sale and leaseback
transactions and merge or consolidate with another company Interest is
payable on the 8625% notes on 1 February and 1 August of each year and
on the 9% notes on 15 February and 15 August of each year Both semior
secured notes are listed on the Official List of the UK Listing Authornity

Minimum contracted debt comnutments

The table opposite summanses the maturity of the Group s debt and
also shows the mintmum annual commitments under off balance sheet
operating leases at 30 Apnl 2007 by year of expiry

Operating leases relate pnnapally to properties (mast of which are leased)
which constituted 97 8% {£232 Om} of our total minimum operating lease
commitments There are also a few remaining operating leases relating to
the vehicle fleet and plant and machinery which constituted the rermaining
2 2% (£5 3m) of such commitments

Except for the off balance sheet operating leases described above, £18 6m
(537 2m) of standby letters of credit issued at 30 April 2007 under the
first pnonty sentor debt facility relatmg to the Group's self-insurance
programmes and a 50 6m performance guarantee utilised by Sunbelt, we
have no material commercial commitments that we could be obligated
to pay in the future which are not included in the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group reports in sterling and pays dividends in sterling It ss the role of
the Croup treasury function to manage and morutor the Group s intemal
and external funding requirements and financiat nsks in support of the
Group's corporate objectives, Treasury actamties are governed by poliaies
and procedures approved by the Board and monitored by the Finance and
Adrrunistration Commuitee In particular, the Board of directors or, through
delegated authority, the Finance and Administration Commuttee, approves
any derwative transactions Dervative transachons are only undertaken for
the purposes of managing interest rate nsk and currency nisk The Group
does not trade in financizl instruments The Group maintaing treasury
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Minimum contracted debt commitments

Payments due by year
2008 2009 2010 on 2012 Thereafter Total
£m Em Em £m £m fm Em

Bank and other debt 13 14 13 12 5009 - 506 1
Finance leases? 77 57 55 30 01 - 220
8 625% senior secured notes® - - - - ~ 1206 1206
9 0% senior secured notes* - - - - - 2683 268 3

90 71 68 42 5010 3889 9170
Cash at bank and i hand n - - - - - (11}
Net debt 79 71 68 42 s010 3889 9159
Operating leases® 352 295 214 170 142 1200 2373
Total 431 366 282 212 5152 5089 11532
1 Represents the scheduled matunties of our bank and other cebt for the perads indicated
2 Represents the future rinimurn tease payments under our finance leases
3 Represents the camying value of the $250m second prionty secured notes
4 Represents the camying value of the $550m secand pronty secured notes
5 Represents the mimimum payments to which we were committed under operating leases
control systems and procedures to marutor liquidity, currency, credit and Group has arranged its financing such that approximately 98% of its debt
financial nisks 15 also denorminated in US dollars so that there s a natural partial offset

between its dollar-denominated net assets and earmings and 1ts dallar-

Liquidity denominated debt and interest expense
The Group generates significant free cash flow (defined as cash flow from
operations less replacernent capital expenditure net of proceeds of asset Based upon the level of US operations and of the US dollar-denorminated
disposal, interest paid and tax paid) This free cash flow is available to the debt balance and US interest rates at 30 Apnl 2007, a 1% change i the US
Group to Invest in growth capital expenditure acgquisitions and dividend doltar-pound exchange rate would impact our pre-tax profits by 08% At
payments or to reduce debt 30 Apnl 2007, the Group had no outstanding foreign exchange contracts
In addition to the strong free cash flow from normal trading activities, The Group's exposure to exchange rate movements on trading transactions

addivonal liquidity s available through the Group's ABL facility At 30 Apnl is relatvely lirrited All Group companies invoice revenues in their

2007, availabiity under this facility was $589m (£295m) Furthermore the  respective local currency and generally incur expense and purchase assets

Group seeks to mamtain leverage at an average of 2 to 3 times net debt to  in therr local currency Consequently, the Group does not routinely hedge

EBITDA over the econamic cycle either forecast fareign exchange exposures or the impact of exchange rate
movements on the translation of overseas profits into stering Foreign

46% of the Group s drawn debt is at a fixed rate Also, the Group perodically  exchange nisk on significant non-trading transactions (e g acquisitions)

utilises Interest rate swap agreements to manage and mitigate is exposure 15 considered on an individual basis,

to changes n nterest rates However, at 30 April 2007, the Group had no

such qutstanding swap agreements. The Group's debt that bears interest Credit nsk management

at a vanable rate compnises all ousstanding borrowings under the semior The Group's principal financial assets are cash and bank balances and trade
secured credit facility The interest rates currently applicable to thusvariable  and other recevables The Group’s credit nsk 1s pnmanly attnbutable to
rate debt are LIBOR as applicable to the currency borrowed (US dellars or its trade receivables The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net
pounds) plus 175bp for both term borowangs and revolver borrowings of allowances for doubtful recevables The credit nsk on liquid funds and

denvative frnancial instruments 1s imited because the counterparties
At 30 Apnl 2007, based upon the amount of vaniable rate debt outstanding,  are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
the Group's pre-tax profits would change by approximately £5m for each agencies The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. with
one percentage pomnt change in interest rates applicable to the vanable exposure spread over a large number of customers
rate debt. The amount of the Group’s variable rate debt may fluctuate as
a result of changes in the amount of debt outstanding under the revolving
tranches of the semor secured credit facility

Currency exchange nsk management IAN ROBSON
The Group's reporting currency 1s the pound sterling However, a majority FINANCE DIRECTOR
of our assets, liabilities, revenue and costs 1s denominated in US dollars The 25 june 2007
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1 Chns Cole
Non-executsve Chairman
Aged 60, Chnis Cole has been a director since January 2002 and was
appointed as non-executive Chairman from 1 March 2007 at which time
he stepped down as Chaiman of the Remuneration Commuttee, a role
he had performed since September 2003 Mr Cole 1s Chairman of the
Nomenation Comrittee and a member of the Finance and
Administration Commuttee Mr Cole 15 Chief Executive of WSP Group plc

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

2 Geoff Drabble
Chief Executive
Aged 47, Geoff Drabble was appointed as Chief Executive on 1 jJanuary
2007 having served as Chief Executive designate from 2 October 2006
Mr Drabble was previously an executive director of The Laird Group PLC
where he was responstble for its Building Products division Prior to
jotnng The Laird Group, Mr Drabble held a number of serior management
positions at Black & Decker Mr Drabble 15 Chairman of the Finance and
Adrrurustration Commuttee and a member of the Nomination Commuitee

3 lan Robson
Finance Director
Aged 48, lan Rabson has been Finance Director since June 2000 Pnor
to June 2000 Mr Robson held a senes of semior finarkial posittons
at Reuters Group plc for four years Before joining Reuters Group plc,
Mr Robson was a partrier at Price Waterhouse (now PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP) Mr Robson is 2 member of the Finance and Adrmimistration Committee

4 Chff Miller
President and Chief Executive Officer, Sunbelt
Aged 44, CLff Miller was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer
of Sunbelt and as one of our directors in July 2004 Mr Miller has more
than 20 years’ experience in the rental industry and joined the Group 0
1996 with the acquisition of McLean Rentals. From that time unti 2003
he was Vice President responsible for Sunbelt's North-Eastern division
Subsequently, he was one of two Executive Vice Presidents responsible
for all of Sunbeit’s front line operations before assuming his current role
n 2004

5 Sat Dharwal
Chief Executive Officer, A-Plant
Aged 38, Sat Dhaiwal has been Chief Executive Officer of A-Plant and a
director since March 2002 Mr Dhaiwal was Managing Director of A-Plant
East, one of A-Plant’s four operational reglons, from May 1998 to March
2002 Before that he was an A-Plant trading director from 1995 and,
prior to 1985, managed one of A-Plant’s profit centres Mr Dhaiwal has
some 20 years’ expenence in the equipment rentat mdustry

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

6 Hugh Ethendge
Senior independent non-executive director
Aged 57, Hugh Ethendge has been a director, Chaiman of the Audit
Commuttee and a member of the Rermuneration and Nomination
Committees since January 2004 Mr Ethendge was appointed as senior
independent non-executive director on 1 March 2007 Mr Ethendge is
Chief Financral Officer of the Waste and Resources Action Programme
(“WRAP") a non-profit orgamisation established by the UK Government
to promote sustainable waste managernent. Before joimng WRAP,
Mr Ethendge was Finance Director of Waste Recycling Group plc and,
prior to that, of Matthew Clark plc

7 Gary Icetan
independent non-executive director
Aged 57, Cary Iceton was appointed as a non-executive director and
a member of the Audit and Nomination Commuittees effective from
1 September 2004 Mr lceton also becarne Chairman of the Remuneration
Commutiee on 1 March 2007 Untit 2000 he was a director of St Ives ple
and Chairman and Chief Executive of its Books Division More recently,
he was Chairman of Jarrold Limited and, prior to that, Chief Executive
Officer of Amertrans

8 Michael Burrow
independent non-executive director
Age 54, Michael Burrow was appointed as a non-executive director
and member of the Audit and Remuneration Commuttees effective
from 1 March 2007 Mr Burrow was formerly Managing Director of
the Investment Banking Group of Lehman Brothers Europe Limited

9 Bruce Edwards
Independent non-executive director
Age 52, Bruce Edwards was appointed as a non-executive director on
8 lune 2007 Mr Edwards s the Global Chief Executive Officer for Exel
Supply Chain at Deutsche Post World Net, following its acquisition of
Exel PLC in December 2005 Prior to the acquisition Mr Edwards was
a director of Exet PLC and Chief Executive of its Amencas businesses
Mr Edwards 15 also a non-executve director of Greif Inc, a NYSE-lsted
packaging and container manufacturer He s an American atizen and
lives in Columbus, Ohio

Detatls of the directors’ contracts, emoluments and share interests can
be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors present their report and the audited accounts for the financial
year ended 30 Apnl 2007

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company (s that of an investment holding and
managernent cormpany The principal activity of the Group 1s the rental of
equipment to :ndustnal and commercial users mainly in the non-residential
construction sectors i the US and the UK

TRADING RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's consolidated loss before taxation for the year was £36 5m
(2006 profit of £81 7m) A review of the Group's performance and future
development, including the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the
Group, 1s given in the Business and Financial Review on pages 14 to 31
These disclosures form part of thss report The Group paid an interim
didend of 0 55p per ordinary share in February and the directors
recommend the payment of a final dividend of 1 1p per ordinary share,
to be paid on 28 September 2007 to thase shareholders on the register
at the close of business on 7 Septernber 2007, making a total dividend
for the year of 165p (2006 15p)

SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

Details of the Comnpany's share capital are given in note 18 to the financial
statements So far as the Company 15 aware, the only holdings of 3%
or more of the 1ssued share capital of the Company as at 22 june 2007
{the latest practicable date before approval of the financial statements)
are as follows

%
Aviva plc 73
Barclays Bank plc 69
Legal and General plc 40
Lloyds TSB Group plc 34
UBS AG 31

Details of directors’ interests in the Company's ordinary share capitat and
In options over that share capital are given in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 40 to 48 Details of all shares subject to option are given
In the notes to the financial statements on page 74

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

Details of the directors of the Company are given on pages 32 and 33

Each of the directors as at the date of approval of this report cenfirms,

as required by section 234 of the Companies Act 1985 that to the best

of therr knowledge and belief

(1) there is no significant information known to the director relevant
to the audit of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

{2) each director has taken reasonable steps to make himself aware of
such information and to establish that the Company's auditors are
aware of it

The Company has maintained insurance throughout the year to cover all
directors against liabilities in refation to the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings

PQUICY ON PAYMENT OF SUPPLIERS

Suppleers are paid w accordance with the individual payment terms agreed
with each of them The number of Group creditor days at 30 Apnl 2007
was 72 days (30 Apnl 2006 57 days) which reflects the terms agreed with
inénidual suppliers There were no trade creditors in the Company's balance
sheet at any time during the past two years

POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Chantable donations in the year amounted to £52.839 in total
(2006 £29,914) No palitical donations were made in asther year

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

The Group 15 commutted to the highest standards of corporate
responsibility It places a high prionty on complance with all legistative and
regulatory requirements, and on the maintenance of high ethical standards,
across the Group We seek continually to improve our performance in terms
of employee development and health and safety in particular, as without
the highest standards in these areas, our business mode! simply would not
work, Over the coming year we intend to formalise and coordinate these
indvdual corporate responssbility initiatives across all our temtories and

to increase the reporting of these at Group level.

Employees

Qur employees are our greatest asset and we place enormous value on the
welfare and commitment of our employees as well as the supenor level of
service they provide for our customers At 30 April 2007, the total number
of employees worldwide was 10,077 Our employees all benefit from
extensive on the job training schemes and are highly incentivised to delver
supenor standards of work and customer service We have taken action
consistently through the year to maintain and develop arrangements aimed
at involving employees in 1ts affairs Far example, monthly meetings are
held at profit centres 1o discuss the previous month’s performance We
pride ourselves an many of our staff remaining with us throughout ther
careers, something which 1s increasingly uncommon 1n the commercial
world A significant number of our most senior operational staff started out
at entry level within our profit centres and thesr continunty of employment
Is testament to the Group's focus on employee development throughout
their careers We are committed to ensuring equal opportunities for all

our staff We make every reasonable effort to give disabled applicants,

and existing employees becoming disabled, opportunities for work, training
and career development in keeping with their aptitudes and abilities

Health and safety

In all our markets we have extensive programmes to develap and maintain
the highest standards of health and safety for both our employees and our
customers. A copy of the relevant formal statement of the Group’s policy
on health and safety 1s on display at profit centres in the UK and the US
We make a considerable annuatl investment in ensuring that our equipment
meets or exceeds the latest safety standards We also employ an internat
health and safety audit team to ensure that the correct health and safety
precautions are in place throughout every aspect of our business Education
1s key to improving safety standards across the industnes that we serve
The Group is at the forefront of the drve to promote higher standards and
educate our customers and employees about new and improved methods
to ensure a safe operating environment.
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Safeguarding the environment

The Group 1s commutted to rmumemising any risk or negative impact our

business may have on the environment. Dunng the course of its business,

the Group impacts the environment prncipally through the disposal of
waste olls, lubncants and through fuefl emussions, as well as through the
disposal of effluent Across our terntones, our operating philosophy involves

a commitment to

» reduce the quantity of waste we produce and to dispose of 1t correctly,

« supply and run correctly maintained equipment to reduce both fuel and
naise pollution

» purchase and supply, where possible, equipment which 1s energy and
noise efficient,

» encourage the use of recycled matenals where these are financially viable
including encouraging suppliers to improve the environmental standards
of thesr products,

« maximise transport efficiency for both environmental and commercial
benefit,

« ensure that our fuel storage facilities, both fixed and mobile, conform to
relevant guidance to reduce the nsk of contamination,

» establish optimal procedures to deal with il or fuel spillage including
notifying the relevant enforcing authonty; and

» identify and correctly handle potentially hazardous waste material in
accordance with the regulations in each of our temtortes

We expect to report more fully on our environmental imitiatives 1n next
year’s Annual Report.

Customers and suppliers

We set out to apply a “Customer First " culture and aim to build partnerships
to enable our custormers to do more, more effectively, over the long term
We try to put our custormers’ needs first in everything, from concept and
planning through to delwvery and post-contract, and offer a range of
benefits such as our pioneenng extranet faclity gmng qualifying customers
on-line real-time account tracking We have a national account
management function in both the US and UK and offer preferred or sole
supplier agreements, whereby customners can reduce therr equipment
supplier bases with bespoke arrangements that can provide significant
savings in tme and money as well as enhancing safety In addition, we
invest heavity 1n new equipment, selecting only brand leaders as suppliers,
building long-term relationships with them to ensure we offer the highest
quality equipment.

Contnbuting to the community

The Group recognises the importance of giving back to the communities
whaere we do business We have a number of community programmes
across both the US and the UK as well as individual initiatives at a number
of our profit centres.

AUDITORS

Delortte & Touche LLP has indicated its wallingness to continue in office and
in accordance with section 385 of the Comparies Act 1985, a resolution
concerning Its re-appointment and authonsing the directors to fix its
remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting will be held at 2 30 pm on Tuesday,

25 September 2007 Notice of the meeting Is set out 1n the docurment
accompanying this Report and Accounts. In addition to the adoption of the
2006/7 Report and Accounts, the declaration of a final dvidend, resolutions
dealing with the appointment and re-electron of directors and the
resolution dealing with the approval of the Directors’ Remuneration Report,
there are four other matters which will be considered at the Annuat General
Meeting These relate to the reappointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP a3
auditors, the ability for the directors to unconditionally allot shares up to
approximately one-third of the Company's share capital, the disapplication
of pre-emption rights in relation to the previous resolution and
empowering the Company to buy back up to 5% of its issued share capital.
These resolutions update for a further year similar reselutions approved by
shareholders in previous years

By order of the Board

ERIC WATKINS
COMPANY SECRETARY
25 June 2007
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The revised Combined Cade on corporate governance was published mn july
2003 by the Financial Reporting Council (“the 2003 FRC Code”) following a
review of the role and effectiveness of non-executive directors by Sir Derek
Higgs and a review of audit commuttees by a group led by Sir Robert Smith

The Company 1s committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance The Board recognises that 1t 1s accountable to the Company's
shareholders for corporate governance and this statement descnbes how
the Company has applied the relevant principles of the 2003 FRC Code

The Company complied throughaout the year with the provisions of the
2003 FRC Code on corporate governance except that the composition

of the Board and sub-committees did not comply with the independence
provssions as described below Following recent changes to the Board, it
and its sub-committees are now m compliance with the FRC Code 2003

THE BOARD

The Company’s Board comprises the non-executive chairman the chief
executive, the finance directar, the executive heads of Sunbelt and A-Plant,
the sensor independent non-executsve director and three other non-
executive directors Short bographues of the directors are given on page 33

The chairman undertakes leadership of the Board by agreeing Board
agendas and encourages 1ts effectiveness by the provision of timely,
accurate and clear information on alt aspects of the Group’s business
to enable the Board to take sound decisions and promote the success
of the business The chairman, assisted by other directors, reviews the
effectiveness of each member of the Board no less than annually and
faclitates constructive relationships between the executive and non-
executive directors through both formal and informal meetings

The chairman ensures that all directors are bnefed properly to enable them
1o discharge their duties effectively All newly appointed directors undertake
an induction to all parts of the Group's business Additionally, detatted
management accounts are sent moenthly to all Board members and
advance of all Baard meetings, an agenda and appropnate documentation
in respect of each item to be discussed is airculated

The chairman facilitates effecteve cornmumication wath shareholders
through both the Annual General Meeting and by individual meetings
with major shareholders to develop an understanding of the views of the
investors 1n the business. He also ensures that sharehclders have access
to other directors, inctuding non-executive directors, as appropnate

The chief executive’s role 15 to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the
Group within a framework of prudent and effective controls, which enables
nsk to be assessed and managed The chief executive undertakes the
leadership and responsibility for the directton and managemnent of the day-
to-day business and conduct of the Group In doing so, the chief executive’s

rote includes, but 15 not restricted to, implementing Board decisions,
delegating responsibility and reporting to the Board regarding the conduct,
activities and performance of the Group The chief executive chairs the
Sunbelt, A-Plant and Ashtead Technology board meetings and sets policies
and direction to maxuTuse returns to shareholders

All directors are responsible under the law for the proper conduct of the
Company's affairs. The directors are also responsible for ensuring that the
strategies proposed by the executive directors are discussed in detail and
assessed cntically to ensure they conform with the long-term interests of
shareholders and are compatible with the interests of employees,
custormers and suppliers The Board has reserved to itself those matters,
which reinforce its control of the Company These include treasury policy,
acquisitions and disposals, appontment and removal of directors or the
company secretary, appointment and removal of the auditors and approval
of the annual accounts

Regular reports and briefings are provided to the Board, by the executive
directors and the company secretary, to ensure the directors are suitably
briefed to fulfil their roles The Board normally meets six times a year and
there i1s contact between meetings te advance the Company s activities
It 15 the Board s usual practice to meet at least annually at the offices of
Sunbelt and A-Plant The directors also have access 1o the company
secretary and are able to seek independent advice at the Company's
expense

The Board's terms of reference are avadable for inspect:on at the Annual
General Meeting

All directors are subject to election by shareholders at the first Annual
General Meeting after their appointment and to re-election thereafter

at intervals of no more than three years Non-executive directors are
appoimted for specified terms not exceeding three years and are subject to
re-election and the provision of the Comparees Act relating to the removal
of a dwrector

In accordance with the Company s articles of association, Mr Dhawal,

Mr Ethendge and Mr Iceton will offer themselves for retirement and
re-election to the Board at the next Annuat General Meeting As this will
be the first Annual General Meeting since their appaintment to the Board,
Mr Burrow and Mr Edwards will also offer themselves for election

NEW CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr Drabble’s selectton as the Group's new chief executive was announced
i June 2006 Prior to his appointment the Nomination Commuttee led an
extensive search considering both interal and external candidates for the
role in the ight of Mr Burnett’s decision to retire at the end of December
2006 This search was supported by an external search firm and resulted in
the conclusion that Mr Drabble was the candidate best suited for the position
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Duning the last year the composition of the Board did not comply with
the requirement of the FRC Code that at least half the Board, excluding
the chawman, should comprise independent non-executive directors

In addition, for a short period foltowing his appointment as chairman,
and whilst he was intenm chairman, Mr Cole was a member of the
Rernuneration and Audit Committees Following the retirement as a
director of Mr Lovegrove on 30 Apnl 2007 and the appwintment of

Mr Edwards as a director on 8 June 2007, the Board and sub-committee
composition 15 tn compliance wath the FRC Code 2003

In the recruitment of non-executive directors, 1t 1s the Group’s practice to
utlise the services of an external search consultancy and this was the case
with the selection of Mr Burmow and Mr Edwards who were engaged
following an extensive search for indivaduals with relevant financial and
aperational experence

An external search consultancy was nat, however, used in the recruitment
of the chairman Followtng the untimely death of the Group's previous
chairman the Board accepted the recommendation of the Nomination
Comrmittee that Chis Cole, the Group's senior independent non-executive
director since September 2003 be appointed as interim chairman with
effect from October 2006 After giving the matter due consideration and
having worked with Mr Cole 1n fus capacity as non-executive director since
January 2002 and latterly as interirn chairman, the Board took the view
that considering Mr Cole’s long-term knowledge of the Group’s business
and his expenence as chief executive of an international plc he had both
the knowledge and breadth of experience required to fulfil the role as
Group chairman Having satisfied itself that Mr Cole could devote the
requisite time to the role of chairman the Board, supported by the
Normunauon Committee, concluded that no advantage would be gained

by utilssing the services of an external search agency in searching for other
candidates with this experience and instead deterrmined to appoint Mr Cole
as chairman

Before appointment, ron-executive directors are required to assure the
Board that they can gwve the time commitment necessary to fulfil properly
therr duties, both tn terms of availability to attend meetings and discuss
matters on the telephone and meeting preparstion time The non-
exacutives’ letters of appointment are available for nspection at the
Annual General Meeting

The non-executive directors {ncluding the charman) meet as and when
required in the absence of the executive directors to discuss and appraise
the performance of the Board as a whole and the performance of the
executive directars In accordance with the FRC Code, the non-executive
directors, led by the serwor independent non-executive director, also
meet annually in the absence of the chairman to discuss and appraise
his performance

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The performance of the chairman, the chief executive, the Board and

its commuttees s evaluated, amongst other things, against therr respective
role profiles and terms of reference The executive directors are evaluated
additionally aganst the agreed budget for the generation of revenue, profit
and value to shareholders

The evaluation of the chairman, the Board and 1ts committees was
conducted by way of a questionnaire completed by all of the directors,
the results of which were collated by the company secretary and
presented 1o the entire board Based on this evaluation, the Board
concluded that performance in the past year had been satisfactory

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Cormmittee comprises Mr Ethendge {chairman}, Mr Icetan and
Mr Burrow who was appointed on 1 March 2007 In accordance with the
recarnmendation of the Smith Commuttee, the Company's non-executive
chairman, Mr Cole, 1s not a member of the Audit Committee and stepped
down from the committee following his appointment as charrman By
invitation, the Group’s finance director, Mr Robson, and 1ts director of
financeal reporting, Mr Pratt, normally attend the committee’s meetings,
as do representatives of our internal and external auditors Other directors
are usually also invited to be present If available

As s reguired by 1ts terms of reference, the Audit Committee meets on

at least four occasions each year to review the draft quarterly and annuat
financial statements prior to their publication, to consider the key
accounting estimates and judgements contamed therein and to consider
reports from both the internal and external auditors which include audit
plans and the key findings of their work. The Audit Committee also keeps
the Group's accounting policies under review, evaluates the effectiveness
of the Group's internal controls and financial reporting pohicies and 15
responsible for dealing with any matter brought to its attention by the
auditors. The Audit Committee also keeps under review the effectiveness of
both internal and external audit as well as the independence of the external
auditors including the type of, and associated fees for, non-audit services

The pnncipal non-audit fees paid to the Company's auditors, Deloitte &
Touche LLP, for the year relate to thewr work in connection with the
NattorsRent and Lux acquisitions The Audit Commuttee 15 satisfied that
the nature of work undertaken and the level of non-audit fees did not
impair their independence

The Audit Commuttee’s terms of reference, which were reviewed during
the year, are avaitable for inspection at the Annual General Meeting
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Remuneration Comrmittee
The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr Iceton (chairman from
1 March 2007), Mr Ethendge and Mr Burrow

The Rermuneration Committee meets as and when required dunng the year
to set the compensation packages for the executive directors, to establish
the terms and conditions of the executive directors’ employment and to set
remuneration policy generally Mr Cote and Mr Drabble normally attend the
meetings of the Commuttee to assist it in its work. The Commuittee also
engages remuneration consultants to adwise it in 1ts work as and when required

None of the members of the Remuneration Commuttee 15 currently or
has been at any time one of the Company's executive directors or an
employee None of the executive directors currently serves, or has served,
as a member of the Board of directors of any other company, which has
one or more of Its executive directors serving on the Company s Board or
Rermuneration Commuttee

The Remuneration Committee s terms of reference are available for
inspection at the Annual General Meeting

Nomination Committea

The current members of the Nomination Committee are Mr Cole
(charman), Mr Drabble Mr Ethendge, Mr Iceton and Mr Burrow (appornted
on 1 March 2007) The Nomination Committee meets as and when
required to recommend proposed changes to the structure and
composition of the Board of directors Mr Stenham was also a member
until his death in October and Mr Burnett and Mr Lovegrove were mernbers
until their respective retirernents

The Nomination Comemittee s terms of reference are avaitable for
inspection at the Annual Generat Meeting

Attendance at Board and committee meetings held between 1 May 2006
and 30 Apnl 2007

Boamd Audit Remuneraticn Nominatigh
MNumber of meetings held 6 4 2 4
Mr Cote' 6 3 2 4
Mr Stenham’ 3 - - 2
Mr Burnett® 5 - - 3
Mr Dhaiwat 6 - - -
Mr Drabble* 6 - 1 3
Mr Miller 5 - - _
Mr Robson 6 - - -
Mr Burrow® 1 1 - 1
Mr Ethendge 6 4 2 4
Mr [ceton 6 4 2 3
Mr Lovegrove 6 - - 3

1 Mr Cole stepped down from the Audit Commuttee on 1 March 2007

2 Mr Stenham died on 22 Cctaber 2006

3 Mr Burnett retired from the Corzpany on 31 December 2006

4 Mr Drabbie stepped cown from the Remuneration Committee on 2 Ocober 2006.
S Mr Burrow was 2ppainied as non-executrve director from 1 March 2007

Finance and Administration Committee

The Finance and Administration Commirttee comprises Mr Cole, Mr Drabble
and Mr Robson and 15 chaired by Mr Drabble Mr Cole replaced Mr Stenham
an this committee on the latter s death The Board of directors has
delegated authority to this commuttee to deal with routine financial and
administrative matters between Board meetings The committee meets as
necessary to perform its role and has a quorum requirement of two
members with certain matters requinng the presence of Mr Cole, non-
executive chatrman, including, for example, the approval of matenal
announcements to the London Stock Exchange

INTERNAL CONTROL

The directors acknowledge their respensibility for the Group's system of
internal control and confirm they have reviewed its effectiveness In doing
so, the Group has taken note of the guidance for directors on internal
cantrol, Internat Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code
(the Turnbull Guidance)

The Board confirms that there is a process for identifying, evaluating and
managing sigruficant risks faced by the Group This process has been 1n
place for the full financial year and 15 ongoing It 1s kept under regular
review by the executive directors and Is considered penodically by the
Board and accords with the Tumbull Cuidance

The Board considers that the Group'’s internal controt system s designed
appropriately to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives Any such control system however, can only provide
reasonable and nat absolute assurance against matenal misstaterment or foss

The Group reviews the risks 1t faces in its business and how these nisks

are managed These reviews are canducted in canjunction with the
management teams of each of the Group's businesses and are docurnented
In an annual report. The reviews consider whether any matters have ansen
since the last report was prepared which might indicate omissions or
inadequacres in that assessment. They also consider whether, as a result of
changes in either the internal or external ervironment, any new significant
nsks have ansen The executive directors reviewed the draft report for 2007,
which was then presented to, discussed and approved by the Audit
Committee on 8 May 2007 and then by the Group Board on 17 May 2007

Before producing the statement on internal control for the annual report
and accounts for the year ended 30 April 2007 the Board reconsidered the
operational effectiveness of the Group's internal control systems. In
particular, through the Audit Committee 1t recewved reports from the
operational audit teams and considered the status of implementation of
intemal contral improvement recommendations made by the Group's
internal auditors and its external auditors The control system sncludes
written policies and control procedures, clearly drawn lines of accountabiity
and delegation of authority and comprehensive reparting and analysis
aganst budgets and latest forecasts
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In a group of the size, complexity and geographucal diversity of Ashtead,
munor breakdowns in established control procedures can occur There are
supperting policies and procedures for mvestigation and management of
control breakdowns at any of the Group's profit centres or elsewhere The
Audit Commuttee also meets regularly with the external auditors to discuss
their work.

In relation to internal financial control, the Group's control and momtorning

pracedures include

« the mantenance and production of accurate and timely financial
management infarmation, including a monthly profit and loss account
and selected balance sheet data for each profit centre,

= the control of key financral nsks through clearly laid down authonty
levels and proper segregation of accounting dutses at the Group's
accounting support centres,

« the preparation of a monthly financial report to the Board mncluding
income staterments for the Group and each subsidiary, balance sheet
and cash flow statement,

« the preparation of an annual budget and penodic update forecasts
which are reviewed by the executive directors and then by the Board,

* a programme of rental equipment inventories and full inventory counts
conducted at each profit centre by equipment type independently
checked on a sample basis by our operational auditars and external
auditors,

o detailed intermal audits at the Group’s major accounting centres
undertaken by intemal audit specialists from a major international
accounting firm,

» cornprehensive audits at the profit centres generally carried out annually
by internal operational audit A summary of this work ss provided
annually to the Audit Committee and

* a review of arrangements by which staff may, in confidence, raise
concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting
or other matters

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the
financial statements The directors are required to prepare financial
statements for the Group In accordance with Intermational Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and have

also elected to prepare financial statements for the Company n accordance

wath IFRS Company [aw requires the directors 1o prepare such financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, the Cormpanies Act 1985 and Article 4
of the [AS Regulations.

IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Staternents, requires that financial
staterments present fairly for each financial year the Company's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows This requires the

representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in
accordance with the defimitions and recognition cntena for assets, hiabilities,

income and expenses set aut In the Intermational Accounting Standards
Board’s Framewark for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial

Statements In virtually all crcumstances, a fair presentation will be
achieved by compliance with all applicable international Financial Reporting
Standards Directars are also required to

 property select and apply accounting policies,

+ present information including accounting policies, in a manner that
provides relevant, reliable comparable and understandable information,
and

+ provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRS 15 insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity’s financial positron and financial performance

The directors are responsible for keeptng proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the finanaial position of
the Company, for safeguarding the assets, for taking reasonabile steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities and for the
preparation of a directors’ report and directors’ remuneration report which
comply with the requirements of the Comparnies Act 1985

Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemimation of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

GOING CONCERN

After making appropriate enquintes the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Croup have adequate resources
to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future and that

It 15 therefore appropnate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financ:al statements In formung this view the directors have reviewed
the Group's budgets and cash flow forecasts for a period of more than

12 months from the date of the approval of these financral statements
and considered the sufficiency of the Group’s banking facilities described
on pages 30 and 37 of the Business and Financal Review

By order of the Board

ERIC WATKINS
COMPANY SECRETARY
25 June 2007
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

INTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared in accardance with the Directors’
Rermuneration Report Regulations 2002 The report also meets the relevant
requiremnents of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and
describes how the Board has applied the Pnnciples of Good Governance
refating to dwectors’ remuneration As required by the Regulations, a
resolut:on to approve the report will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annuai General Meeting of the Company

The Regulations require the auditors to report to the Company's members
on the "auditable part” of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and to state
whether in their opinion that part of the report has been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 (as amended by the
Regulations} The report has therefore been divided into separate sections
for audited and unaudited information

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee (“the Committee”)
in accordance with the recommendations of the Combined Code The
members of the Committee are Mr Iceton {chairman), Mr Ethendge and

Mr Burrow None of the Committee members has any personal financial
interests, other than as shareholders, in the matters to be decided

The Group’s chief executive, Mr Drabbte, normally attends the meetings of
the Commuttee to advise on operational aspects of the implementatton of
existing policies and policy proposals, except where his own remuneration
15 concerned, as does the non-executive chaimman, Mr Cole The company
secretary acts as secretary to the Committee Under Mr Iceton's direction,
the company secretary and Mr Drabble have responsibility for ensuring the
Comrmuttee has the information relevant to its deliberations tn formulating
its polictes, the Committee has access to professional advice from outside
the Company, as required, and to publicly available reports and statistics
External professional advice was obtained in the year from The Zygos
Partnership who assisted also in the recrurtment of non-executive directors

Remuneration policy for executive directors

Executive remuneration packages are designed to attract, motivate and
retain directors of the high calibre needed to achieve the Group's objectives
and to reward them for enhancing value to shareholders The main
elements of the remuneration package for executive directors and serior
management are

» basic annual salary and benefits in kind,

* annual performance related bonus plan,

* share related incentives, and

* pension arrangements

In assessing all aspects of pay and benefits, the Company compares

packages offered by similar companies, which are chosen having regard to

s the size of the company (revenues, profits and number of people
employed),

» the diversity and complexity of its businesses

» the geographical spread of its businesses, and

» their growth, expansion and change profile

In making the comparisons, the Company takes into constderation also
the Group's significant operations in the US where the Comparny has a
number of large, successful competitors who compete with it for top
management talent

The Commuttee implements its remuneration policies by the design of
reward packages for executive directars compnsing the appropnate mix of
salary, performance related annuai cash incentive bonuses and share related
ncentives None of the executive directors holds any outside appontments

Basic salary

An executive director’s basic salary 1s normally determined by the
Committee befare the start of the year and when an individual changes
position or respensiblity In deciding appropriate tevels, the Commiitee
consrders the Group as a whole and seeks to be competitive but farr,
using infarmation drawn from both internal and external sources

Annual performance related bonus plan

Under the annual performance refated bonus plan for executive directors,
payments for the year to 30 Apnl 2007 were related directly to financial
and personal performance targets and were subject to a cap of 150% of
salary for Mr Burnett, Mr Drabble, Mr Robson and Mr Miller and 100% of
salary for Mr Dhawal. The Committee establishes the objectives that must
be met for each financial year 1f a cash incentive bonus for that year 1s

to be paid In determining bonus parameters the Committee s objective

15 to set targets that reflect appropnately challenging financial performance
measures

For the year ended 30 Apnl 2007, the targets relating to Mr Burnett and
Mr Dhaiwal were met in full and accordingly they received 100% of their
maximum bonus entitlements The targets for Mr Drabbte, Mr Robson and
Mr Miller were met in part and accordmgly, they recewed 73%, 73% and
67% of ther maximum bonuses respectively
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Share related mcentives
Detalls of the Comnpany's existing arrangerments are set out below

Previous plans

Executive share option schemes

Until 2002, 1t was the Commuttee's policy to make regular awards under
the Company’s executive share option plans to senior staff The value of
the shares undertying the options awarded was assessed by reference to

a number of factors including the emplayee’s salary, senionty and length
of service as well as both the Company’s and the individual’s performance
in the year prior to the award This plan lapsed in October 2006

Investment Incentive Plan

The Investment Incentive Plan 1s a long-term incentive plan which provided
for semor management, who 5o elected, to invest all or a portion of their
annual cash bonuses in shares of the Company and, thus, become eligible
for matctung awards in the form of shares which only vest subject to
demanding perfermance conditions The Company did not make any awards
under this plan in 2005/6 or 2006/7 The Company does not ntend to
make any further awards under this plan

Matching awards were made in respect of investment shares acquired by
participants with all or part of thew bonws for the previous financial year
The matching awards only vest, m whole or part, based on annual growth in
the Cornpany's earnings per share ("EPS") in the three year period following
the award over that of the year ended 30 April immediately prior to the
date of the award and on the Company's Total Shareholder Return {"TSR"}
performance relative to a comparator group In respect of the rematning
available matching awards the relevant performance penod 1s the three
years frorm 19 August 2004 (when the share price was 48 5p) to 18 August
2007 The comparator group compnses all of the FTSE 250 mid-cap stocks
other than investment trusts

The above performance conditions were chosen because they were felt to
align most closely the interests of senior management with the interests of
shareholders, by rewarding management for achieving superior relatwe total
shareholder return performance compared with the FTSE 250 as a whole,
excluding investrment trusts. At the trme the awards were made, the FTSE
250 was considered to be the Stock Exchange index most appropnate to
the size and scale of the Company's operations

Vesting of the matching awards s based on the following required
performance grid

TSR perfarmance agamnst peer group

Real EPS .
growth } : | e Tah i
performance Below Median TSR i Median ' Percentile | Percentile |
upper range 20x 25x 30x
RPI + 7% p.a 10 x Match Match | Match | Match
target range 15x 20x 25x
RPI + 5% pa 075 x Match Match | Match | Match
T — 10x 15x 20x
RPI + 3% pa 05 x Match Match | Match | Match
No matching award vests J

Vesting operates on a scaled basis for performance between the target
levels shown in the gnid above Performance 1s measured at the end of the
three year performance penod when the awards either vest in full or part ar
lapse completely For performance measurement purposes eamings per share
1s based on the profit before exceptional tems measured under consistently
applied accounting policies and using a 30% standardised tax rate

Cugrent plan

Performance Share Plan

The Performance Share Plan is a long-term incentive plan under which
executive directors and other members of the senior management team
may annually receive a conditional nght to acquire shares ("performance
shares™}, the vesting of which depends on the satisfaction of demanding
performance conditions

The maximum award of performance shares that may be made in any
financral year of the Company 1s imited under the rules of the Plan, to
shares with a market value equal to 100% of the participant’s base salary
at the ume the award 15 made

The extent to which the 2004 and 2005 awards vest depends as to 50%
of the award on growth in EPS over the three year vesting penod which runs
for the awards granted in 2004 for the three years ending 30 Apnl 2007
and for the awards granted in 2005 for the three years ending 30 Apnl 2008
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For the 2004 award, 50% of the award for EPS growth vests «n full if EPS
for 2006/7 15 8p or greater and lapses if EPS 15 5p or lower EPS for the year
ended 30 Apnl 2007 has exceeded the upper threshold, consequently, the
50% element of the 2004 awards relating to EPS growth will vest i full,
The equivalent thresholds for the 2005 award in the 2007/8 year are 9 1p
and 7 7p Awards are scaled for performance between these ponts EPS for
this purpose 15 calculated on the Group's profit before exceptional items
less a standardised 30% tax charge The EPS targets noted above have not
yet been adjusted by the Committee to reflect the impact of the Group’s
subsequent application of International Financial Reparting Standards but
this will be considered by the Committee at the time the awards mature

The vesting of the other 50% of the awards 1s dependent upon the
Company's TSR performance over the three years commencing on award
date (5 October 2004 for the 2004 awards and 16 August 2005 for the
2005 awards) against the relevant index For the 2004 awards this was the
FTSE Smallcap index (excluding investrment trusts) whilst, for the 2005
awards, 1t was the constituents of the FTSE 250 index (excluding
investment tnusts)

The part of each award linked to TSR vests in full if the Company's TSR
growth over the three year vesting penod ranks it in the top 25% of
participants In the relevant index and will lapse if the Company's relative
TSR growth 1s ranked at or below 50% of participants in the relevant index
over the three year vesting period If relative TSR performance is between
these points, the TSR linked part of the award 1s scaled on a pro rata basis

The extent to which the 2006 awards vest depends entirely on the growth
in EPS over the three year vesting period which runs for the three years
ending 30 Apnl 2009 For the 2006 award, the award vests in full if EPS
for 2008/9 15 19p or greater and lapses if EPS 15 16 8p or lower Awards
are scaled for performance between these points EPS for this purpose

15 calculated on the Group's profit before exceptional items less a
standardised 30% tax charge

Employee Share Ownership Trust

The Group has established an Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT)
to hold shares in the Cormpany to salisfy potential awards under the
investment Incentive Plan and the Performance Share Plan At 30 Apnl
2007, the ESOT held a beneficial interest in 8,280,747 shares The ESOT
owned directly 4,932,329 of these shares and a further 3,358,418 shares
were registered In the narpe of investrment Incentive Plan or Performance
Share Plan particpants on terms which require that the award shares are
transferred back to the ESOT to the extent that the performance targets
are not met

Relative performance

The following graph cormpares the Company's TSR performance with the
FTSE 250 ndex (excluding mvastment trusts) over the five years ended
30 Apnil 2007, the Stock Exchange index the Commuttee considers to be
the most appropriate to the size and scale of the Company’s operattons
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Directors’ pension arrangements
The Company makes a payment of 40% of his base salary to Mr Drabble
tn lieu of providing him wath any pension arrangements

Under the terms of hus contract, Mr Robson is entitled to retive at age 60
on a pansion equal to one-thertieth of s final salary for each year of
pensionable service He 1s a member of the Company’s Retirernent Benefits
Plan, which 15 a defined benefits scheme Following the change in pension
plan and Inland Revenue regulations effective 6 Apnl 2006, the Company
has agreed with the trustees of the Returement Benefits Plan that the
Retirement Benefits Plan is responsible for Mr Robson's entire pension, part
of which was previously provided by the Company Mr Robson's contract
also contains earty retrrement provisions altowing him to retire and draw a
pension based on actual years of service, but without deduction for early
payment which take effect once he has completed 10 years service with
the Company (or at anyttme after age 50 If there 15 a change of control)
Mr Robson pays contnbutions equal to 7 5% of hus salary to the
Retirerments Benefits Plan

Mr Dhamwal's pension benefits are also provided entirely through the
Ashtead Group plc Retirement Benefits Plan His pensian nights accrue at
the rate of one-sixtieth of salary (as defined) for each year of pensionable
service and his normal retirement date 15 at age 65 Mr Dhanval also pays
contributtons equal to 7 5% of his salary to the Retirement Benefits Plan

The Retirement Benefits Plan also provides that.
n the event of death In service or death between leaving service and
retirement while retaining membership of the plan a spouse’s pension
equat to 50% of the member's deferred pension calculated at the date
of death plus a return of his contnbutions,

+ i the event of death in retirement, a spouse’s pension equal to 50%

of the member's pension at the date of death,

an option to retire at any time after age 50 with the Company’s consent.

Early retirement benefits are reduced by an amount agreed between the

Actuary and the Trustees as reflecting the cost to the plan of the early

retirerment [n 2010, Government regulations muse the rminimum early

retirement age to 55, and

penston increases i line with the increase i retail price inflation up

to a limit of currently 5% a year in respect of service since 1997

In February 2006, Mr Miller ceased contnbuting to Sunbeit’s 401K defined
contribution pens:on ptan and joined Sunbelt’s deferred compensation glan
Under the deferred compensation plan Mr Miller has elected to defer 6% of
his annuat salary and a proportion of bis annual performance bonus, which
i1s retained by Sunbelt 1n an account designated for huis benefit to be paid to
him on retirement. Sunbelt provides a co-match at the rate of 51 for every
$1 deferred up to $12,500 per annum and Mr Miller s deferred salary
accaunt 1s also credited annually with an "investrment return” equivalent

to that earned by members of Sunbelt’s 401K penston plan

Executive directors’ service agreements

The service agreemenits between the Cormpany and Mr Drabble (dated

6 July 2006), Mr Robson (dated 4 August 2000), Mr Dhaiwal {dated 8 july
2002) and Mr Milter {dated 5 July 2004} are terminable by either party
gving the other 12 months’ notice The service agreements for each of the
executive directors all contain non-compete provisions appropriate to theiwr
roles in the Group

Following his retirement on 31 December 2006 and in the light of the
death of Mr Stenham dunng the year arrangements were made with

Mr Burnett for him to be available to the Company as reasonably required
until 31 December 2007 He will receive £70,000 under these consultancy
arrangements.

Remuneration policy for non-executive directors

The remuneration of the non-executsve directors 15 determined by the
Board within imuts set out in the Articles of Association None of the

non-executive directors has a service contract with the Company and
their appomntment 1s therefore terminabie by the Board at any time

An ordinary resclution concerming the Group's remuneration policies
will be put to shareholders at the forthcorming Annual General Meeting
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AUDITED INFORMATION
Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments of the directors, excluding pension benefits, which are included in staff costs in note 3 to the finanwal statements, were as follows

Perfermarke Benefits Totat Total
relatec n Qther emaluments emoluments
Salary Fees bonus ang™ allowances™ 2007 2006
Name £ 000 £000 £000 £000 £000 ED00 £000
Executive
GB Burnett 285 - 428 1 9 723 870
55 Dharwal 200 - 200 1 8 409 287
G Drabble 239 13 438 15 130 835 27
C Miller 262 - 262 7 26 557 505
S| Robson 300 - 330 1 11 642 570
Non-executive
AWP Stenham - 70 - - 8 78 148
C Cole - &7 - - - &7 33
M Burrow - 6 - - - 6 -
HC Ethendge - 39 - - - 39 32
Gl Iceton - 33 - - - 33 27
PA Lovegrove - 32 - - - 32 27
1286 260 1,658 25 192 3,421 2,526
2006 1105 279 1,061 7 74 2,526

{) Benefits in kin¢ camprise the taxable benefit of company owned cars. private medical insurance and subscriptions
{11} Other altowances include car allowances, a contnbution t¢ Mr Stenham s office costs, reimbursement of travel and accommodation costs for Mr Miller who continues to reside 0 Virgnia but is based at
Sunbelt s head office in Charlotte and the payment of 40% of salary in leu of pension contnbutions and a contabution ta relecation costs for Mr Drabble

Upon commencement of hus employment with the Company, Mr Drabble was awarded 378,000 Ashtead ordinary shares to compensate hurn for hus
foregone option arrangements with his previous employer These shares were awarded to him in October 2006 when the market price was 145 6p and
the value of the shares awarded was £550,000 Mr Drabble sold 182,683 of these shares at a market price of 142 75p on 8 Navember 2006 to fund the
income tax and national insurance due on the share award

As part of his joiring arrengements it was agreed that Mr Drabble would also receive an additional bonus payment of £175 000 to compensate him

for the loss of his accrued bonus wath bis previous employer payable concurrently weth his 2006/7 bonus Consequently the bonus of £438,000 shown
in the table abave for Mr Drabble cormpnises s regular earned bonus for the year to 30 Apni 2007 of 110% of salary {£263,000) plus the special bonus
of £175000

Key management
In accordance with 1AS 24, Related Party Disclosures, key management personnel are those persens having authonity and responsibility for planming, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly The Group's key management campnse the Company’s executive and non-executive directors

Compensation for key management was as follows

2007 2006

£ 000 £000

Salanes and short-term employee benefits 3421 2,526
Post-employment benefits 56 45
National insurance and social secunty 382 214
Share-based payments 1176 400

5035 3,185
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Directors’ penston benefits

Transfer Transter
Accrued Accrued Increase s annual value of valug increase
persionable  Contnbutions annyal pension durng the year aeaued of accrued In wansfer
Age at service at parct Iy the pension at Excluding Total pension at pension at value cver
30 Apnl 2007 30 Apn! 2007 director 30 Apnl 2007 inflation ncrease 30 Apnl 2007 30 Apnl 2006 the year
Years Years £000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
SS Dhamwal 38 13 15 38 5 6 199 155 29
Si Robson 48 7 22 66 15 17 831 579 230

Notes.

{1} The transfer values represent the amount which would have been paid to another pension scheme had the director elected to take a transfer of his accrued pension entitlement at that date and have
been calculatec by the scheme s actuaries in accordance with Actuanal Guidance Nate GN11 publshed by the insttute of Actuanes and the Faculty of Actuares. They are not sums pad or due to the

directors concemed
{2} The increase in transfer value in the year is stated net of the members contnbutions

in the year to 30 Apnl 2007, Mr Miller deferred $30,000 of his annual salary and $100,000 of his 2005/6 bonus in the Sunbelt deferred compensation plan
and consequently Sunbelt allocated $ 12,500 by way of its co-match contribution At 30 April 2007, Mr Miller’s account was also credited with the annual
mvestment return of $32,769 At 30 Apnl 2007 the total gross amount deferred relating to Mr Miller in the plan, induding allocated investment return was

$191,784 or £95.897

Directors’ interests in shares

The directors of the Company are shown below together with thesr beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company {excluding nterests i shares held
subject to forfeiture If performance conditions under the Company’s investment tacentive Plan and Performance Share Plan are not achieved - see below)

30 Aprl 2007 30 Apal 2006

Numiber of Number of

ordinary ordinary

shares of shares of

10p each 10p each

M Burrow - -
C Cole 42,082 23,333
5S Dhawal 174,512 48,393
G Drabble 211,357 11,666
HC Ethendge - -
G lceton 39,082 23,333
C Miller 254,559 33,000
Si Robson 591,250 430,000

* or date of appomtment for Mr Burrow

The directors had no non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company
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investment Incentive Plan and Performance Share Plan awards

Conditional awards of matching shares under the 1P and of shares under the PSP held by executive directors are shown in the table below

G Burnett — granted in 2004/5
- granted in 2005/6
$S Dhawal — granted in 2004/5
- granted in 2005/6
- granted in 2006/7
G Drabble — granted in 2006/7
C Miller - granted in 2004/5

- granted In 2005/6
- granted in 2006/7
S| Robson ~ granted In 2004/5
— granted in 2005/6
- granted in 2006/7

pPsp

Held at 30 Aprl Held at 30 Apenl
2007* 2006 2007 2006
193,570 178,554 329,803 304,219
- - 286,164 263,965
55,305 51,015 145,192 133929
- - 120,349 111013
- - 90,468 n/a
- - 264,943 n/a
- - 190,144 175,394
- - 155,198 143,159
- - 174,047 n/a
221,227 204,066 200,364 184821
- - 173,837 160,352
- - 193,861 n/a

* of date of retirement for Mr Bumett

The Company s Employes Share Option Trust has conditionally transferred shares to Mr Burnett, Mr Dharwal, Mr Drabble and Mr Robson in respect of
substanuially alt of the options awarded to them under the Company's Investment incentive Plan and the Performance Share Plan on conditions under

which the shares are automatically returned to the trust in the event that the performance conditions underlying the awards are not achieved

Followang the £152m equity nghts issue in August 2006, the interests of all participants in the Company’s share-based remuneration plans were adjusted

on a neutral basis for the dilutive effect of the rights 1ssue This involved uplifting the outstanding awards and option grants by B 41% and, where

applicable reducing the exercise price by 7 76% to ensure the option holders maintained the same economic interest in the Company

Following Mr Burnett's retirement on 31 December 2006, the Committee determined that, in accordance wath the rules of the plans Mr Bumnett's ItP and

PSP awards should be released to him as he was a "good’ leaver and this has occurred subsequently
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Directors’ interests 1n share options

Granted/ Farliest
Options at {exerased) Options at normal
1 May Rights dunng 30 Apnl Exercise exeruise
2006 1s5ue year 2007 prce date Expury
Discretionary schemes
GB Burnett 200,000 16810 (216.810) - 12200p Feb 2000 Feb 2007
350,000 29418 - 375,418 16992p Feb 2001 Feb 2008
166,700 14,011 - 180,711 15912p Feb 2002 Feb 2009
300,000 25,216 - 325,216 94 55p Aug 2003 Aug 2010
90,000 7,564 - 97,564 11531p Feb 2004 Feb 2011
SS Dhawal 40,000 3,362 (43.362) - 122 00p Feb 2000 Feb 2007
32500 2,731 - 35231 169 92p Feb 2001 Feb 2008
50,000 4,202 - 54,202 15912p Feb 2002 Feb 2009
35,000 2,941 - 37,941 11531p Feb 2004 Feb 2011
28,000 2,353 {30,353} - 3828p Feb 2005 Feb 2012
150,000 12608 (162,608} - 45 66p Aug 2005 Aug 2012
C Miller 30,000 2,521 (32,521} - 122 00p Feb 2000 Feb 2007
24,000 2,017 - 26017 165 92p Feb 2001 Feb 2008
13,350 1,122 - 14,472 15912p Feb 2002 Feb 2009
50.000 4,202 (54,202) - 94 0Sp Feb 2003 Feb 2010
35,000 294 (37.941) - 94550  Aug 2003 Aug 2010
50,000 4,202 {54 202) - 11531%p Feb 2004 Feb 2011
100,000 - (100,000) - 4150p Feb 2005 Feb 2012
51 Robson 29,500 2479 - 31979 93 79p Aug 2003 Aug 2010
195,500 16,432 - 211,932 94 55p Aug 2003 Aug 2010
230,000 19,332 - 249,332 11531p Feb 2004 Feb 2011
300,000 25216 - 325.216 3828p feb 2005 Feb 2012
SAYE scheme
GB Burnett 24,029 - (24,029) - 2427p May2006  Oct 2006
10,782 907 - 11,699 28 36p QOct 2007 Mar 2008
55 Dhamwal 24029 - {24,029) - 2427p  May 2006  Oct 2006
10,792 907 - 11699 28 36p Oct 2007 Mar 2008
- - 4960 4,960 122 13p Sept 2009 feb 2010
S| Robson 40,049 3368 - 43417 223%  May 2008 Oct 2008
10,792 907 - 11,699 28 36p Oct 2007 Mar 2008

* gr date of reurernent for Mr Burmett, who has 12 months from the date of retrerment ta exercise optons under the discretronary schemes and stx months under the SAYE scheme
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

Details of share options exercised by the executive directors in the year are as follows

Number Market pnce at

exercised Option pce  date of exerase Gain
P P £ 000

Executive share options
GB Burnett 216,810 122 00 171 50 107
$S Dharwal 43,362 12200 15325 13
30,353 3828 15325 35
162,608 45 66 153 25 175
236,323 223
C Miller 32,521 122 00 178 00 18
54 202 9409 17800 45
37941 94 55 17800 32
54 202 11531 17800 34
100,000 47150 14075 99
278,866 228

SAYE scheme

GB Burmett 24,029 2427 20000 42
5S Dharwal 24,029 2427 20000 42

Note

{1} ©On 14 December 2006 Mr Dhawal exercised his nghts In respect of 236 323 share options of which 161,331 were sold and the balance ot 74 932 shares was retained by Mr Dharwai
{2) On 1August 2006 Mr Miller exercised his nghts in respect of 100000 share options and retained the shares On 2 February 2007 Mt Milles exercised his nghts in respect of 178 866 share options ar
which 107 182 were sold to meet the exerase costs and commission charges in respect of the exeraise The balance of 71684 sharas was retained by Mr Miller

Exercise of certain of the above listed discretionary option awards were subject to performance conditions when enginally granted, all of which have been
met subsequently The market pnice of the Company’s shares at the end of the financial year was 155p and the highest and lowest closing pnces dunng

the financial year were 222p (adjusted for the nghts issue) and 112p respectively

Mr Dhamwal also halds 54 202 units in the Company's Cash Incentive Scheme which were granted to him on 22 February 2000 when he was not a

director The performance critena related to this award have been satisfied and accordingly Mr Dhawal may exeraise the award in whole or in part at any
time prior to 22 February 2010 When the award 1s exercised Mr Dhawal will be pawd in cash an amount equal to the difference between the mid market

price of Ashtead Group plc shares on the day of exercise and 94 09p multiplied by the numnber of units exercised The resultant sum will be paid to Mr

Dharwat in cash less applicable taxes

This report has been approved by the Remuneration Committee and 15 signed on its behalf by

GARY ICETON
CHAIRMAN, REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
25 June 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF ASHTEAD GROUP PLC

We have audited the Group and indmidual Company financial statements {the
“financial statements”} of Ashtead Group plc for the year ended 30 Apnl 2007
which compnise the Consolidated income Statement, the Consolidated and
Company Balance Sheets, the Consalidated and Company Cash Flow
Statements, the Consclidated Statement of Recogrused Income and Expense and
the related notes 1 to 28 These financial statements have been prepared under
the accounting policies set out therain We have also audited the information
in the Directors Remuneration Report that 15 described as hawng been audited

Thus repart 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in
accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members
those matters we are required to state to therm in an auditors’ report and
for no other purpose To the fultest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyoene other than the Company and
the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBIUTIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report the Directors’
Rernuneration Repart and the financial staternents in accordance with applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Umion are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

QOur responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Reruneration Report to be audited in accordance with relevant
legal and regulatory requiernents and International Standards on Auditing
{UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give
a tree and fair view and whether the financial statements and the part

of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Campanies Act 1985 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the I1AS Regulation We also report
to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Diectors
Report is consistent with the financial statements. The information given
in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information presented in
the Business and Financial Review that is cross referred from the Trading
results and dividends section of the Directors’ Report

In additton we report to you If, in our opinion, the Company has not kept
proper accounting records, if we have not recerved all the information and
explanations we require for our audit or if information speafied by law
regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the
Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 Combined
Code speaified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authonty, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider
whether the Board's statements on internal control cover all nsks and
contrels, or form an opimion an the effectiveness of the Group's corperate
governance procedures or 1ts nsk and control procedures

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as described
In the contents section and consider whether it s consistent with the

audited financial statements We consider the implications for our
repart (f we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements Our responstbilities

do not extend to any further information outside the Annual Report.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policres are appropriate to the Group's and Company’s circurnstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed aur audit sa as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or ather
irregularity or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited

QOPINION

In our opinion

+ the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in aceordance
wath IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the Group's
affairs as at 30 Apnl 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended,

+ the indmdual Company financial statements give a true and fair view,
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union as applied
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the
state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 Apnl 2007

= the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the Group financial staterments,
Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation, and

s the inforrmation given in the Directors’ Repert 15 consistent with the
financial statements

SEPARATE OPINION IN RELATION TO IFRSs

As explained in note 1 to the Group financial staterents, the Group in
addition to complying with its legal obbgation to comply with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, has also complied with the IFRSs as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board Accordingly, in our opinion
the Group financial statements give a true and fair view In accordance with
IFRSs, of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 30 Apnl 2007 and of its profit

for the year then ended
Diuathe wTacke Lf
DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND REGISTERED AUDITORS
London

25 june 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2007

2007 w06
Before
exceptional Exceptional Before
ftems, itermns, exceptional Exceptional
amortisation amartisation tems and 1Lerms
and far vatye and falr valie far value and fair value
remeasurements’ remeasurements’ Total remeasurements  remeasurements” Total
- Notes £m £m £m Em Em £m
Revenue 2 896 1 - 8961 6380 - 6380
Staff costs (284 6) (101) (204 7) (2001} (03} {2004)
Other operating costs (3130) (26 5) (3395) (2223} (13) (2236)
Othermcome . ........ns8 9 109 31 150 24
EBITDA* 3103 (373) 2728 2247 134 2381
Depreciation (159 8) (09 (1607) (1138) - (1136)
Amortisation - (110} (110} - - -
Operating profit 23 1505 (49 4} 1011 1M 134 1245
Iavestment income 39 - 39 27 78 105
Interest expense (73 0) (68 5} (1415) (463) (70) (533}
Net financing costs 4 (69 1) (68 5) (137 6) (436) 08 (42 8)
(Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation 814 {(1179) (36 5) 675 142 817
Taxation
— cutrent 6 (04} - (04) (o1} (54) {55)
— deferred 517 (28 3) 731 448 (210} 04 (2086)
(287) 731 44 4 (271 1) (50) (261)
Profit attnibutable to equity shareholders 527 (44 8) 79 464 92 556
Basic earnings per share 8 10 3p (8 8p) 15p 113p 22p 135p
Diluted earrings per share 8 10 1p (8 6p) 15p 110p 22p 132p

~ EBITDA (s presented here as an aoditional performance measure as it 1s commonly used by investors and lenders
+ Far value remeasurements relate to embedced denvatives in long term debt.

The Group's results are all denved from continuing operations
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME
AND EXPENSE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2007

2007 2006

Em £m
Profit for the financial year 79 556
Actuanal gain on defined benefit pension schemes 25 02
Foreign currency translation differences {130) 154
Tax on items taken directly to equity 16 -
Total recognised income and expense for the year (10) 712

CONSOLIDATED MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2007

2007 2006

Em £m

Total recogruised income and expense for the year (10) 7z
Issue of ordinary shares, net of expenses 1489 709
Dividends paid (70) (20)
Credit in respect of share-based payments 24 13
Own shares acquired by ESOT (49) (28}
Net increase i equity shareholders’ funds in the year 1384 1386
Equity shareholders’ funds at the beginning of the year 2583 1197
Closing equity shareholders’ funds 967 2583




ELR ASHTEAD GROLIP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2007 CONSGLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 30 APRIL 2007

2007 2006
Notes £m Em
Current assets
inventones 9 242 27
Trade and other receivables 1 1637 1104
Current tax asset 20 -
Assets held for sale 103 -
Cash and cash equvalents 230 11 10
2013 1241
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
~ rental equipment 11 9206 5599
- other assets 1 127 4 868
10480 6467
Intangible assets — brand names and other acquired ntangbles 12 97 -
Goodwill 12 2896 1490
Deferred tax asset 17 417 29
Other financial assets — dervatives 13 - 154
Defined benefit pension fund surplus 22 52 17
1,394 2 8157
Total assets 1,5955 9398
Current babilities
Trade and other payables 13 166 8 991
Current tax liabilities o7 33
Debt due within one year & 90 106
Prowisions 1§ 12.7 70
189 2 1200
Non-current hiabilities
Debt due after more than one year 14 9080 4840
Provisions 16 196 13
Deferred tax labdities 17 82.0 662
10096 5615
Total Labititias 1,198 8 6815
Equity shareholders’ funds
Share capital 18 560 404
Share premum account 13 33 32
Non-distabutable reserve 19 907 907
Own shares held in treasury through the ESOT 18 87 (42}
Cumulative foreign exchange translation differences 12 (302) (17 2)
Distributable reserves 19 2856 1454
Total equity shareholders’ funds 397 2583
Total labilities and equity shareholders’ funds 1,5955 9398

These financial staternents were approved by the Board on 25 June 2007

G Drabble S| Robson
Chief Executive Finance Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2007

2007 2006

Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activires
Cash generated from operations before exceptional iterns 23(a) 3193 2152
Exceptional items (190) 111
Pension payment - (171)
Cash generated from operations 3003 2092
financing costs pard before exceptional items (64 2) (387
Exceptional financing costs paid (49 8) (133)
Financing costs pard (1140) (520)
Tax paid {50) (28)
Net cash from operating activities 1813 1544
Cash flows from investing actrvities
Acquisition of businesses 23(e} (327 2) {570)
Disposal of businesses - 128
Payments for property, plant and equipment (308 3) (229 3}
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 785 504
Net cash used in Investing activities {557 0) (223 1)
Cash flows from finanang actoaties
Drawdown of loans 8905 2575
Redemption of loans (6418) {2440
Capital element of finance lease payments (99) (121)
Purchase of own shares by the ESOT {49} (28)
Dvidends paid (70) (29
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 1489 708
Net cash from financing activities 3758 675
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 01 (12
Operung cash and cash equivalents 10 21
Effect of exchange rate changes - 01
Closing cash and cash equivalents 11 10
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The pancipal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below These policies have been applied
consistently to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financeal Reporting Standards (IFRS} and IFRIC interpretations
and with those parts of the Comparies Act 1985 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS Accordingly, the Group complies with all IFRS,
including those adopted for use i the European Umion The financial
statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention,
modified for certain items carned at fair value as stated in the accounting
policies A summary of the more iImportant accounting polcies 1s set out
below

The Group has adopted early the following interpretations as at

30 Apnl 2007

« IFRIC9  Reassessment of embedded dernatives

« IFRIC 3¢ Intenm reporting and impairments

» [FRIC 31 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

At the date of authonsation of these finanaal statements, IFRS 7, Financial
tnstruments Disclosures and the related amendment to IAS 1, Presentation
of Financial Statements, on capital disclosures and IFRS 8 Operating
Segments, were i issue but not yet effective and have not been applied
Adoption will have no matenial impact on the financial statements of the
Group except for additional disclosures when the standards come into
effect for the years ending 30 Apni 2008 and 30 Apnl 2010, respectively

The preparatton of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to use estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period The principal management
estimates and assurnptions are discussed in more detail in the Business
and Financial Review Actual results could differ from these estimates

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and alt 1ts subsidianes for the year to 30 Apal each year The
results of businesses acquired or sold durning the year are incorporated for
the periods from or to the date on which control passed and acquisitions
are accounted for under the acquisiion method Control is achieved when
the Group has the power to govem the financial and operating policies of
an entity 50 as to obtain the benefits from its actvities

Foreign currency translation

Assets and hiabiliies in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Profit and loss accounts
and cash flows of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated into
sterling at average rates of exchange for the year The exchange rates

used in respect of the US dollar are

2007 2006
Average for year 19 178
Year-end 200 182

Exchange differences ansing from the retranslation of the opening net
investment of overseas subsidianes and the difference between the
inclusion of thewr profits at average rates of exchange in the Group income
statement and the closing rate are recogrised directly in a separate
component of equity Other exchange differences are dealt with in the
Income statement

Revenue

Revenue represents the total amount recevable for the provision of goods
and services to customers net of returns and value added tax Rental
revere, ncluding loss damage watver fees, 1s recognised on a straight line
basis over the penod of the rental contract Because the terms and
conditions of a rental contract can extend across financial reporting penod
ends, the Group records unbilled rental revenue and deferred revenue at the
end of the reporting periods so rental revenue 1s appropriately stated in the
financiat statements

Revenue from rental equipment delivery and collection is recogrised when
delivery or collection has occurred

Revenue from the sale of new equipment, parts and supplies, retail
merchandise and fuet 1s recogrised at the time of delivery to or collection
by. the customer and when all obligations under the sates contract have
been fulfiiled

Current/non-current distinction

Curment assets include assets held pnmanly for trading purposes, cash and
cash equivalents and assets expected to be realised i, or intended for sale
or consumption i the course of the Group s operating cycle and those
assets recevable within one year from the reporting date Al other assets
are classified as non-current assets,

Current liabilsties include liabihities held pnmanly for trading purposes,

Liabibities expected to be settled w the course of the Group's operating
cycle and those labilities due within one year from the reporting date
All other Labilities are classified as non-current liabilities
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TACCOUNTING POUICIES CONTINUED

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost {including transportation
costs from the manufacturer to the imtial rental location) less accurnutated
depreciation and any provisions for impairment In respect of aeral work
platforms, cost includes rebuild costs when the rebuild extends the asset’s
useful econormuc life and it 1s probable that incremental economic benefits
will accrue to the Group Rebuild costs mclude the cost of transporting the
equipment to and from the rebuild facility Additionally depreciation 15 not
charged while the asset 15 not in use duning the rebuild pencd

teased assets

Finance leases are those leases which transfer substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee Assets held under finance leases are
caprtalised within property, plant and equipment at the fair value of the
leased assets at inception of the lease and depreciated in accordance with
the Group s depreciation policy Outstanding finance lease obligations are
included within debt. The finance element of the agreements 15 charged to
the income statement on a systematic basis over the term of the lease

All other leases are operating leases, the rentals on which are charged to
the income staternent on a straight line basis over the lease term

Depreciation

Leasehold properties are depreciated on a straight line basis over the life of
each {ease Other fixed assets, including those held under finance leases are
depreciated on a straight line basis applied to the opening cost to wnte
down each asset to 1ts residual value over 1ts usefut economic life The rates
i use are as follows

Per annum
Freehold property 2%
Rental equipment 5% to 33%
Motor vehicles 16% to 25%
Office and workshop equipment 20%

Residual values are estimated at 10% of cost in respect of most types of
rental equipment, zero for scaffolding and similar equipment, 15% for aenal
work platforms and high reach forklifts and 20% for steel site
accommodation umts

Gains and losses fram the sale of used equipment are recogrised in the
mcome staternent as other ncome on transfer of title in the equipment to
the purchaser except in the case of sales of rental equipment ost when in
the possession of the rental customer which are recognised when the loss
15 notified by the custorner Gains or losses in connection with trade-in
arrangements with certain manufacturers from whom the Group purchases
new equipment are accounted for at the lower of transaction value or fair
value based on independent appraisals If the trade-in pnce of a unit of
equipment exceeds the far market value of that unit, the excess s
accounted for as a reduction of the cost of the related purchase of new
rental equipment

Repairs and matntenance
Costs incurred in the repair and maintenance of rental and other
equipment are charged to the income staternent as incurred

Intangible assets

Business combinations and goodwill

Acquisitions are accounted for using the purchase method Goodwill
reprasents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the
far value of the net identifiable assets acquired including any intangible
assets other than goodwill Adjustments to the fair values of assets
acquired made within 12 months of acquisition date are accounted for
from the date of acquisition

For business combinations prior to 1 May 2004, but after 30 Apnil 1999,
goodwill 15 included at its deemed cost, which represents the amount
recorded under UK GAAP at the time as subsequently amortised up to
30 Apnl 2004 Under UK GAAP goodwill ansing on acquisiions prior to
30 Apnl 1999 was eltminated against reserves The accounting treatrnent
of business combinations occurmning up to 30 April 2004, the date of
transition to IFRS, has not been reconsidered as permitted under (FRS 1,
First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards.

Goodwll i5 stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and
15 allocated to the Group's three reporting units, Sunbett, A-Plant and
Ashtead Technology

The profit or loss on the disposal of a previously acquired business includes
the attnbutable amount of any purchased goodwill relating to that busmess.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are
capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition Internally generated
intangible assets are not capitaiised Amortisation s charged on a straight-
line basis over the expected useful Life of each asset The NationsRent brand
name had a farr value of £9 4m and was amortised fully over the eight
month period to 30 Apnl 2007, reflecting the decision by the Group not to
use the NationsRent name Contract related intangible assets are amortised
over the hife of the contract. Amortisation rates for other intangble assets
are as follows

Per annum
Brand names (excluding NationsRent) 83%
Custormer lists 10 to 20%

Impairment of assets

Goodwall is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment as at

30 Apnl each year Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation
are reviewed for imparment whenever events or changes in crcumstances
indicate that the carrying armount may not be recoverable An impairment
loss 1s recognised 1n the income statement for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable arnount. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately dentifiable and independent cash flaws for the asset
being tested for impairment. In the case of goodwill impairment 1s assessed
at the level of the Group's three reporting uruts

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use In assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset

in respect of assets other than goodwill an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss 1s reversed only to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the camying amount
that wauld have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised Impawment {osses in respect
of goodwilt are not reversed

Taxation

The tax charge for the period compnises both current and deferred tax
Taxation is recognised In the income statement except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case 1t 1s recogrised

In equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year
and any adjustrnent to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet Liability method on any
temporary differences between the camying amounts for financial reporting
purposes and those for taxation purposes Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it 15 prabable that taxable profits
will be availabte against which deductible temporary differences can be
utihsed Such assets and Liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
differences anse fram the nitial recognition of goodwalt

Deferred tax hiabslities are not recognised for temporary differences ansing
on investments in subsidiaries where the Group 1s able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future Deferred tax is
calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply m the period when
the liability 15 settled or the asset 15 realised Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authonty and the Croup intends to settle its current tax assets
and habilities on a net basis

inventones
Inventones, which compnse new equipment, fuel, merchandise and spare
parts, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Trade recervables
Trade recevables do not carry interest and are stated at nominal value as
reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irmecoverable amounts

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at norminal value

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equwalents compnses cash balances and call deposits with
maturty of less than, or equal to, three months
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1 ACCOUNTING POUCIES CONTINUED

Employee benefits

Defined contribution pension plans

Obligations under the Group’s defined contnbution plans are recognised
as an expense i the tncome statement as incurred

Defined benefit pension plans

The Group’s obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and pror pertods, that
benefit 1s discounted to determune its present value and the fair value of
plan assets is deducted The discount rate i1s the yield at the batance sheet
date on AA rated corporate bonds The calculation is performed by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method

Actuartal gains and [osses are recogrised in full in the penod in which

they anse through the statement of recogrised income and expense

The increase in the present value of plan liabitities ansing from employee
service dunng the peniod 1s charged to operating profit The expected return
on plan assets and the expected mcrease durmg the period in the present
value of plan Liabilities due to unwind of the discount are included in
Investment income and interest expense, respectively

Share-based compensation

The fair value of awards made under share-based compensation plans 15
measured at grant date and spread over the vesting penod through the
income statement with a corresponding increase in equity The fair value of
share options and awards is measured using an appropnate valuation model
taking into account the terms and conditions of the individual scheme The
amount recognised as an expense 15 adjusted to reflect the actual awards
vesting except where any change in the awards vesting relates only to
miarket based cntera not being achieved

Insurance

Insurance ¢osts inctude insurance premiums which are wntten off to the
ncome statement over the period to which they retate and an estimate
of the discounted liability for uninsured retained nsks on unpaid clarms
incurred up to the balance sheet date The estimate ncludes events
incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date This estimate 1s
discounted and included in provisions in the balance sheet.

investment income and interest expense

Investmment income comprises interest receivable an funds invested, fair
value gains on dervative financial instruments and the expected return
on plan assets in respect of defined benefit pension plans

Interest expense comprises interest payable on borrowings, amortisation of
deferred finance costs, fair value losses on dervative financial instruments
and the expected increase in plan biabilities 1n respect of defined benefit
pension schemes

Finranaal nstruments
Detals of the Group’s treasury policies are set out in the Business and
Financial Review on pages 30 and 31

Denwvatives

The Group uses a limited number of denvative financial instruments to
hedge its exposure to fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates
These are principally swap agreements used to manage the balance
between fixed and floating rate finance on long-term debt and forward
contracts for known future foreign currency cash flows The Group does
not hold or issue dervative instruments for speculative purposes

All derivatives are held at farr value in the balance sheet within trade and
other receivables or trade and other payables Changes in the fair value of
dervative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges
of future cash flows are recognised directly in equity The gam or loss
relating to the neffectve portion 1s recognised immediately in the income
staternent. Amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the income
statement In the same penod in which the hedged item affects profit or
loss Changes n the farr value of any denvative instruments that are not
hedge accounted are recogrised immediately in the income statement.

Secured notes

The Group’s secured notes contain early prepayment options, which
constitute embedded derivatives in accordance with IAS 38, Financial
tnstruments Recognition and Measurement At the date of issue the
hability component of the notes 15 estimated using prevailing market
interest rates for similar debt with no prepayment option and 1s recorded
within borrowings The difference between the proceeds of the note issue
and the far value assigned to the lability component, representing the
embedded option to prepay the notes 15 included within *Other financral
assets — derivatives” The interest expense on the liability component s
calculated by applying the effectwe interest rate method The embedded
option to prepay Is far valued using an approprate valuatron model and
fair value remeasurement gains and losses are included tn investment
income and interest expense respectively
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Convertsble debt

Convertible debt 1s regarded as a compound instrument, consisting of a
liability and an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the
habilty component 1s estirmated using the prevailing market interest rate
for similar non-convertible debt and 1s recorded within borrowings The
difference between the fair value of the convertible debt at 1ssue and the
fair value assigned to the liabiity component, representing the embedded
option to convert the hability into equity of the Group 1s included in equity

The interest expense on the liability component 1s calculated by applymng
the effective interest rate for simtlar non-convertible debt to the liability
component of the instrument The difference between this armount and

the interest paid 1s added to the camying amount of the convertible debt

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are thase iterns that are matenal and non-recurning m
nature that the Group believes should be disclosed separately to assist in
the understanding of the financial performance of the Group

Eamings per share

Earnings per share 15 calculated based on the profit for the financial year
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year For this purpose the number of ordinary shares In issue excludes
shares held by the ESOT and shares registered m the name of employees
but, subject to forfeiture if performance targets are not achieved, in respect
of which dividends have been waived Diluted earmings per share is
calculated using the profit for the financial year and the weighted average
diluted number of shares (ignoring any potential issue of ordinary shares
which would be anti-dilutive) dunng the year

Underlying earnings per share compnses basic earnings per share adjusted
to exclude eamings relating to exceptional items, amortisation of acquired
ntangibles and farr value remeasuremments of ernbedded denvatives in
long-term debt Cash tax earnings per share compnses underlying earmngs
per share adjusted to exclude deferred taxation

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and 1t I1s probable that the Group wall be required

to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal

Employee Share Ownership Trust

Shares in the Company acquired by the Employee Share Ownership Trust
in the open market for use in connection with employee share plans are
presented as a deduction from shareholders’ funds together with shares
transferred by the ESOT to employees and registered in the employees
name but subject to mandatory return to the ESOT If performance targeis
are not achieved When the shares vest to satisfy share-based payments,

a transfer 15 made from shares held in treasury to retamed eamings

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell Such assets are dassified as held
for sale if their camying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use Such assets are not depreciated Assets
are regarded as held for sale only when the sale 15 highly probable and the
asset is available for sale in 1ts present condition Management must be
comritted to the sale which must be expected te qualify for recogmition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

Borrowings

Interest bearing bank toans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct transaction costs Finance charges, mcluding
amortisation of direct transaction costs, are charged to the income
statement using the effective interest rate method

Revolving tranches of borrowings and overdrafts which mature on a regular
basis are classified as current or non-current liabilities based on the
matunty of the relevant facilicy
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2 SEGMENTAL ANALYSES
Business segments

The Group operates ane class of business rental of equipment. Operationally and managenally, the Group is split into three business units, Sunbeit, A-Plant
and Ashtead Technology These business uruts are the basis an which the Group reports its primary segment information

Ashtead Corporate

Sunbelt A Mant Technology items Group
Year ended 30 Apni 2007 £n &m £m £m £m
Revenue 6846 1899 216 - 8961
Operating costs before exceptional items (436 0) (1310} {106) (82) (585 8)
EBITDA 2486 589 110 (82) 3103
Depreciation (116 1) (38 8) {48) (01) (1598)
Segment result before exceptional items 1325 201 62 (83) 1505
Amortisation (108) 02) - - {(110)
Exceptional items (315) 67) - (0o2) (38 4)
Segment result 502 132 62 (85) 1011
Net financng costs (137 6)
Loss before tax {36 5)
Taxation 444
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders 79
Segment assets 1,234 2942 222 02 15507
Cash 1
Taxation assets 437
Total assets 15955
Segment hiabilities 1295 491 41 29 1856
Corporate borrowings and accrued interest 9305
Taxation babilities 827
Total Liabilities 1,1988
Other non-cash expenditure
— share-based payments 06 05 (01) 10 20
Capital expenditure 776 2 1040 85 - 8887
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

2 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

Ashtead Corporate
Sunbelt A Pant Techrology 1tems Group

fear ended 30 Apni 2006 £m £m Em £m Em

Revenue 4612 1607 161 - 6380
Operating costs before exceptional items (2878) (111 8) 81) (56) (4133)
EBITDA 1734 489 80 (56) 2247

Depreciation {745} (350} {40) {01 (1136}
Segment result before exceptional iterms 989 139 40 (57) 1M

Exceptional items 134 - - - 134
Segmentresult ) 139 40 (57} 1245

Net financing costs (428)
Profit before tax B17
Taxation (26 1)
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders 556
Segment assets 6670 2348 183 04 9205

Cash 10

Deferred tax asset 29

Other financial assets — dervatives 154

Total assets 9398
Segment habilities 739 277 23 24 1063

Corporate borrowings and accrued interest S057

Taxation Labilities 695

Total liabilities 6815

Other non-cash expendrture

— share-based payments 05 o7 04 03 19

Capital expenditure 2178 562 79 - 2819

There are no sales between the business segments Segrment assets include property, plant and equipment, goodwall, iInventory and receivables Segment
liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude taxation balances corporate borrowings and accrued interest Capital expenditure represents additions
to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and indudes expenditure on acquisition of businesses

Geographical segments

The Group's operations are located in North Amenica, the United Kingdom and Singapore The following table provides an analysis of the Group's revenue,
segment assets and capital expenditure, including acquisitions, by geographical market

Reverue Sepment assets Capital expendituie
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m Em £m £m £m £m
North America 694 2 4686 1,2450 6756 780 5 2205
United Kingdomn 199 4 167 2 3029 2428 1073 606
Rest of World 25 22 28 21 09 o8
856 1 6380 1,5507 5205 8887 2819
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3 OPERATING COSTS AND OTHER INCOME

2007 2006
Before
exceptional Exceptional gefore
ftems and irems and exceptional Exceptianai
amortisation amertisation Total 1tems tems Total
£m £m £m fm £m Em
Staff costs
Salaries 2585 - 258 5 1818 03 1821
Social secunty costs 214 - 214 155 - 155
Other pension casts 47 - 47 28 - 28
Redundancies and retention bonuses - 101 101 - - -
2846 101 2947 2001 03 2004
Other aperating costs
Vehicle costs 643 - 643 517 - 517
Spares, consurmnables and external repairs 575 - 575 453 - 453
Faclity costs 478 102 580 318 05 323
Other external charges 143 4 163 1597 93%s 08 943
3130 265 3395 2223 13 2236
Other income
Profit on dispasal of property, plant and equipment (118) 09 (109} (91) 37 (128)
Other income - - - - (113) (113}
(118) 09 (109) (91) {(150) (24 1)
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of owned assets 1534 0% 1543 1050 - 1050
Depreciation of leased assets 64 - 64 86 - 86
Amortisation of acquired tangibles - 110 110 - - -
1598 1ne 1717 1136 - 1136
7456 494 7950 5269 (134) 5135

Proceeds from the disposal of property, ptant and equipment amounted to £699m (2006 £63 7m) Other income in 2006 related to liigation proceeds

We have reclassified £0 3rm in 2006 frorn salaries to other external charges

The costs shown in the above table include

2007 2006
Before
exceptional Exceptional Before
items and items and exceptional Exceptional
amortisation amortisation Total temns iterns Total
£m £m £m fm im £m
Operating lease rentals payable

Plant and equipment 56 - 56 36 - 36
Property 26.4 102 366 176 05 181
Cost of inventones recognised as expense 1063 - 1063 688 - 688
Bad debt expense 63 - 63 43 - 43
Net foreign exchange losses/{gains) 01 - 01 01) - (o1

The Group's key management compnse the Company’s executive and nan-executive directors Details of their remuneration together with their share

interests and share option awards are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report and form part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

3 OPERATING COSTS AND OTHER INCOME CONTINUED
Remuneration payablte to the Company’s auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, in the year 15 given below

2007 2006
£000 £000
Audit services
Fees payable to Deloitte UK
— Group audit 379 340
~ UK statutory audits of subsidiarres 28 25
Fees payable to other Deloitte firms
— Overseas statutory audit 3 2
- Overseas subsidiary audits 352 194
762 561
Other services
Fees payable to Deloitte UK
- Half year review 102 79
- Other assurance services 18 18
— Due diligence services 345 250
Fees payable to other Deloitte firms
- Tax services 28 36
— Other assurance services 53 -
1,308 944

Due diligence services in 2007 relate to the Lux acquisttion and the review of the Group’s working capital required in connection with the
NationsRent acquisttion

4 NET FINANCING COSTS

2007 2006

£m tm
Investment income
Interest and other financial ncome 01 05
Expected return on assets of defined benehit pension plan a8 22
39 27

Exceptional income and fair value remeasurements of embedded dervatives - 78
Total investment mcome 39 103
Interest expense
Bank interest payable 340 163
Interest on second priority sentor secured notes 317 197
Interest payable on finance leases 16 18
5 25% unsecured convertible [oan note, due 2008
- interest payable - 19
- non-cash unwind of discount - 10
Non-cash urwind of discount on defined pension plan habiities 2.5 22
Non-cash unwind of discount on insurance provisions 07 04
Fair value losses on derwvatives not accounted for as hedges - 03
Amortisation of deferred costs of debt raising 25 27

730 463
Exceptional costs and fair value remeasurernents of embedded denvatives 685 70
Total interest expense M5 533
Net financing costs before exceptional items and fair value remeasurements of embedded denvatives 691 436
Net exceptional income and fair value remeasurements of embedded denvatives 685 (o8)

Net financing costs 1376 428
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5 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS, AMORTISATION AND FAIR VALUE REMEASUREMENTS

2007 2006

Em Em

Seruor note redemption costs 42.1 50
White off of deferred financing costs relating to debt redeemed 105 15
Acquisition integration costs 213 08
Rebranding costs 94 -
UK restructunng 62 -
Litigation proceeds - (113)
Profit on sale of scaffolding - (29)
Gain on repayment of convertible loan note - (20)
Other costs 20 013
Total exceptional items 915 (86)
Amortisation of acquired ntangibles 1o -
Fair value remeasurements of embedded derivatives 154 (56)
1179 (142)

Senior note redemption costs include ‘make-whole payments and associated costs of £25 4m paid at closing on 31 August 2006 in connection with
NationsRent's $400m secured and unsecured loan notes and £16 7m paid on the same date in connection with the redemption of the £78m Ashtead
secured loan notes due 2014 The wnite off of deferred financing costs relates to deferred costs previously carmed forward on both Ashtead’s sterling senior
notes and its $800m asset based bank facility which was replaced on 31 August 2006 by a new $1 75bn asset based bank facility Acquisitton integration
costs relate prnmanly to employee retention and severance costs and vacant property costs following the NationsRent acquisition and rebranding relates to
new signage for profit centres and repainting of former NationsRent equipment UK restructuring relates to pnncipally vacant property costs and the write
off of leasehold improvements at profit centres closed as a result of the A-Plant move to fewer larger sites

Exceptional items, amortisation and fair vatue remeasurements are presented n the income statement as follows

2007 2006

£m tm

Staff costs 101 03
Other operating costs 265 13
Other income 09 (150
Depreciation 09 -
Amortisation 110 -
Charged/{credited) in armving at operating profit 494 (134)
Investment income - (78)
Interest expense 685 70

Charged/(credited) in arrving at profit before taxation 1179 (142)
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CONTINUED
6 TAXATION
2007 2006
£m £m
Analysis of {credit)/charge in period
Current tax
— UK corporation tax at 30% (2006 30%) - -
— overseas taxation 04 i&':
04 55
Deferred tax (44 8) 206
Taxation (44 4) 261

The tax credit comprises a charge of £28 7m (2006 £21 1m} relating to tax on the profit before exceptional iterns, amortisation and fair value
remeasurements and a credit of £73 1m (2006 charge of £5 0m) relating to tax on exceptional items, amortisation and fair value remeasurements
of £37 2m and the recognition of a previously unrecogrised UK deferred tax asset of £359m

The tax credit for the penod 1s higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK {30%) The differences are explained below-

2007 2006
£m £m
{Loss}/profit on ordinary activities before tax (36 5) 817
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the rate of
Corporation tax in the UK of 30% {2006 30%) (109) 245
Effects of
Adjustment to tax charge In respect of pror period - 04
Use of foreign tax rates on overseas income (18} 68
Exceptional recognition of deferred tax asset (359) -
Deferred tax asset recogrused - (29)
Change in unrecognised deferred tax asset 33 27)
Other ) S ) L 09 -
Total taxation (44 4} 261
7 DIVIDENDS
2007 2008
£m Em
Final dwvidend paid on 28 Septermnber 2006 of 10p (2005 nif} per 10p ordinary share 40 -
Intenm dwidend paid on 28 February 2007 of 0 55p (2006 0 5p) per 10p ordinary share 30 20
70 20

tn additson, the directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 30 April 2007 of 1 1p per share which will absorb £6 Om of
sharehelders funds Subject to approval by shareholders it wall be paid on 28 September 2007 to shareholders who are on the register of members on
7 September 2007
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

2007 2006
Waighted Per Weighted Per
average no. share average no share
Earnings of shares amount Earnings of shares amount
£m million pence E€m rmithon pence
Basic eamings per share 79 5123 15p 556 4109 13 5p
Effect of dilutive secunties
Share options and share plan awards - 67 - - 90 (03p)
Diluted earnings per share 79 5190 15p 556 4199 132p
Undertying and cash tax earmings per share may be reconciled to the basic earnings per share as follows
7
Basic earnings per share 15 135
Exceptional items, amortisation of acquired intangibles and fair value remeasurements 230 34
Tax on exceptional items, amortisation and fair value remeasurements (72) 12
Exceptional deferred tax credit for previously unrecognised UK tax losses (70) -
Underlying earnings per share 103 13
Other deferred tax 55 51
Cash tax earnmgs per share 158 164
9 INVENTORIES
2007 2006
£m £m
Raw raterials, consurnables and spares 108 81
Goods for resale 134 46
242 127
10 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2007 2006
£m Em
Trade recevables 1563 1049
Less. provisiens for impawrment {12 4) 84)
1439 9 5
Other recewables 198 139
1637 1104
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Rental equipment Office and Motar vehicies
Land and Held under workshep Cther Hele under
buildings Cramied Binance [sases equiprment leases Owned finance leases Total

£m £m £m £m £m fm Em im
Cost or valuation
At 1 May 2005 606 7920 82 232 07 40 369 9256
Exchange difference 13 265 0z Q6 - o1 12 299
Acquisitions 04 322 - 01 - 26 - 353
Reclassifications - 69 65) 12 ©n 14 (23) -
Additions 40 2018 - 39 - BS 20 2202
Disposals (23) (1394) - i - (20} (15) (146 9)
At 30 April 2006 640 9200 19 27 3 - 146 363 10641
Exchange difference (30) (77 4) 02) (22) - (32 (26) (88¢6)
Acquisitions 94 5050 02 210 - 471 82 5909
Reclassifications - 09 (15) 03 - 33 (30 -
Additions 46 2564 - 67 - 200 25 2902
Disposals (29) (1712 - {54) - {79 (33} (1907
At 30 Apnl 2007 721 14337 04 477 - 739 381 16659
Depreciation
At 1 May 2005 156 3466 07 167 03 04 82 3885
Exchange difference 03 104 - 05 - - 01 113
Reclassifications - 05 {04) 07 (05} 09 {12 -
Charge for the penod 32 959 03 37 02 22 81 1136
Disposals 07) (920} - {(14) - (+3) {08} (96 0)
At 30 April 2006 184 3614 06 202 - 22 146 417 4
Exchange difference {08) {29 1) {01} (18} - (15) {09) (34 2)
Acquisitions 16 1606 - 158 - 274 03 2057
Reclassifications - 04 {06) 02 - 18 (18} -
Charge for the perod 41 1382 02 46 - 74 62 1607
Disposals (+4) {1181 - (39 - (60) (23) {1317
At 30 April 2007 219 513 4 01 351 - 313 161 6179
Net book value
At 30 April 2007 502 9203 03 126 - 426 220 1,0480
At 30 Apnl 2006 456 5586 13 71 - 124 217 6467

The amount of rebuild costs capitalised in the year was £5 4m (2006 £4 1m)
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS INCLUDING GOODWILL
Other intangible assets

Brand Customer Contract

Goodwll names bsts related Total Total

Em £m £m tm Em £m

At 1 May 2005 1182 - - - - 1182
Recognised on acquisition 264 - - - - 264
Exchange differences 44 - - - - 44
At 30 April 2006 1490 - - - - 1490
Recognised on acquisition 1612 07 17 86 210 1822
Adjustrment to prior year acquisition o1 - - - - o1
Amortisation - (04) o1 {(15) (110 (110)
Exchange differences (207) - - (03) ©3) (210
At 30 Apnl 2007 2896 13 16 68 97 2993

Goodwill acquired in a business combination was allocated, at acquisition, to the reporting unets that benefited from that business combination, as follows

2007 2006

£m Em

Sunbelt 2749 1438
A-Plant 127 30
Ashtead Technoiogy 20 22
2896 1490

For the purposes of determining potential goodwill impairment, recoverable amounts are determined from value i use calculations using cash flow
projections based on approved financial plans covering a three year penied The growth rate assumpttons used i the plans were based on past performance
and management’s expectations of market developrents The annual growth rate used to determine the cash flows beyond the three year period 1s 2% and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rates for the relevant markets The pre-tax rate used to discount the projected cash flows for Sunbelt 1s 9%

13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2007 2006

£m £m

Trade payables 558 362
Other taxes and socal secunity 136 85
Accruals and deferred income 97 4 544
166 8 991

Trade and other payables include amounts relating to the purchase of fixed assets of £47 0m {2006 £30 Om)
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14 BORROWINGS
2007 2006
£m £m
Current
First prionty senior secured bank debt 13 15
Finance lease obiigations 77 g1
90 106
Non-current
First prionty senior secured bank debt 504 6 2615
Finance lease obligations 143 141
12% second prionty semor secured notes, due 2014 - 755
8 625% second prionty senior secured notes due 2015 1206 1327
9% second prionty senior secured notes, due 2016 2683 -
Loan notes 02 02
508 0 4840

Costs incurred during the year relating to the raising of debt amounted to £15 2m (2006 £6 3m) and have been carried forward against the book value of
the associated debt in accordance with the Group s accounting policies

Sentor secured bank debt and the senior secured notes are secured by way of, respectively, first and second prionty fixed and floating charges over
substantially ail the Group’s property, plant and equipment, nventory and trade recevables

First prionty senior secured credit facility

In connection with the NationsRent acquisition, or 31 August 2006 the Group repaid the outstanding borrowings under its $800m first prionty asset
based senior secured loan facility and replaced it with a new $1 75bn first prionty asset based senior secured loan facility ("ABL faciity”) The new ABL
facility consists of a $1 5bn revobang credit facility and & $250m term: loan and 1s secured by a first prionty interest in substantially all of the Group's
assets Priang 15 based on the rat:o of funded debt to EBITDA before exceptional ttems according to a gnd which varies, depending on leverage from LIBOR
plus 225bp to LIBOR plus 150bp At 30 Apnl 2007 the Group’s borrowing rate was LIBOR plus 175bp

The ABL facility carmes minimal amortisation of 1% per annum ($2 5m) on the term toan and 1s commutted unail August 2011 The ABL facility includes
a springing covenant package under which quarterly financial performance covenants are tested only if available hquidity 1s less than $125m Avarlable
hquidity at 30 Apnl 2007 was £295m ($589m) reflecting drawings under the facility at that date together with cutstanding letters of credit of £186m
{537 2m) As the ABL facility 1s asset based, the maximum amount avarlable to be borrowed (which includes drawings in the form of standby letters

of credit} depends on asset values {recesvables, inventory, rental equipment and real estate} which are subject to penodic independent appraisatl The
maxamum amount which could be drawn at 30 April 2007 was £832m (51,663m)

12% second prionty senior secured notes due 2014 having a nominal value of £78m
These notes were redeemed on 31 August 2006 for their nominal value of £78m plus a “make-whole” payment of £16 7m including costs

8 625% second prionty seruor secured notes due 2015 having a nominal value of $250m

On 3 August 2005 the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary Ashtead Holdings plc 1ssued $250m of 8625% second prionity senior secured notes
due T August 2015 The notes are secured by second prionty secunty interests over substantially the same assets as the ABL facility and are aiso
guaranteed by Ashtead Group plc

9% second pnority senior secured notes due 2016 having a norminal value of §550m

On 15 August 2006 the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary Ashtead Capital, Inc, 1ssued $550m of 9% second prionty senior secured notes due
15 August 2016 The notes are secured by second prionty interests over substantially the same assets as the ABL facility and are also guaranteed by
Ashtead Group plc Both note 1ssues rank parl passu on a second Lien basis
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The effective rates of nterest at the batance sheet dates were as follows

2007 2006

First prionity senior secured bank debt — revolving advances in dollars 713% 625%
- term loan advances in dollars 713% 6 50%

- revolving advances in sterting 7 30% 608%

Sterling secured notes n/a 12 0%
Doltar secured notes - $250m nominal value 8625% 8625%
— $550m nominal value 90% n/a

Finance leases 70% 70%

A discusston of financial instrurnents used by the Group and its approach to managmg foreign exchange and interest rate sk 1s included in the Business

and Fmancial Review

Net farr values of dervative financial instruments

At 30 April 2007, the Group's embedded prepayment options included within its secured loan notes had a combined fair value of £nil (2006 £15 4m)

At 30 Aprl 2007, the Group had no other denvative financial mstruments At 30 Apnl 2006, the Group had one interest rate swap with a notionat principal
of $100m which was designated as a cash flow hedge and which matured on 3 May 2006 The net fair value of this dervative financial instrument at

30 Apnl 2006 was £03m

Fair value of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

The tabte below provides a companson, by category of the carrying amounts and the fair values of the Group's non-denvative financial assets and

lrabilsties at 30 Apnl 2007 Fair value 1s the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm's length transaction between informed
and willing parties and includes accrued interest Where available, market vaiues have been used to determine fair values of financial assets and Labikities
Where market values are not available, far values of financial assets and labilities have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at

prevailing interest and exchange rates

2007 2006
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
£m £m £m £m

Farr value of non-current borrowings

Long-term borrowings

— first pnonty senior secured bank debt 5111 5111 2705 2705
— finance lease obligations 143 147 141 137
— 12% senior secured nates - - 780 925
— 8625% senior secured notes 1250 1300 1375 1425
— 9% senior secured notes 2750 2963 - -
— other {oan notes 0z 02 02 0z
9256 9523 500 3 5194
Deferred costs of raising finance (17 6) - (163) -
508 0 9523 4840 5194
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15 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

2007 2006
h E:);I:;-alue_ Fair value Baak .raEu; Fair v;iue
£m £m £m £m
Fair value of other financial instruments held or 1ssued to finance the Group’s operations
Short-term borrowings 13 13 15 15
Finance lease obiigations due within one year 1T 79 91 g8
Trade and other payables 1668 1668 991 991
Trade and other recevables {1637) (163 7) (110 4) (110 4)
Cash at bank and in hand {11 (11 (19 (10)
Matunty of financial labilities
The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group's financial liabilities 1s as follows
2007 2006
Finance ) Finance
Debt {eases Total Debt leases Total
e £m fm £m o £m Em £€m
Less than one year 13 77 20 15 91 106
Between one and two years 13 57 70 15 55 70
Between two and five years 5035 86 5121 2602 85 2687
More than five years 3889 - 3889 2082 01 2083
8950 220 9170 4714 232 4946
The m:imum lease payments under finance leases fall due as foliows
2007 2006
£m £m
Within one year 89 103
Later than one year but not more than five 163 157
More than five years - 01
252 261
Future finance charges on finance leases (32} (29)
Present value of future fimance lease payments 220 232
16 PROVISIONS
Self insurance Other Tomail
£m £m £m
At 1 May 2006 158 25 183
Exchange differences (18) 04) {20
Acquired In the year 63 - 63
Utilssed (12 4) (31 {155}
Charged i the year 120 125 245
Amortisation of discount 07 - 07

At 30 Apnl 2007 208 15 323
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16 PROVISIONS CONTINUED
2007 2006
£fm £m
Included m current frabilities 127 70
Included i non-current iabilsties 196 113
323 183

Self insurance provisions relate to the discounted estimated hability in respect of costs to be incurred under the Group’s self-insured programmes for
gvents occurmng up to the year-end and are expected to be utlised over a penod of approximately eight years The provision 1s established based on advice
recewved from independent actuanies of the estimated total cost of the self insured retained risk based on histonical claims expenence The amount charged
In the year Is stated net of a £3 1m adjustrent to reduce the provision held at 1 May 2006

Other provisions relate primarily to vacant property costs which are expected to be utilised over a period of up to five years

17 DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax assets
Other
temporary
Tax fosses arfferences Total
£m £m £m
At 1 May 2006 14 185 199
Exchange differences 14 21 (39
Acquisitions 287 145 432
{Charge)/credit to income staternent {29 393 368
Credit to equity - 16 16
Less offset against deferred tax hability (262) (301) {(563)
At 30 Apnil 2007 - 4917 417
Deferred tax habilitres
Other
Accelerated temparary
tax depreciation differences Total
£m £m £m
At 1 May 2006 806 26 832
Exchange differences {106) -~ {108}
Acquisitions 724 13 737
Credit to mcome staternent 4n (33} (80
1377 06 1383
Less offset of deferred tax assets
— benefit of tax losses {262)
— other temporary differences {301
At 30 Aprd 2007 820

The Group's improving profitability in the UK and the rearganisation of our internal corporate structure to finance the NationsRent acquisitian has enabled
the Group to recagnise a total deferred tax asset in the UK of £41 7m at 30 Apnil 2007 (2006 £2 9rn) as rt 15 considered probable that sufficient taxable
profit wiil be available to utitise this deferred tax asset The Group has an unrecognised UK deferred tax asset of £20m (2006 £34 3m) in respect of fosses,
as it 15 not considered probable this deferred tax asset will be utilised

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistnbuted earnings of subsidsanes for which deferred tax
Liabitities have not been recogrised was £116m (2006 £92m) No bability has been recogrused in respect of these differences because the Group s in a
position to control the tining of the reversal of the temporary differences and 1t 1s probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future
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18 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

2007 2006 2007 2006
MNumber Number £m £m
Ordinary shares of 10p each
Authonsed 900,000,000 900,000,000 900 900
tssued and fully paid
At 1 May 404,334,066 326,074,928 40 4 326
Allotted under share option schemes 3,324,267 4,808,786 04 0s
Allotted through nights issue 152,240,015 73,350,352 152 73
At 30 April 559,808,348 404,334,066 56 0 40 4

On 29 August 2006 the Group i1ssued 152,240,015 ordinary shares of 10p each at £1 per share through a 3 for 8 nghts issue which raised £152 2m before
1ssue expenses of £3 5m A further 3 324 267 shares were issued during the year at an average price of 64 6p per share under share option plans raising
£22m

19 RECONCILATION OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Own Cumulatie
Equity shares foreign
Share element of Non- heig n exchange
Share premium converthie distnbutable treasury translation Distributable
capital account loan note resenve (ESOT} differences reserves Totat
£m £m fm £m fm £m Em £m
At 1 May 2005 326 1008 243 - {16) {326) (38 1197
Total recognised income and expense - - - - - 154 558 72
Shares 1ssued 78 66 2 - (31) - - - 709
Dividends - - - - - - (20) (20)
Share-based payments - - - - - - 13 13
Capital reduction - {163 8) - 938 - - 700 -
Vesting of share awards - - - - 02 - {02) -
Own shares purchased - - - - (28} - - (28)
Redemption of convertible ioan note - - (243) - - - 243 -
At 30 Apni 2006 404 3z - 07 (42} (17 2) 145 4 2583
Total recognised income and expense - - - - - {130y 120 {10)
Shares Issued 156 a1 - - - - 1332 1489
Crvidends - - - - - - (7 0) (70}
Share-based payments - - - - - - 24 24
Vesting of share awards - - - - 04 - (04) -
Own shares purchased - - - - (49) - - (49)
At 30 Apnl 2007 560 33 - 907 (87) (302) 2856 3967

20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Employee Share Option Trust {ESOT) facilitates the provision of shares under certain of the Croup’s share-based remuneration plans It holds a
beneficial interest in 8,290,747 ordinary shares of the Company acquired at an average cost of 104 7p per share The £SOT owned directly 4,932,329 of
these shares and a further 3,358,418 shares were registered in the name of Investment Incentive Ptan cor Performance Share Plan participants on terms
which require that the award shares are transferred back to the ESOT to the extent that the performance targets are not met. The shares had a market
value of £12 8m at 30 Apnl 2067 The £30T and the plan partiapants have waived the night 1o receve dividends on the shares they hold The costs of
operating the ESOT are bome by the Group but are not significant.

The Group has recognised the farr value of share-based payments 1o employees based on grants of shares since 7 Novernber 2002 (the transitional date
for IFRS 2, Share-based payments)
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20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

Cash Incentive Plan

The Cash Incentive Plan {*CIP") 15 an award of units which are subject to the same performance conditions as apply to the Company's unapproved share
option scheme Awards were granted under this plan in 2000 and 2001 and are exercisable up to February 2010 and 2011, respectively, as all performance
conditions have been satisfied On exercise by the option holder, the difference between the nmud-market price of Ashtead Group plc shares on that day
and the grant pnces of 94 09p and 115 31p, for the 2000 and 2001 awards respectively, multiplied by the number of units held wilt be paid by way of a
cash awerd to the holder, net of applicable taxes

In 2006 the credit in respect of the CIP was £289,000 (2006 charge of £558 000} The fair value of the awards at 30 April 2007 was based on the share
price on that date

Investment Incentive Plan

Detalls of the Investment Incentive Plan ("IIP") are given on page 41 The costs of this scheme are charged to the income statement over the vesting
penod, based upon the fair value of the award at the grant date and the likelihood of allocations vesting under the scheme In 2007 the charge in respect
of the IIP was £160,000 (2006 £160,000) No awards were granted under the IIP in 2007 The fair value of awards granted during 2004 was estimated
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions share price at grant date of 48 50p, il exercise price, no dmvidend yield,
volatlity of 125 4%, a nsk free rate of 4 9% and an expected life of three years

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatility over the previous three years The expected life used in the rmodel 1s based \
on the terms of the plan

Performance Share Plan !
Details of the Performance Share Plan {'PSP’) are given on pages 41 and 42 The costs of this scheme are charged to the income statement over the

vesting penod, based on the fair value of the award at the grant date and the likelthood of atlocations vesting under the scherme In 2007, the charge

in respect of the PSP was £1,275,000 (2006 £828 000)

The fair value of awards granted during the year 1s estimated using a Black-Scholes opt:on pricing model with the following assurnptions share price
at grant date of 153 S0p, nil exercise pnce a dividend yield of G98%, volatility of S80% a risk free rate of 4 9% and an expected life of three years

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the histoncal volatility over the previcus three years. The expected life used in the model is based
on the terms of the plan

Discretionary share option schemes
Details of the discretionary share option schemes are given on page 41 In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 2, Share-based payments,
the Group has not recogrised any expense for these schemes as they were all granted prior to 7 Novernber 2002

Save-As-You-Earn (SAYE) schemes
The costs of SAYE schernes are charged to the income statement over the vesting period based upon the fair value of the award at the grant date
In 2007 the charge in respect of SAYE schemes was £286,000 (2006 £400,000}

The farr value of awards granted dunng the year is estimated using a Black-Scholes option pnaing model with the following assumptions share price at
grant date of 128 92p, exercise price of 122 14p, a dvidend yield of 1 16%, volatlity of 46 2%, a nsk free rate of 4 9% and an expected Ufe of three years
Expected volatility was determined by calculating histoncal volatility over the previous three years The expected life used in the model is based on the
terms of the plan
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20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

Duscretionary scherres SAYE
Weighted Werghted
average Fnmrage
exerase exercse lip PSP
i e e e e e oo o Mumber | pncef(p) | Nember o prce(p), Number Number
2004/5
Outstanding at 1 May 2004 15,298,668 107613 3410276 30372 2072582 -
Granted - - 1960219 30740 987,501 1.831,500
Forfeited {2 576,685) 132 478 {149,112) 32150 (1,896,113) -
Exercised {25.000) 41500 (393 364) 42872 - -
Expired (887,230} 61440 {584 512) 36962 - -
Outstanding at 30 Apnil 2005 11,809,692 105 797 4,243,507 28413 1,163,970 1,831,500
Exercisable at 30 Apni 2005 - - 120,245 50748 - -
2005/6
Qutstanding at 1 May 2005 11,809,692 105 797 4,243,507 28413 1,163,970 1,831,500
Granted - - 398,777 115430 - 1,899,399
Forfeited {507,234) 120 544 (124,396) 32369 - (88 453)
Exercised (4.815,598) 80813 {93,188) 4B 774 {176,469} -
Expired - - {197,774) 37403 - -
Quistanding at 30 April 2006 6,486,860 123191 4,226,926 35637 987,501 3,642,446
Exercisable at 30 April 2006 6,486,860 123191 33,674 31233 - -
2006/7
Qutstanding at 1 May 2006 6,486,860 123191 4,226,926 35637 987,501 3642445
Granted - - 555,938 132 400 - 1,759,087
Rights 1ssue uphft 505874 - 287,945 - 83,045 296,891
Forfeited (32077) 107 541 (77,270} 80 408 - (210.252)
Exercised (1,993,853} 90741 (1,330414) 25385 - -
Expired {4.336) 124223 (183,483} 88572 - -
Outstanding at 30 Aprit 2007 4,962,468 123876 3479642 48911 1,070,546 5488172
Exercisable at 30 April 2007 4,962,468 123876 81,380 23246 - -
Options outstanding at 30 Apnl 2007
Discretionary schernes SAYE
Weighted Weighted
average Latest verage Lazest
exense Number exerase exerase Number exercise
Year of grant pnce (p) of shares date price {n) of shares date
1997/8 170384 1,346,487 05 Feb 08 - - -
1998/9 160320 763,910 26 Feb 09 - - -
1999/2000 94039 186,828 (08 Mar 10 - - -
2000/1 108 384 2,043,295 16 Aug 10 - - -
200172 38282 621,948 26 Feb 12 38374 B625 30 Sep 07
2002/3 - - - 22388 947,115 310 08
2003/4 - - - - - -
2004/5 - - - 28357 1,647,571 31 Mar 08
2005/6 - - - 106 480 325,299 30 Apr 08
2006/7 - - - 122134 551,032 28 Feb 10
4,962,468 3,479,642

The weighted average share price during the period for eptions exercised over the year was 90 741p (2006 80 813p) for discretionary schemes and
25 385p {2006 48 774p) far SAYE schemes The total charge for the year relating to employee share-based payment plans was £2 0m (2006 £19m),
compnising a £2 3m charge for equity-settled share-based payment transactions and a £0 3m credit relating to cash-settled share-based payment
transactions After deferred tax, the total charge was £15m (2006 £17m)
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271 OPERATING LEASES
Mimimum annual cornrmitments under existing operating leases may be analysed by date of expiry of the lease as follows

2007 2006
£m £m

Land and buldings
Expinng I one year 17 09
Expinng between two and five years 166 55
Expinng in more than five years 128 105
311 169

Other

Expinng in one year 05 o1
Expinng between two and five years 36 09
41 10
Total 352 179

Total mimimum cornmitments under existing operating leases at 30 Apnl 2007 through to the end of ther respective term by year are as follows

Land ana
builkhings Cther Total
Financial year Em fm £m
2008 311 41 352
2009 284 11 295
2010 213 01 214
2011 170 - 170
2012 142 - 142
Thereafter 1200 - 1200
2320 53 2373

22 PENSIONS

The Group operates pension plans for the benefit of qualifying employees The major plans for new employees throughout the Group are all defined
contnibution plans following the introduction of the stakeholder pension plan for UK employees in May 2002 Pension costs for defined contnbution plans
were £36m (2006 £18m)

The Greup also has a defined benefit plan for UK employees which was closed to new members in 2001 This plan is a funded defined benefit plan with
trustee administered assets held separately from those of the Group It was valued by the actuanies under IAS 19, Employee Benefits, at 30 Apnl 2007
The principal assumptions made by the actuary were as follows.

2007 2006
Rate of increase i salanes 425% 400%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 325% 300%
Discount rate 5 50% 500%
Inflation assumption 325% 300%

Expected return on plan assets 7 40% 730%




ASHTEAD GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2007 NOTES TO THE CONSQUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

22 PENSIONS CONTINUED
The amounts recogrused in the income statement are as follows
2007 2006
£m Em
Current service cost 11 10
Interest cost 2.5 22
Expected return on plan assets (38) {22)
Total (income)/expense (02} 10
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows
2007 2006
£m f£m
Fair value of plan assets 576 522
Present value of defined benefit obligation (52 4) {50 5)
Net asset recognised in the balance sheet 52 17
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows
2007 2006
£m £
At 1 May 505 507
Current service cast 11 10
Interest cost 25 22
Contributions from members 06 06
Actuanal {gain)/loss (16) 51
Benefits paid (07) (@4
Settlements - (87)
52.4 505

The actuanal gain in the year ended 30 April 2007 reflects the increase in the required discount rate (that for AA rated corporate bands) in the year from
50% to 5 5% which reduced the discounted amount of accrued defined benefit obligations, partially offset by moving to the medium cohort mortality tables

Maovements in the fair value of plan assets were as follows

2007 2006

£m £m

At 1 May 522 345
Expected return an plan assets 38 22
Actual return on plan assets in excess of expecied return 09 53
Contnbutions from the sponsonng companies 08 187
Contnbutions from members 06 06
Benefits paid (g} 04
Settlements - 87)
576 522
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22 PENSIONS CONTINUED
The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date was as follows
Expected retun Fair value
2007 2006 2007 2006
% 4% £m Em
Equity instruments 7T 77 437 396
Bonds 52 51 77 73
Property 77 77 61 52
Cash - - a1 01
576 522
The history of expenence adjustments s as follows
2007 2006 2005
£m Em Em
Fair value of scherne assets 576 522 345
Present value of defined benefit obligations (52 4) (505) (507)
Surplus/{deficit} in the scheme 52 17 (16 2)
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities
Gain/{loss) (£Em} 16 (s1) (42)
Percentage of scheme liabilities 3% (10%) (8%)
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Gain (£€m) 09 53 05
Percentage of the present value of the scheme assets 2% 10% 1%

The estimated amount of contributions expected to be pad by the Company to the plan duning the current financial year 15 £07m

23 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
a) Cash flow from operating activities

2007 2006

£m fm
Operating profit 1011 1245
Pepreaation and amortisation 17m7y 1136
Exceptional items 375 (134)
EBITDA before exceptional items 3103 2247
Profit on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment (118) (R
Decrease in inventones 148 22
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 72 {112)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (46) 75
Exchange differences 1 {03}
Other non-cash movements 23 14

Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 3193 2152
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23 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT CONTINUED
b) Reconciliation to net debt

2007 2005
£m £m
(tncrease)/decrease in cash in the period (o1 12
Increase 1n debt through cash flow 2388 14
Change in net debt from cash flows 2387 26
Exchange differences {647) 37
Debt acquired 2328 -
Non-cash movernents
- deferred costs of debt raising 130 40
- convertible loan note - (10
- @plfal elerment of new finance leases 25 20
Movement in net debt in the penod 4223 13
MNet debt at 1 May 4936 4823
MNet debt at 30 April 9159 4936
) Analysis of net debt
1 May Exchange Cash Dett Non-cash 30 Apné
2006 movement flow acgulred movements 2007
£m £m Em £m £m Em
Cash and cash equivalents (10) - (01 - - (1M
Debt due within one year 106 (o8} {134) 73 51 90
Debt due after one year 4840 {64 1) 2522 2255 104 9080
Total net debt 4936 (64 7) 2387 2328 155 9159

Non-cash movernents relate to prepaid fees written off on debt refinanced during the year, the amortisation of prepaid fees relating to senior secured debt

facilities and the addition of new finance leases in the year

d) Exceptional financing costs paid

Exceptional financing costs paid compnse £16 7m relating to the redemption of the second prionty senior secured loan notes due 2014 and £32 6m
relating to the redemption of NauonsRent debt acquired £0 Sm relates to preacquisifion interest on the second pnonty secured notes due 2016

) Acquisitions
2007 2006

NationsRent Lux Tatat Total
£m Em £m £m
Cash consideration 312 158 3270 570
Less (Cash)/overdrafts acquired (65) 03 (62) -
Artnbutable costs pard 61 03 64 -
3108 164 3272 570
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24 ACQUISITIONS

NationsRent Companies, Inc (“NationsRent”}

On 31 August 2006, Sunbelt acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of NationsRent for a total consideration of $592m plus acquisition costs. As part of
the NattonsRent acquisition, the Group has also agreed to pay deferred contingent constderation of up to $89m The amount of the deferred contingent
consideration 1s lnked to the Campany’s share price performance over the three years from 1 September 2006 to 31 August 2009 In the event that the
Company's share pnice (measured on 2 five day average basis) nises by more than 22 2% above the reference price of 204p (as adjusted for the bonus
elerment of the rights tssue), contingent consideration becomes payable at the rate of $5m for every additional 1% nise in the share price up to a
maximum of 40% above the reference pnce Accordingly, deferred contingent consideration starts to become payable when the Company’s share pnce
reaches 250p with the maximum $85m being payable at 286p The contingent consideration i1s payable on a quarterly basis i cash It s not practicable
to estimate reliably the amount of contingent consideration which will become payable and accordingly no provision has been made

NationsRent's revenues and estimated operating profits under IFRS and Ashtead Group ple specific accounting policies for the peniod pre-acquisition
{1 May to 31 August 2006) were $230 7m and $19 2m respectively For the previous full year {1 May 2005 to 30 Apnl 2006) NationsRent's estimated

revenue and operating profit were $605 8m and $14 9m respectively on the same accounting basis

Due to the operational integration of NationsRent and Sunbelt since acquisition, n particular the movement of rental equipment between profit centres
and the merger of some profit centres, it 1s not practical to report the revenue and profit of the acquired business post acquisition

The provisional goodwill ansing on acquisition s as follows

Acquiree 5 At estimated

book saiue faur value
Em &m
Net assets acquired
Inventary 314 280
Trade and other receivables 554 544
Cash and cash equivalents 65 65
Property, plant and equipment
- rental equipment 2875 3404
— other assets 451 398
Intangible assets — tradename and distribution agreements 43 179 |
Assets held for sale - 311
Trade and other payables {857) (908)
Deferred tax lability (net of acquired tax losses of £28 7m) (54) (292) .
Debt {2200) (2326) ,
Net assets acquired 1191 1655 '
Consideration paid
Cash 32
Amount recenvable relating to adjustrnent to rmitial consideration {03) '
Directly attnbutable costs 61
3170
Goodwall ' 1515

The book value of NationsRent in the table above 1s stated under US GAAP On emergence from bankruptcy in 2003 NationsRent adopted “fresh start™
accounting which resulted in a significant write down in the carrying value of its assets and liabilities, particularly property, plant and equipment.
Accordingly, it 1s not practicable to present the book value of NationsRent's assets under IFRS

$280m of the consideration payable for the ordinary equity share capital of NationsRent was paid at closing to an escrow agent to secure the warranties
and indemnities given by the vendors in the merger agreement. $22 Om has already been released with $21 5m going to the vendors and 50 5m returned
to Sunbelt The remainder will either be released to the vendors n stages by 31 August 2007 as the related warranties and indemmties expire or will be
used to meet any agreed warranty or indemnity claims
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24 ACQUISITIONS CONTINUED

Lux Traffic Controls Limited ("Lux")

On 16 October 2006, A-Plant purchased the entire 1ssued share capital of Lux for total consideration of £15 8m and attnibutable costs of £0 3m The
acquisition included arrangements for the vendor to acquire from Lux for cash immediately after closing assets valued at £0 3m and consequently, before
costs, there was a net cash outflow of £15 5m i connection with the acquisition The consideration payabte was subject to downwards only adjustment to
the extent that Lux's net assets at closing are tess than £4 25m The necessary closing accounts have now been prepared and agreed with £60,000 of the
£0 5m escrow amount being returned and the balance released to the vendor

The net assets acquired and the goodwill ansing on the acquisition are summansed i the table below

Arquiree s
book value Ar farr value
Em Em
Net assets acquired
nventory 03 01
Trade and other recenables 24 28
Assets acquired by the vendor immediately after closing 03 03
Property, plant and equipment
— rental equipment 38 42
- other assets Q7 05
Intangible assets (tradenares, custorner list and non-competes) - 31
Trade and other payables (28) (28)
Shart term borowings {03) (03)
Deferred tax liabilities (04) (13)
Debt (02) (02)
38 64
Consideration pad
Pawd In cash at closing 158
Directly attrbutable costs 03
161
GCoodwill 97

Lux’s revenue and operating profit in the period from 1 May 2006 to 16 October 2006 were £3 5m and £0 6m, respectively For the same reasons as
NationsRent, it 1s not practical to repert the revenue and profit of the acquired business post acquisition

Goodwill ansing on both the NationsRent and Lux acqursstions reflects the benefits of the acquisitions arising to the Group not reflected in the tangible
and wdentifiable intangible assets acquired In the case of NationsRent, ths reflects principally the operational synergies available post acquisition, the
intrinsic value of the workforce and the increased opportunities available to Sunbelt as a result of its scale Simtarly for Lux it reflects the acquired
workforce and the benefits brought to A-Plant’s business of a leading positian in the rental traffic systems market.
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25 CONTINGENT UABILITIES
The Group is subject to penodic legal claims in the ordinary course of its business However, the claims outstanding at 30 Apnil 2007, net of provisions
held, are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial pasition

The Company has guaranteed the borrowings of its subsidiary undertakings under the Group s semor secured credit and overdraft facilities At 30 Apn!
2007 the amount borrowed under these facilities was £512 4m (2006 £272 Om) Addiionally, subsidiary undertakings are able to obtain letters of credit
under these facilities which are also guaranteed by the Cormpany and at 30 Apnl 2007, letters of credit issued under these arrangements totafled £186m
{537 2m) Additionally the Company has guaranteed the 8 625% second prionty senior secured notes with a par value of $250m {£125m} and 9% second
priority semor secured notes with a par value of $550m (£275m), 1ssued by Ashtead Holdings plc and Ashtead Caprtal, Inc, respectively

The Company has guaranteed operating and finance lease commitments of subsidiary undertakings where the minimum lease commitment at 30 Apnl
2007 totalled £69 4m (2006 £77 Tm) in respect of land and buildings and £19 8m (2006 £190m}) in respect of other lease rentals of which £53m and
£6 2m respectively 1s payable by subsidiary undertakings in the year ending 30 Apnl 2008

The Company has guaranteed the performance by subsidianes of certain other obligations up to £0 3m (2006 £1 1m)

26 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At 30 April 2007 capital commutrments in respect of purchases of rental and other equipment totalled £750m (2006 £1190m), alt of which had been
ordered There were no other matenal capital commitments at the year-end

27 EMPLOYEES
The average number of employees, including directors, duning the year was as follows

2007 2006
North America 6,556 4122
United Kingdom 2,401 2068
Rest of World 1 "

8,968 6,201
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

28 PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION
a) Balance sheet of the Company, Ashtead Group pic

2007 2006
Note £m £m
Current assets
Prepayments and accrued income 02 05
Non-current assets _m
Investments in Group companies {e} 3637 2776
Total assets 3639 2781
Current Liabilities
Other taxes and social secunty - 01
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 86 622
Accruals and deferred income 29 22
115 645
Non-current babilities
Loan notes 02 02
T T, ) T T2 Y
Total babilities 1n7 647
Equity shareholders’ funds
Share capital @ 560 404
Share premium account ® 33 32
Non-distnbutable reserve ® 907 507
Own shares held i treasury through the ESOT @ a7} (42)
Distributable reserves (2 2109 833
Totat equity shareholders’ funds 3522 2134
Total habilities and equity shareholders’ funds 3639 2781
@‘e {nanciat statements were approved by the Board on 25 jung, 2007
- 9 .
G Drabble St Robson

Chief Executive Finance Director
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28 PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION CONTINUED
b) Cash flow statement of the Company, Ashtead Group plc

2007 2006
Note £m Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash {used by)/generated from operations
before exceptional items th) (50 8) 636
Exceptional iterms {01) -
Cash generated from operations (509) 636
Financing casts pard - (102)
Net cash from operating activities (509) 534
Cash flows from investing actraties
Increase in investment i subsidiary (86 1) -
Cash flows from financing activities
Redemption of loans - {1195)
Purchase of own shares by the ESOT (49} (28)
Proceeds from i1ssue of ordinary shares 1489 709
Dividends paid (70} (20)
Net cash from/{used in) financing activities 1370 (S34)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents = -

¢) Accounting policies
The Company financial staternents have been prepared on the basis of the accounting policies set out in note 1 above, supplemented by the policy on
Investments set out below

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any necessary provision for impairment in the parent company balance sheet Where an
investment in a substdiary 15 transferred to another subsidiary, any uphift in the value at which it 1s transferred over its carrying value is treated as a
revaluation of the investment pnor to the transfer and 15 credited to the revaluation reserve

d) income statement
Ashtead Group plc has not presented its own profit and toss account as permitied by section 230 {3) of the Companies Act 1985 The amount of the loss
for the financial year dealt with in the accounts of Ashtead Group plc 1s £06m {2006 loss of £0 8mm)

¢} Investments
Shares in Group companies

Em
At 1 May 2006 2776
Additions 861
At 30 Apni 2007 3637

During the year the Company subscnbed for 7,698,414 additional shares in its subsidiary, Ashtead Holdings ple, for consideration of £86 m The
consideration was satisfied in cash using part of the proceeds of the nghts ssue on 29 August 2006
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

28 PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION CONTINUED
The Company s principal subsidiaries are

Princpal country in which

Country af subsidiary undertaking
Name incorporation operates
Ashtead Holdmngs plc England United Kingdom
Sunbelt Rentals Inc USA USA
Ashtead Plant Hire Company Lirmited England United Kingdom
Ashtead Technology Limited Scotland Uruted Kingdom
Ashtead Technology {South East Asia) pte Limited Singapore Singapore
Ashtead Technology, Inc USA USA

The issued share capital (all of which compnses ordinary shares) of subsidianes i1s 100% owned by the Company or by subsidiary undertakings and alt

subsidiaries are consolidated The pnncipal activity of Ashtead Holdings plc 15 an investment holding company The principal actsvity of each other

subsidiary undertaking listed above Is equipment rental Ashtead Group plc owns all the 1ssued share capital of Ashtead Holdings pic which in turn holds
all of the other subsidiaries listed above except for Sunbelt Rentals Inc and Ashtead Technolegy Inc which Ashtead Holdings ple owns indirectly through

another subsidiary undertaking

f) Finanaial instrurments
The book value and farr value of the company’s financial instruments are equal.

The Company s financial babibities mature between two and five years

g) Reconaiiabion of changes in shareholders’ funds

Own

Equity shares

Share eterment of Naon- held in

Share premium convertible distnbutable veasury Dtstnbutable

capital account loan nate resere (EsOT) reserves Jotat
£m £m £m Em Em £m Ern
At 1 May 2005 326 1008 243 - (16) (93) 1468
Total recognised income and expense - - - - - 08) (08)
Shares 1ssued 78 662 - (31} - - 709
Duidends - - - - - (20) (20}
Share-based payrments - - - - - 13 13
Capital reduction - (163 8) - 938 - 700 -
Vesting of share awards - - - - 02 {©2) -
Own shares purchased - - - - (28) - {28)
Redemption of convertible ioan note - - (243} - - 243 -
At 30 Apnl 2006 404 32 - 8a7 (42) 833 2134
Total recogmsed income and expense - - - - - {06) (08)
Shares ssued i56 01 - - - 1332 1489
Dividends - - - - - {70) (70)
Share-based payments - - - - - z24 24
Vesting of share awards - - - - 04 (04) -
Own shares purchased - - - - (49) - (49)
At 30 Apnl 2007 560 33 - 907 (87) 2109 3522
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28 PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION CONTINUED
h) Notes to the Company cash flow statement
Cash flow from operating activities

2007 2006
£m £m
Operating loss (04} 02)
Depreciation g1 01
EBITDA {03) {01
Decrease in receivables 03 03
Increase in payables 05 10
(Decrease)/increase in intercompany payable {536) 610
Other non-cash movement 23 14
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from operations before exceptional iterns {50 8) 636
Reconcihiation to net debt
2007 2006
£m £Em
Net debt at 1 May 02 1206
Non cash movement — 5 25% unsecured canvertible loan note, due 2008 - {09)
Decrease in debt through cash flow - {1195)

Net debt at 30 Apnl 02 02
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TEN YEAR HISTORY

IFRS UK GAAP

3 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
In £m
Revenue* 8961 6380 5237 5003 5395 5837 5520 3024 2560 2025
Operating costs* 5858 4133 3542 3533 3894 3986 3453 1814 1464 1133
EBITDA’ 3103 2247 1695 147Q 1501 1851 2067 1210 1096 892
Depreciation® 1598 1136 1024 102 8 1110 1178 1176 668 633 485
Operating profit* 1505 1111 671 442 391 673 891 542 463 407
Interest* (69 1) {4386) (44 7) (366) {409) (491} (507) (109) {77) (50}
Pre-tax profit/(loss)* 814 675 224 76 {18} 182 384 433 386 357
Operating profit 1011 1245 671 162 06 725 682 571 463 407
Pre-tax (loss)/profit (36 5) 817 322 (331) (422) {155) 111 462 386 357
Net cash flow from
operating activities 1813 1544 1283 1267 2103 2020 1730 1114 933 176
Capital expenditure 290 2 2202 1384 723 855 1138 2377 1582 1505 1534
Book cost of rental equipment 1,4341 9219 80D 2 8139 9458 9719 9628 6295 5279 3941
Shareholders’ funds - 3967 2583 1099 1318 1594 1929 2021 2368 2075 1513
In pence
Dwvidend per share propesed 165p 150p Nit Nit Nil 350p 350p 316p 270p 230p
Earnings per share 08p 135p 52p (99p) (9 5p) 11p 65p 118p 113p 92p
Underlying earmings per share 103p 113p 32p (0 7p) (0 4p) 137p 92p 11 8p 11 3p 96p
In percent
EBITDA margin® 346% 352% 324% 29 4% 27 8% 317% 37 4% 400% 428% 440%
Cperating profit margin’ 16 8% 17 4% 129% 88% 72% 115% 16 1% 17 9% 18 1% 201%
Pre-tax profit/(loss) margin® 91% 106% 48% 15% {03%) 31% 70% 143% 16 7% 176%
People
Employees at year-end 10,077 6,465 5935 5833 6,078 6,545 6,043 3,930 3,735 3174
Locations
Profit centres at year-end 659 413 412 428 449 463 443 352 341 275

The figures for 2005, 2006 ang 2007 are reparted in accondance with IFRS Figures for 2004 and prior are reported under LK GAAP and have not been restated n accordance with IFRS
+ Before excepuional items and goodwill amorusation EBITDA, operating prof © and pre tax prohit/(loss} are stated before excephonai items but have been adjusted to allocate the impact of the US
accounting issues and the change in self insurance estimation methaod reported in 2003 to the years to which they relate and “o reflect the 8ET USA lease adjustment reported in 2002 1n 2001 The

directors believe these adjustments improve comparability between penods.
The results far the years up to 30 April 2000 were restated In 200071 to reflect the sdaption of new accounting policies and estimation techniques under FRS 18 in that year

* Shareholders funds for the vears up to 30 Apnl 2003 were restated m 200374 10 reflect shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Trust as a deduction from shareholders funds in accordance with

uITF 38
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